HEARING TO BE CONDUCTED UNDER THE TERMS OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003

City of Westminster

Title:

Meeting Date:
Time:

Venue:

Members:

Committee Agenda

Licensing Sub-Committee (1)

Thursday 30th October, 2014

10.00 am

Rooms 5,6 & 7 - 17th Floor, City Hall

Councillors:

Tim Mitchell (Chairman)
Louise Hyams
Rita Begum

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting
and listen to the discussion Part 1 of the Agenda

Admission to the public gallery is by ticket, issued from the
ground floor reception at City Hall from 9.00am. If you have
a disability and require any special assistance please
contact the Committee Officer (details listed below) in
advance of the meeting.

An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for anyone
wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter. If you require
any further information, please contact the Committee
Officer, Jonathan Deacon.

Email: jdeacon@westminster.gov.uk Tel: 020 7641 2783
Corporate Website: www.westminster.gov.uk



http://www.westminster.gov.uk/

Note for Members: Members are reminded that Officer contacts are shown at the end of
each report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting.
With regard to item 2, guidance on declarations of interests is included in the Code of
Governance; if Members and Officers have any particular questions they should contact

the Head of Legal & Democratic Services in advance of the meeting please.

AGENDA
PART 1 (IN PUBLIC)

1.

MEMBERSHIP

The Head of Legal and Democratic Services to report any changes
to the membership.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive declarations by Members and Officers of any personal or
prejudicial interests in matters on this agenda.

Licensing Applications for Determination

BLACK'S, BASEMENT TO FIRST FLOOR, 67 DEAN STREET, W1

CO-OPERATIVE FOOD, 18-22 PARK ROAD, NW1

BASEMENT AND GROUND FLOOR, 39 GREAT WINDMILL
STREET, W1

INITIAL CONSIDERATION FOR ANY INTERIM MEASURES
PENDING FULL REVIEW - MADAME JOJO'S, 8-10 BREWER
STREET, W1

INITIAL CONSIDERATION FOR ANY INTERIM MEASURES
PENDING FULL REVIEW - ESCAPE NIGHTCLUB, 10A BREWER
STREET, W1

Peter Large
Head of Legal & Democratic Services
24 October 2014

(Pages 1 -
114)

(Pages 115 -
224)

(Pages 225 -
282)

(Pages 283 -
380)

(Pages 381 -
472)



In considering applications for premises licences under the Licensing Act 2003, the sub-
committee is advised of the following:

POLICY CONSIDERATIONS

The City of Westminster statement of licensing policy applies to all applications where
relevant representations have been made. The Licensing Sub-Committee is required to
have regard to the City of Westminster statement of Licensing Policy and the guidance
issued by the Secretary of state under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003.

GUIDANCE CONSIDERATIONS

The Licensing Authority is required to have regard to any guidance issued by the
Secretary of State under the Licensing Act 2003.

PERMITTED TEMPORARY ACTIVITIES

The licensee of any premises is entitled under the Licensing Act 2003 to apply for
permission to hold temporary events, authorising licensable activities instead of or in
addition to any activities that may be authorised by a premises licence, subject to the
following restrictions:

1) No more than 12 events over a total of 21 days may be held at any one premises in any
year

2) Each event must last for no more than 168 hours
3) There must be 24 hours between each event
4) The number of people at each event must be less than 500.

A Temporary Event Notice for each event (a TEN) is required to be given to the licensing
authority, the police and environmental health service no later than 10 working days
before the event for a ‘standard’ TEN or 5 to 9 working days before the event is due to
begin for a ‘late’ TEN. The licensing authority is required to send an acknowledgement by
the next working day.

Once a Temporary Event Notice is given the police and environmental health service
have a right to object to the event if they are satisfied that the event will undermine any of
the licensing objectives of preventing crime and disorder, prevention of public nuisance,
protection of children from harm and promotion of public safety. They must serve an
objection notice stating their reasons as to why the objectives would be undermined to the
licensing authority and the premises user within 3 working days of receiving a copy of the
TEN. The licensing authority is required to hold a hearing and may issue a counter notice
which will prevent the event taking place.



LIVE MUSIC ACT 2012
The Live Music Act amends the Licensing Act 2003 by:

e removing the licensing requirement for amplified live music taking place between
8am and 11pm before audiences of no more than 200 persons on premises
authorised by a premises licence or club premises certificate to supply alcohol for
consumption on the premises (at a time when those premises are open for the
purposes of being used for the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises),
subject to the right of a licensing authority to impose conditions about live music
following a review of a premises licence or club premises certificate

« removing the licensing requirement for amplified live music taking place between
8am and 11pm before audiences of no more than 200 persons in workplaces not
otherwise licensed under the 2003 Act (or licensed only for the provision of late
night refreshment)

« removing the licensing requirement for unamplified live music taking place between
8am and 11pm in any place, subject to the right of a licensing authority to impose
conditions about live music following a review of a premises licence or club
premises certificate relating to premises authorised to supply alcohol for
consumption on the premises

e removing the licensing requirement for the provision of entertainment facilities
« widens the licensing exemption for live music that is integral to a performance of

Morris dancing or dancing of a similar type, so that the exemption applies to both
live or recorded music instead of just unamplified live music in that instance.



CORE HOURS WHEN CUSTOMERS ARE PERMITTED TO BE ON THE PREMISES
(As set out in the Council’'s Statement of Licensing Policy 2011)

* For premises for the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises:

Friday and Saturday: 10:00 to midnight

Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays: Midday to midnight
Other Sundays: Midday to 22:30

Monday to Thursday: 10:00 to 23:30.

+  For premises for the supply of alcohol for consumption off the premises:

Monday to Saturday: 08:00 to 23:00
Sundays: 10:00 to 22:30.

» For premises for the provision of other licensable activities:

Friday and Saturday: 09.00 to midnight

Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays: 09.00 to midnight
Other Sundays: 09.00 to 22.30

Monday to Thursday: 09.00 to 23.30.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 1

Licensing Sub-

b

ciyotwesmnster | COommittee Report

{tem No:

Licensing Ref No: | | 14/07347/LIPV

Date: | |30 October 2014

Classification:
For General Release

Title of Report: Black's
Basement To First Floor
67 Dean Street
London, W1D 4QH
Report of:

Operational Director — Premises Management

Relicy Soniext City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy

Financial summary:
None

Report Author: | | miss Bina Patel, Environmental Health Case Officer

Contact Details: | | Telephone: 020 7641 2125
E-mail: bpatel@westminster.gov.uk

page 1



1. APPLICATION DETAILS

Application Variation of the premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003.
Type:
Applicant: Blacks Limited Date 01 September 2014
Application
Received:
Premises Black’s
Name and Basement To First Floor
Address: 67 Dean Street
London
W1D 4QH
Ward Name: West End Stress Area | West End
Premises The premises operate as a private members club. The premises comprises of a
Description: basement, ground and first floors.
Variation The application submitted is to add a new bar counter on the ground floor and to
description permit guests of members to purchase their own alcohol.
Please note: The application form refers to an extension of hours for Alcohol on
the First Floor. This part of the application has been withdrawn as the applicants
completed this section in error. (Appendix A4)

Note: Where the committee is minded to grant the licence it will be granted subject to the mandatory
conditions and conditions consistent with the operating schedule modified to such extent as the authority
considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives detailed in Appendix D to this report.

Proposed Licensable Activities, Proposed Hours: References / Notes

1 | Alterations to layout of premises.

To add a bar counter to the ground floor as shown on the plan attached at
Appendix A3

Relevant representations and policies applicable:

1A An adverse representation has been made against the application Environmental
by the Environmental Health Service stating that the proposal are Health
likely to impact on public safety and have the likely effect of causing representation

an increase in public nuisance. However, they have no objection in
respect of the change in layout other than a capacity to be confirmed
for the basement floor. Conditions have been proposed to the
applicants for consideration. Please refer further to Appendix B1

1B An adverse representation has been made against the application Metropolitan Police
by the Metropolitan Police Service stating that the application Service
undermines the licensing objectives. Please refer further to representation
Appendix B2

1C The Soho Society, Covent Garden Community Trust, 2 local 2 Amenity Societies,
residents and a Councillor have made adverse representation to this 2 Local residents
application. Their concerns are as follows: and Councillor’s
e The application seeks to introduce a new bar on the ground floor representations

page 2




1D

1E

1F

1G

1H

to allow guests of members to purchase alcohol. This raises
concerns.

e The entrance has been moved from the basement to the ground
floor. This entrance is often left open.

e The new owners have changed the nature of the club and is
frequented with events often noisy with loud music and noise.

e Blacks have begun to use the back area as an outdoor
courtyard/garden for members and guests. The sound created by
users is loudly amplified to all houses along this space.

e Widening the existing licence to allow for general members of the
public to buy alcohol will serve to fuel problems further.

Please refer further to Appendices B3 to B7

The following policies within the City of Westminster Statement of
Licensing Policy apply:

Prevention of crime and disorder (CD1)

Public Safety (PS1)

Prevention of public nuisance (PN1)

Protection children from harm (CH1)

Stress Area (STR1)

Music and dancing or similar entertainment within the Stress Areas
(MD2)

Pubs and Bars within the Stress Area (PB2)

Policy STR1 applies: (i)lt is the Licensing Authority’s policy to
refuse applications in the Stress Areas for: pubs and bars; late night
refreshment premises offering hot food and drink to take-away and
premises offering facilities for music and dancing other than
applications to vary hours within the Core Hours under Policy HRS1
(i)Applications for other licensable activities in the Stress Areas will
be subject to other policies and must demonstrate that they will not
add to cumulative impact in the Stress Areas.

Policy MD2 : It is the Licensing Authority’s policy to refuse
applications in the Stress Areas, other than applications to vary
hours within the Core Hours, under Policy HRS1.

Policy PB2: It is the Licensing Authority’s policy to refuse
applications in eth Stress Area other than applications to vary the
hours within Core Hours under policy HRS1

The Licensing Sub-committee may refuse, grant in full or grant in
part this proposal, having taken into account the representations
received and Westminster’s Statement of Licensing Policy. The
decision taken should promote the licensing objectives of:

prevention of public nuisance
prevention of crime & disorder
public safety and

protection of children from harm.,

Policies applicable

Summary

Sale of Alcohol for consumption on and off the premises.

To permit guests of members to purchase their gwn alcohol
page

Opposed by
Environmental




2A Please refer to 1A to 1G above.

prevention of public nuisance
prevention of crime & disorder
public safety and

Relevant representations and policies applicable:

2B The Licensing Sub-committee may refuse, grant in full or grant in
part this proposal, having taken into account the representations
received and Westminster's Statement of Licensing Policy. The
decision taken should promote the licensing objectives of:

protection of children from harm.

Health, Metropolitan
Police Service, 2
Amenity Societies, 2
Local residents and
Councillor's

Licensable activities permitted under the
existing Premises Licence

14/05708/LIPDPS

Variation to Licensable Activities

Regulated Entertainment:

Performance of Live Music
Monday to Saturday 10:00 to 01:30
Sunday 12:00 to 00:30

Playing of Recorded Music
Unrestricted

Private Entertainment consisting of dancing,
music or other entertainment of a like kind for
consideration and with a view to profit.
Unrestricted

Regulated Entertainment:

No change

Late Night Refreshment: Indoors

Basement & Ground
Monday to Saturday 23:00 to 01:30
Sunday 23:00 to 01:00

First Floor
Monday to Saturday 23:00 to 23:30

Late Night Refreshment: Indoors

No Change

Sale of Alcohol: On and Off the premises

Basement & Ground
Monday to Saturday 10:00 to 01:00
Sunday 12:00 to 00:30

First Floor
Monday to Saturday 10:00 to 23:00
Sunday 12:00 to 22:30

Sale of Alcohol: On and Off the premises

Basement & Ground

No Change

First Floor
No Change

page 4




Non Standard Timings

Non Standard Timings

From the end of permitted hours on New Year's No Change
Eve to the start of permitted hours on New Year’s

Day

Capacity Capacity
The maximum numbers of persons, including staff, | No change

to be present inside the building at the licensed
premises shall not exceed the numbers specified
from time to time by the proper officer of the
London Fire and Civil Defence Authority. The
numbers currently specified are:- (a) as to the
Ground Floor 30 persons; (b) as to the First Floor
30 persons.

Opening Hours

Monday to Saturday 10:00 to 01:30
Sunday 12:00 to 01:00

Opening Hours

No Change

Current The premises currently holds a premises licence 14/05708/LIPDPS (Appendix A1)
Licensing
Position See Appendix C for full Licensing History
Current There are no applications open or under investigation at these premises.
Planning
Position
Residential 131 of the 298 units are residential or proposed residential units within a 75m radius of
Density: the premises (44%), please refer to Appendix E
List of A1 — Existing Premises Licence 14/05708/LIPDPS
Appendices: A2 — Application
A3 — Proposed plan Ground floor submitted with application on 1/09/14
A4 — Applicant submissions: alcohol hours withdrawn and further submissions
B1 — Environmental Health Service representation and Licensing Inspectors
report
B2 — Metropolitan Police representation
B3 to B4 — Amenity Societies representations
B5 to B6 - Local residential representations
B7 — Local Councillor representation
C - Licence History
D - Proposed Conditions
E — Residential Map and list of premises in the vicinity
F — Photograph of the premises
Relevant Environmental Health Service
Representations: Metropolitan Police Service
Soho Society
Covent Garden Community Trust
2 local residents
A Councillor

2. APPLICANT SUBMISSIONS AND EVIDENCE

2.1
Appendix A2

The evidence submitted by the applicant in support of the Licensing Objectives is provided in

page 5




3. LICENSING ACT 2003 APPLICATIONS AND APPEAL HISTORY

3.1 Any chronology relating to appeals is set out in Appendix C.

Background Documents — Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972
e Licensing Act 2003

e City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy (7™ January 2011)
e Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Oct 2014)

page 6



APPENDIX A1

Schedule 12 WARD: West End
Part A UPRN: 010033570853
City of Westminster o Regulation 33, 34
64 Victoria Street, London, SW1E 6QP Premises licence
Premises licence number: 14/05708/LIPDPS
Original Reference: 05/06523/LIPCV

Part 1 — Premises details

Postal address of premises:

Black's

Basement To First Floor
67 Dean Street

London

W1D 4QH

Telephone Number: 020 7287 3381

Where the licence is time limited, the dates:

Not applicable

Licensable activities authorised by the licence:

Performance of Live Music

Playing of Recorded Music

Late Night Refreshment

Private Entertainment consisting of dancing, music or other entertainment of a like kind for
consideration and with a view to profit

Sale by Retail of Alcohol

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities:

Performance of Live Music

Monday to Saturday: 10:00 to 01:30
Sunday: 12:00 to 00:30

Playing of Recorded Music Unrestricted

Late Night Refreshment
Monday to Saturday: 23:00 to 01:30 (Basement and Ground Floors)
Sunday: 23:00 to 01:00 (Basement and Ground Floors)
Monday to Saturday: 23:00 to 23:30 (First Floor)

Private Entertainment consisting of dancing, music or other entertainment of a like
kind for consideration and with a view to profit Unrestricted

Sale by Retail of Alcohol

Monday to Saturday: 10:00 to 01:00 (Basement and Ground Floors)
Sunday: 12:00 to 00:30 (Basement and Ground Floors)
Monday to Saturday: 10:00 to 23:00 (First Fioor)

For times authorised for Christmas, New Year and Good Friday see conditions at Annex 1

page 7



The opening hours of the premises:

Monday to Saturday: 10:00 to 01:30
Sunday: 12:00 to 01:00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol, whether these are on and/or off
supplies:

Alcohol is supplied for consumption both on and off the Premises.

Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of
premises licence:

Blacks Limited

67 Dean Street

London

W1D 4QH

Electronic Mail : moira@blacksclub.com

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where
applicable)

02721400

Name, address and telephone humber of designated premises supervisor where the
premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol:

Name: Mr David John Seccombe

Please note: It is the policy of the Licensing Authority not to display the address
details of a designated premises supervisor.

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated
premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol:

Licence Number: WBC
Licensing Authority: Warrington Borough Council

Date: 20" August 2014

Signed: pp
Operational Director - Premises Management

page 8




Annex 1 — Mandatory conditions

1 No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises
supervisor in respect of this licence.

2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises
supervisor does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended.

3t Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person
who holds a personal licence.

4. (1)

()

(€)

The responsible person shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that staff on
relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible
promotions in relation to the premises.

In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the
following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the
purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the
premises in a manner which carries a significant risk of leading or
contributing to crime and disorder, prejudice to public safety, public nuisance,
or harm to children;

games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to
require or encourage, individuals to;

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink
alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the
period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply
alcohol), or

(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or
otherwise);

provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular
characteristic (other than any promotion or discount available to an individual
in respect of alcohol for consumption at a table meal, as defined in section
159 of the Act);

provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to
encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period
of 24 hours or less;

provision of free or discounted alcohol in relation to the viewing on the
premises of a sporting event, where that provision is dependent on;

0] the outcome of a race, competition or other event or process, or
(ii) the likelihood of anything occurring or not occurring;

selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers
on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to
condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the
effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner.

5. The responsible person shall ensure that no alcohol is dispensed directly by one
person into the mouth of another (other than where that other person is unable to
drink without assistance by reason of a disability).

page 9



9(i)

9(ii)

The responsible person shall ensure that free tap water is provided on request to
customers where it is reasonably available.

(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure
that an age verification policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or
supply of alcohol.

(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to
be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the
policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification
bearing their photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark.

The responsible person shall ensure that;

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for
consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied
having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely
closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures;

(i) beer or cider: Y pint;
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 mi or 35 mi; and
(ili) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; and

(b) customers are made aware of the availability of these measures.

A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the
premise licence in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if
any) or any individual aged 18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder
or designated premises supervisor. For premises with a club premises certificate,
any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity that which
enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol.

A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on
or off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 9(i) above -

(a) "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alicoholic Liquor Duties Act
1979;

(b) "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula -
P = D+(DxV)
Where -

)] P is the permitted price,

(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the
duty were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol,
and

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol
as if the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or
supply of the alcohol;

(c) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is
in force a premises licence -

(i) the holder of the premises licence,
(i) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a
licence, or

page 10



oiii).

9(iv).

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of
alcohol under such a licence;

(d) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is
in force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present
on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent
the supply in question; and

(e) "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the
Value Added Tax Act 1994.

Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 9(ii)(b) above would (apart from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph
shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the
nearest penny.

(1) Sub-paragraph 9(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given
by Paragraph 9(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be
different from the permitted price on the next day ("the second day")
as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to
sales or supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the
period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

Conditions reproducing the effect of conditions subject to which the relevant existing
licenses have effect.

Conditions for Sale of Alcohol

Such parts of the basement, ground and first floors as are shown more particularly
coloured and edged in red on the deposited plans.

10.

1.

12.

Intoxicating liquor may be sold only to members of the club meeting at the club
premises for the consumption by those members and their bona fide guests.

No person shall be admitted to membership of the said club without an interval of at
least two days between membership and admission. The name and address of the
person so applying must be prominently displayed in the club premises, in a part
frequented by the members, for at least two days before election.

The maximum numbers of persons, including staff, to be present inside the building at
the licensed premises shall not exceed the numbers specified from time to time by
the proper officer of the London Fire and Civil Defence Authority. The numbers
currently specified are:-

(@) as to the Ground Floor 30 persons;
(b) as to the First Floor 30 persons.

Conditions which reproduce the effect of any restriction imposed on the use of the
premises by specified enactments.

13.

(i) Alcohol may be sold or supplied:

(a) On weekdays, other than Christmas Day, Good Friday or New Year's Eve,
10:00 to 23:00.

(b) On Sundays, other than Christmas Day or New Year's Eve, 1400 to 22:30.

(c) On Good Friday, 12:00 to 22:30

page 11



(d)
(e)
()
(9

On Christmas Day, 12:00 to 15:00 and 19:00 to 22:30.

On New Year's Eve except on a Sunday, 10:00 to 23:00.

On New Year's Eve on a Sunday, 18:00 to 22:30.

On New Year's Eve from the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to
the start of permitted hours on the following day (or, if there are no permitted
hours on the following day, midnight on 31st December).

Basement and Ground Floor

(ii)

(iif)

Alcoho!l may be sold or supplied for one hour following the hours set out
above (other than Christmas Day and New Year's Eve) and on Christmas
day, between 15:00 and 19:00 to persons taking table meals in the premises
in a part of the premises usually set apart for the service of such persons and
for consumption by such a person in that part of the premises as an ancillary
to his meal. For other purposes or in other parts of the premises the hours set
out above shall continue to apply.

(a). Alcohol may be sold or supplied until 01.00 in the morning following
weekdays (other than Good Friday and Christmas Day), 00.30 a.m.
in the morning following Sundays (other than Christmas Day) and
00.30 in the morning following Good Friday to persons taking table
meals in the premises in a part of the premises usually set apart for
the service of such persons and for consumption by that person in
that part of the premises as an ancillary to his meal.

(b) That part of the premises must also be used for the provision of
entertainment by persons present and performing to which the sale
or supply of alcohol is also ancillary.

(c) The alcohol must be sold or supplied at a time before (i) the provision
of entertainment by persons present and performing or (ii) the
provision of substantial refreshment, has ended. For other purposes
or in other parts of the premises the hours set out above shall
continue to apply.

(d) This condition does not authorise any sale or supply to any person
admitted to the premises either after midnight (23.00 on Sunday) or
less than half an hour before the entertainment is due to end, except

- in accordance with condition number 12(ii) above.

NOTE - The above restrictions do not prohibit:

(@)

(h)

during the first thirty minutes in the basement and ground floor and twenty
minutes on the first floor after the above hours the consumption of the alcohol
on the premises;

during the first twenty minutes after the above hours, the taking of the alcohol
from the premises unless the alcohol is supplied or taken in an open vessel,
during the first thirty minutes after the above hours the consumption of the
alcohol on the premises by persons taking table meals there if the alcohol
was supplied for consumption as ancillary to the meals;

the sale or supply of alcohol to or the consumption of alcohol by any person
residing in the licensed premises;

the ordering of alcohol to be consumed off the premises, or the despatch by
the vendor of the alcohol so ordered;

the sale of alcohol to a trader or registered club for the purposes of the trade
or club;

the sale or supply of alcohol to any canteen or mess, being a canteen in
which the sale or supply of alcohol is carried out under the authority of the
Secretary of State or an authorised mess of members of Her Majesty's naval,
military or air forces;

the taking of alcohol from the premises by a person residing there;

page 12



14.

15.

(i

the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to any private friends
of a person residing there who are bona fide entertained by him at his own
expense, or the consumption of alcohol by persons so supplied;

the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to persons employed
there for the purposes of the business carried on by the holder of the licence,
or the consumption of liquor so supplied, if the liquor is supplied at the
expense of their employer or of the person carrying on or in charge of the
business on the premises.

In this condition, any reference to a person residing in the premises shall be
construed as including a person not residing there but carrying on or in charge of the
business on the premises.

No person under fourteen shall be in the bar of the licensed premises during the
permitted hours unless one of the foliowing applies:

(a)
(b)
()

(d)

He is the child of the holder of the premises licence.

He resides in the premises, but is not employed there.

He is in the bar solely for the purpose of passing to or from some part of the
premises which is not a bar and to or from which there is no other convenient
means of access or egress.

The bar is in railway refreshment rooms or other premises constructed, fitted
and intended to be used bona fide for any purpose to which the holding of the
licence is ancillary.

In this condition "bar" includes any place exclusively or mainly used for the
consumption of intoxicating liquor. But an area is not a bar when it is usual for it to be,
and it is, set apart for the service of table meals and alcohol is only sold or supplied to
persons as an ancillary to their table meals.

The terminal hour for late night refreshment on New Year's Eve is extended to 05:00
on New Year's Day.

page 13



Annex 2 — Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule

None

page 14



Annex 3 — Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

None

page 15



Annex 4 — Plans

Attached

page 16



BLACKS'LTD.
67 DEAN STREET, LONDON W1V.5HD TEL:-0207 287 3381
CONVERSION OF EXISTING LICENCE

Legend

SITE BOUNDARY;e

i i All deors, walls, partitions, screens and dlazing shown in

D @@ thick black lines on plen.comply with the definition of FIRE
" " RESISTING.
IMALE LAVATORIES A = Fire Alarm Gall Point with Firs Actian sign adjacent,

FFF Dowrs which ars free from all fastenings (other than a ball
or roller fastening or.a lever handled latch). In orderto
ensure that these duors are elways available for escape
from elther side,

E] Control Panel Sounders,

El Control Pane] Saunders and illuminated signals.
MENVIER MF9308 Fire Atarm Controlier to
BS 5839 Pt1:1988

S -Door assembly, which is-able to rasist the passage of
smoke when tested in accordanca with the British
‘Standard in force attha date:of manufacttra, and is .a /2
hour fire resistant sslf.closing fire door.

pd Arsa covarad with a systan of Escape Lighting that
illuminatss the arsa upan fallure of the normal lighting
-powar supply, io.& sufficisnt standard to enable persons
“to-deave the araa safaly. The escape lighting system
‘conforms to the British Standard curent at the time of its
installation and = carlificate to that effect is kept on the
premises, ™

‘Area coversd by an Automatic Heat Detsctor, -

5 WINE STORAGE |

"BAR

Areas covered by Automatic Smoke Datectors.

Parts.of premises notcaverad by this application.

DINING AREA

22 84 sqm Water Fire Extingtisher. _(9 Iiﬁ:e wpaci.ty)

Carbon Dioxide Fire Extingulsher. (2 Klogram capacity)

Fire Blanket in container,

L @%-@

Fire-curfain to gas fires.

Notes . T 3 AR I
—Aren beneath stair faced with 1/2 hr. fire- resisting material,
/~BIGN="MIND YOUR HEAD" ..

. #* ~BIGN = "THIS GATE TO BE LOCKED OPEN WHILST-PREMISES
#,/" AREINUSE" =,
MINIMUM:EXIT WIDTH:THROUGHOUT = 850mm
[ Fire Notices y ¥ ;
| Boxes like this Indicsta signs. ' The'fullowing caodes
! . "show the wording displaysd on the noficas. All

r notices conform to'the British Standard for signs.”
-ourrent al the date of installation and the minimum- -
.aizp.ni' Isttaring isns’ind'bnatt_!d _b_eluw.

SN

1 ”NI":
7lsam

ESTORAGE | [

‘Additional Notes

1 i ” .-> - (a) Dimclional-armow. b E S,
gl st T *Lettering Slze
‘Ez3) FIRE EXIT, EMERGENGY EXIT" . 76mm
= ar EXIT notice graphic symbal..
: - T pebeie j J[ETE] © 7 - FIRE DODRKEEP SHUT, - i Bmm.
| THE MAXIMUM:NUMBER OF PERSONS [INGLUDING STAFF] TO BE ACCOMMODATED AT . o i sty o0 s
| /ANY ONE TIMEIN THE BASEMENT SHOULD NOT EXCEED 30 PERSONS, | ' [E74) ‘FIRE DOOR'KEEP LOCKED. . 22mm

F =

3 Li- BAS#EEN;“LEVEL?L.{N& EXISTING, SCALE-1:100

 GORDON STUART MC.LEAN  JuLY 2005 MoBiLE:- 07805190237




BLACKSLTD. |
67 DEAN STREET, LONDON W1V SHD TEL:- 0207 287 3381 .'
CONVERSION ¢ OF EXISTING LicENCE

SITE BOUNDARY\ z L Legend }

= ; s All doors, walls, partitions, screens and glazing shown in 1

I—'" 1 :'. 3 thick bieok lines on plan comply with the definition of FIRE

RESISTING.
COURTYARD :
; o
EJHJ P

EE
:s

i
Fire Alarm Call Point with Fire Action sign adjacent

=]

RBON FILTER

FFF Dioors which are:free from all fastenings (other than a-ball
-or roller fastening.or.a lever-handled latch). Jn order o
onsure that thase doors are.always available for escape
fram sithor side.

Control Panel Bounders,

ACTIVATED CA
=

7] Control Panel Sounders and illuminated signals.
MENVIER MF9308 Fire Alarm Contraller to
:BS 5830 Pt1;1988

k-] Door asserbiy, which is.able 1o resist the passage of
smoke when tesied In:accordance with the' British
Standard In'forca at the date of manufacture, and is a 112
hour fire resistant self closing fire door,

;,*E

[ Arez coverad with & system of Escape Lighting that
iluminates the area upon failure of the normal lighting
power supply, to e sufficient standard to enable parsons
toleavethe area salely, The.escape lighting systam
canforms to the Brilish Standard curent atthe time of its
instalfation and a certificate to-that effect is keptonthe
premises.

%Hn_istl El
FEEHO]

'STMRWELL [FFF_l @
Area covered by an Automalic Heat Detector,

Aneas covered by Automatic Smaks Detectors,

Parls of premises not covered:by this application.

%H@

Water Fire Extinguisher. {8 litre capacity)

"DINING AREA o
Carbon Diaxide Fire Extinguisher. :(2 kilogram capachy)

B > B

53.38 sqm -
‘Fire Blanket in coptainer.
i ====Fire curain to-'gas fires.
- i f i ~Notes
2 -SIGN = "ENTER CLUB'BY BASEMENT"
X A " “MINIMUM EXIT WIDTH THROUGHOUT = 856mm
i
" ‘RESIDENTIAL ENTRANCE _ CLUBENTRANCE Fire Foteas -
s ' £ o ; i i i "Boxes like this indicate sighs. The fouawmg Sl
i :show the-wording displayed on the notices. -All
“noticas conform to'the British Standard for signs
curment-af fhe date of Installation and the minimum
size of lattaring }a as mdinated below, i -
All:lltlcmal-hlotes
N ke {a) Directional arrow. o e S

: DEAN, STREET 5 o Lettering Size

= - U Al [B22] - RIREEXIT, EMERGENCY EXIT © . 76mm

" : h or EXIT notice, gmphlc symbol i

- : : :FIRE DODR KEEP SHUT... 16mm
ol THE MAXIMUNM NUMEIER OF PERSONS [mcl.umus smFr-'] 0 Bzmcoumnmen AT ' _ e B
¥ "_ ANY ONE 'I’IME OGN THE GROUND FLonR suoum NOT EXCEED 30PERSONS. - |- | 5TE FIRE'DOOR KEEP.LOCKED. 22mm

N AS EXISTING. SCALE - 1:100

GORDON STUART MC.LEAN JuLy 2005 MoBILE: 07905180 237,




' BLACKSLTD. .
67 DEAN STREET, LONDON W1V SHD- ‘TEL:- 0207 287 3381
CONVERSION OF EXISTING LICENCE

SITE BGL_INDARY\ Legend 1
- B = All doors, walls, partitions, screens and glazing shown in
' = thick black lines on ptan comply with the definition of FIRE
! . i RESISTING,
5 i B Fire Alarm Call Point with Fire Action sign adjacent
I i FFF  Doors which are free from all fastenings {other than a ball
& or rollar fastening or.a laver handled latsh). \n-orderio
H ensure that these doors are elways avallable for escape
Ve : from sither elde.
= Control Pans| Soundsrs.
=) Control Panel Sounders and illuminated signals.

MENVIER MFS30B Fire Alarm Controlier to

i - BS 5839 Pt1:1988" :

*STAIRWELLY \ il ' 22 'S Door assembly, which is able to resist the passage of

3 smoke when tested in-accordance with the British
Standard in force atthe date of manufacture, and is a 1/2
hour fire reslstant self closing firs door,

) i : (2] Aran covared with a systsm of Escape Lighting that
==l BiHolst [5] EAE lluminates the area upon failure of the normmal lighting
- g power supply, to a sufficiont standand o enable persons
to leave the aren safsly. Theescape lighting systsm
cunforms fo the British Standard current at the ms of its
installation and a-certificate to that effsctis kept an the

A = p— ramises. b
i LAEEIETY§ I & y
1 - E —1 187 & @ i ! ‘Area covered by an Automatic Heat Detector.
N [ : ; .
| ) ’ ! N, . El Areas covered by Automatic Smoke Datactors.
is_/ !
. | A >/>< Parts of premnises not covered by this application.
& Watsr Firs Extinguisher. (0 litre capacity)

'READING ROOMS IR 4 E - A :
{NO FODD NO MUSIC) NN i A\ Carbon Dioxide Fire-Extinguisher. (2 kiogram capecity)
61.75 sqm e ' ' i ;

é Fire Blanket in container.

I|+===="Fire curtain to gas fires,

.. Notes
E —BIGN="IN CASE OF FIRE AN'ESCAPE TO THE ROOF.IS
; AVAILABLE ON TOP FLOOR" ;
“=SIGN = "PRIVATE PROPERTY NO ENTRY-EXCEPT IN FIRE
'EMERGENCY This Is not-a part of Blacks Club. Pisasa respoct
'the Tenants privacy” ‘
MINIMUM EXITWIDTH THROQUGHOUT = B50mm
“Fire Notlees . .
. ‘Boxes like this indicate signs.  The following codes
i' :show the wording displayed on the miotices, Al
i ..o - notices conformto the Britiéh Standard for slgns
-eurrent at the date of installation and the minimum
‘sizeof Iettering'is:as Indicated. below.” . -

:i\ddlﬂonal:Notes g

o I@]—) - -:(a) Directional:arrow. - c b
‘" DEAN: BTREET " . Ak 4 Lettering Size
52t | ' #|[824 ¢ FIREEXIT.EMERGENCY.EXIT . - 76mm
© | 7 & -orEXITnotice graphlc symbal,
g T - z ; . |[B¥  rrepocrkeEPsHUT. L . 1smm
THE MAXIMUM NUMBER OF PERSONS [INCLUDING STAFF] TO BE ACCOMMODATED AT RS i :
3 =74 " FIRE DOOR ‘KEEP LOCKED. 22mm

ANY.ONE TIME ON THE FIRST FLOOR SHOULD NOT EXCEED 30 PERSONS. -

L3- FIRsT FLOOR PLANAS EXISTING. SCALE - 1:100

GORDON STUART MC.LEAN. JuLy 2005 | MosiLe:- 07805 180 237




Schedule 12 WARD: West End
Part B UPRN: 010033570853

Clty Of Westminster Premises licence Regulation 33, 34
64 Victoria Street, London, SWIE 6QP summary
Premises licence number: 14/05708/LIPDPS

Part 1 — Premises details

Postal address of premises:

Black's

Basement To First Floor
67 Dean Street

London

W1D 4QH

Telephone Number: 020 7287 3381

Where the licence is time limited, the dates:

Not applicable

Licensable activities authorised by the licence:

Performance of Live Music

Playing of Recorded Music

Late Night Refreshment

Private Entertainment consisting of dancing, music or other entertainment of a like kind for
consideration and with a view to profit

Sale by Retail of Alcohol

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities:

Performance of Live Music

Monday to Saturday: 10:00 to 01:30
Sunday: 12:00 to 00:30

Playing of Recorded Music Unrestricted

Late Night Refreshment
Monday to Saturday: 23:00 to 01:30 (Basement and Ground Floors)
Sunday: 23:00 to 01:00 (Basement and Ground Floors)
Monday to Saturday: 23:00 to 23:30 (First Floor)

Private Entertainment consisting of dancing, music or other entertainment of a like
kind for consideration and with a view to profit Unrestricted

Sale by Retail of Alcohol

Monday to Saturday: 10:00 to 01:00 (Basement and Ground Floors)
Sunday: 12:00 to 00:30 (Basement and Ground Floors)
Monday to Saturday: 10:00 to 23:00 (First Floor)

For times authorised for Christmas, New Year and Good Friday see conditions at Annex 1

page 20




The opening hours of the premises:

Monday to Saturday: 10:00 to 01:30
Sunday: 12:00 to 01:00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol, whether these are on and/or off
supplies:

Alcohol is supplied for consumption both on and off the Premises.

Name and (registered) address of holder of premises licence:

Blacks Limited
67 Dean Street
London

W1D 4QH

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where
applicable)

02721400

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for
the supply of alcohol:

Name: Mr David John Seccombe

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited:

Restricted
Date: 20™ August 2014
Signed: PP

Operational Director - Premises Management

page 21




APPENDIX A2
\</

ThomasgFhammas

8
LICEuSINGSERYICE
Application to vary a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003 729 AUG 20%
PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST l CITY OF WESTM‘NSTEFE_I

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. If you are completing this form by
hand please write leglbly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black
Ink. Use additlonal sheets If necessary.

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

{Insert name(s} of applicant)
being the premises licence holder, apply to vary a premises licence under section 34 of the Licensing
Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below

Premises licence number
14/03609/LIPT

Part 1 - Premises Detalls

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description
Black's

Basement to First Floor

67 Dean Street

Post town London Postcode W1D 40H

Telephone number at premises (if any)

Non-domestic rateable value of premises £38,750

Part 2 — Applicant details

Daytime contact
telephone number

E-mail address (optional)

Current postal address if
different from premises address

Post town l Postcode

Application (2) p ag e 2 2



Part 3 - Variation

Please tick as appropriate
Do you want the proposed variation to have effect as soon as possible?  [X] Yes Ono

If not, from what date do you want the variation to take effect? ]DE| T [ML'TI IfT |YIY|Y e

Do you want the proposed variation to have effect in relation to the introduction of the late night levy?
(Please see Guidance Note 1) [ Yes X No

Please describe briefly the nature of the proposed variation {Please see guidance note 2)
So as:

1) to introduce a new bar counter on the Ground Floor

2) to allow guests of members to purchase their own aicohol

If your proposed variation would mean that 5,000 or more people are
expected to attend the premises at any one time, please state the number f
expected to attend:

page 23




Part 4 Operating Schedule

Please complete those parts of the Operating Schedule below which would be subject to change if this
application to vary is successful.

Provision of regulated entertainment Please tick all that apply
a)  plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A)

b) films (if ticking yes, fill in box B)

c) indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C)

d)  boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)

e)  live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E)

f) recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F)

g)  performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G)

anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)

h) (if ticking yes, fill in box H)

Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box [)

Sale by retail of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box J)

In all cases complete boxes K, Land M

page 24

X O 0 O00O040o0oad



A

Plays Will the performance of a play take place indoors or

Standard days and timings | outdoors or both — please tick (please read guidance | 'Mdoors O

(please read guidance note | note 3)

7) Outdoors O

Day Start Finish Both ]

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for performing plays (please read guidance
note 5)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
performance of plays at different times to those listed in the column on the
left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Sat

Sun

page 25




B

Films Will the exhibition of films take place indoors or

Standard days and timings | outdoors or both — please tick (please read guidance Indoors

(please read guidance note | note 3)

7) Outdoors

Day Start Finish Both

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of films (please read
guidance note 5)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
exhibition of films at different times to those listed in the column on the
left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Sat

Sun

page 26




C

indoor sporting events
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note

Please give further details (please read guidance note 4)

7)

Day Start Finish

Mon

Tue State any seasonal variations for indoor sporting events (please read
guidance note 5)

Wed

Thur Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for indoor
sporting events at different times to those listed in the column on the left,
please list (please read guidance note 6)

Fri

Sat

Sun

page 27




D

Boxing or wrestling

Will the boxing or wrestling entertainment take place

entertainments indoors or outdoors or both — please tick (please Indoors O

Standard days and timings | read guidance note 3)

(please read guidance note Outdoors ]

7)

Day Start | Finish Both ]

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for boxing or wrestling entertainment (please
read guidance note 5)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for boxing or
wrestling entertainment at different times to those listed in the column on
the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Sat

Sun

page 28




SESEES = SR e

E

Live music Will the performance of live music take place indoors

Standard days and timings | or outdoors or both — please tick (please read Indoors 0O

(please read guidance note | guidance note 3)

7) Outdoors |

Day Start Finish Both O

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the performance of live music (please read
guidance note 5)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
performance of live music at different times to those listed in the column
on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Sat

Sun

page 29




JE—

F

Recorded music Will the playing of recorded music take place indoors

Standard days and timings | or outdoors or both — please tick (please read Indoors O

(please read guidance note | guidance note 3)

7) Outdoors O

Day | Start | Finish Both O

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded music {please read
guidance note 5)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
playing of recorded music at different times to those listed in the column
on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Sat

Sun

page 30




G

Performances of dance Will the performance of dance take place indoors or

Standard days and timings | outdoors or both - please tick (please read guidance Indoors D

{please read guidance note | note 3)

7) Outdoors O

Day Start | Finish Both |

Mon Please give further details here {(please read guidance note 4)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance (please read
guidance note 5)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
performance of dance at different times to those listed in the column on
the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Sat

Sun

page 31




H

Anything of a similar Piease give a description of the type of entertainment you will be providing

description to that falling

within (e), (f) or (g)

Standard days and timings

(please read guidance note

7)

Day Start Finish | Will this entertainment take place indoors or Indoors O
outdoors or both —~ please tick (please read guidance

Mon note 3) Outdoors O

Both 0

Tue Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Wed

Thur State any seasonal variations for entertainment of a similar description to
that falling within (e}, (f) or (g) (please read guidance note 5)

Fri

Sat Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
entertainment of a similar description to that falling within (e}, (f) or (g} at
different times to those listed in the column on the left, please list (please
read guidance note 6)

Sun

page 32




Late night refreshment
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note
7)

Will the provision of late night refreshment take
lace indoors or outdoors or both — please tick Indoors O

(please read guidance note 3)
Outdoors O

Day Start | Finish Both ]

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the provision of late night refreshment
(please read guidance note 5)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
provision of late night refreshment at different times, to those listed in
the column on the left, please list {please read guidance note 6)

Sat

Sun

page 33




J

Supply of alcohol Will the supply of alcohol be for consumption - On the

Standard days and timings | please tick (please read guidance note 6) premises

le d guidance note
(7:; ase read gu n Off the
premises

Day Start Finish Both

Mon 10.00 | 23.30 | State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol {please read
guidance note 5)

Tue 10.00 | 23.30

Wed | 1000 |23.30

Thur 10.00 23.30 Non-standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
supply of alcohol at different times to those listed in the column on the
left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Fri 10.00 00.00 First Floor only

Sat 10.00 | 00.00

Sun 12.00 | 2230

K

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or matters
ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children {please read

guidance note 9).
None

page 34




Hours premises are open
to the public
Standard days and timings

(please read guidance note

7)

Day

Start

Finish

Mon

Tue

Wed

State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 5)

Thur

Fri

Sat

Sun

Non standard timings. Where you intend the premises to be open to the

public at different times from those listed in the column on the left,
please list {please read guidance note 6)

Please identify those conditions currently imposed on the licence which you believe could be removed as
a consequence of the proposed variation you are seeking.
Condition 13

page 35




Please tick as appropriate
® | have enclosed the premises licence X
® | have enclosed the relevant part of the premises licence O

If you have not ticked one of these boxes, please fill in reasons for not including the licence or part of it
below

Reasons why | have not enclosed the premises licence or relevant part of premises licence.

page 36




M

Describe any additional steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives as a result of
the proposed variation:

a) General — all four licensing objectives (b, ¢, d and e) (please read guidance note 10)

The premises operate as a Private Member's Club and the conditions currently endorsed on the licence
address the licensing objectives. No further measures are considered necessary.

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

See above

¢) Public safety

See above

d) The prevention of public nuisance

See above

e) The protecticn of children from harm

See above

page 37




Checklist:
Please tick to indicate agreement

| have made or enclosed payment of the fee.

® | have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and others
where applicable.

® | understand that | must now advertise my application.
® [ have enclosed the premises licence or relevant part of it or explanation.

® |understand that if | do not comply with the above requirements my application will be
rejected.

X XK K X

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE NOT EXCEEDING LEVEL 5 ON THE
STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN
OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION.

Part 5 - Signatures (please read guidance note 11)
Signature of applicant (the current premises licence holder) or applicant’s solicitor or other duly

authorised agent (please read guidance note 12). If sighing on behalf of the applicant, please state in
what capacity.

Signature 'T’ww«n mm»wm

Date 29" August 2014

Capacity Thomas & Thomas Partners LLP, Solicitors on behalf fo the applicant

Where the premises licence is jointly held, signature of 2nd applicant (the current premises licence
holder) or 2nd applicant’s solicitor or other authorised agent (please read guidance note 13). If signing
on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity.

Signature

Date

Capacity

Contact name (where not previously given) and address for correspondence associated with this
application (please read guidance note 14)

Thomas & Thomas Partners LLP
38a Monmouth Street

Post town I London I Post code | WC2H 9EP

Telephone number (if any) [ 020 7042 0417

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail, your e-mail address (optional)
rhepworth@tandtp.com

page 38




e &

Bmcxé L1D.

APPENDIX A??
5
ok X

SUBM\TT&D AT R VA\Q}ﬁ‘f{()VQ
plicaT oJ - C'"‘lﬂcilibf

67 DEAN STRRET, LONDON WIVSHD TeL:- 0207 287 3381
CONVERSION DF Exx_s'mtc LICENCE

[ SITE BOUNDARY.

4

_F_j et — AR 0 UUEVIABLE NCVITLE

MAXISUR HUMBER OF PERSONS [INGLULKNG STAFF] TO BE '

ot

FIRE DOOR KEEP SHUT, - tbeon

L i FL : ] FIRE DODR KEEP LOGKED, <7
e orne cuenom not st S 0. mwormricoms g
Vi ) . . e B ] 2w dghe ] : A TR = : C R
b i SR 5 RIS e L OSSR SRR ey
5 . . 12- GROUND FLOOR FLAN AS EXISTING, SCALE - 1:100 7 o M e
i |, GORDON STUART Mc.LEAN. Juty ‘2005, MoBLE- 07905190 237, o RS T e
., -3 ] - ;_’ :. f}. i -
. 5 gy
. . * 3 .

e Al doos, welie, purtitions, asmens and plexing shawn in
E thick black Hines on plan comgty with the deknltien of FIRE
E; r RESIETING,
2 | ‘ : P Fire Alerm Cail Point with Firo Action sign ssscent
.E" COURTYARD 8 |
K F H FPE Doors which s ires fom el {other then a bal
“" . » -¢ rolier fastening of.s lsver handied In orderto
o J . onsure thed thase toors wre pleays avakiabio for ssospe
= from alther side.
L1 =
‘ g Control Pane) Sounders and Bkminated signsis. |
i u MENVIER MFS308 Firo Alrm Convolier fo i
4 5 wmﬂmma-m At |
b : i o e ol !
. i e mmmuhmmum |
-~ ; Btandurd in“foreo atthe dats of manuiacture, and is & 12
Pour fita resistont sail elosing fire toor,
' Area coveret with & syttam of Exoaps
Holsl ¢ - mnummwubﬁm
, T i powar pai .bmmhm
: T tolsave the area f
. D - 2 mshm-lmmmn mh :
‘el i - insafation and s caftiionis © thal eflect Is kept an ihe
1 L : ! Promises_ Y
= ' ] A d by an Automabc Hes! D
A" 35 + 1) Amascoveied by Automatc Smake Dewebors,
S i < 2 I N 1 '
% '\‘ a ,. | "Ratis of premmises not covered by $s spplomion.
v ad i R i ] » ke , A
Joi | B 148y v Fus Extnguister. @ o copactty)
* 8.38 sqgm - :} = A Gasbon Dicxige Fire Extngeishar, (2 Kk pacty) | o
i . i 151 1
! i 5 | & Fire Bianketin comteiner.
; E— msma Fire curtsin o gag fires il
; | ] be—— : —
I i i o -SIGH »"ENTER GLUB BY BASEMENT . i
. 2 -/ mwmmmm-m o
el e ; Vg 1 COLCECL M Bowes o e ntiont algre. e iy waetes .
; Tunias Bl . Showthe duplayed on the Aokoes.
; " b y . 25 i ey curent sl the date 'of nsmbason and -
S8 3 g o BAZETGE M T sicevwietiering is ms kdxeted below, { |
% e S v =T0) b Ty ; ot 3 | “1[EE> foyDescticnal avow. . T ]
= T DEAN STREET ool hooaid Ty 2 et - Latloring Sim 3
s R B s T P O DT b | FIRE EXIT, EMERGENCY.ENT * . 78mm




APPENDIX A4

Patel, Bina

From: Alun Thomas [Athomas@tandtp.com]

Sent: 22 October 2014 16:01

To: Patel, Bina

Cc: Watson, lan; Coleman, Cliona; Jack Spiegler
Subject: Re: Blacks - Dean Street 14/07347/LIPV
Bina

Confirmed. The hours section was completed in error. There was no intention to extend hours.
Apologies for the confusion

Alun

On 22 Oct 2014, at 15:59, Patel, Bina <bpatel@westminster.gov.uk> wrote:

Dear Alun

Further to my email below, it has been brought to my attention the hours applied for the sale of alcahoi have
not been advertised in accordance to the Licensing Act 2003. Therefore, this part of the application cannot be

considered.

l'ask you to withdraw this part of the application if you wish to proceed with the application in respect of 1.
the addition of the bar on the ground floor and 2. allowing of guest to purchase alcohol.

Regards
Bina

Ersmpeas Dabal Dica

page 40



Thomas & Thomas

Partners LILP

Your ref: 14/07347/LIPV 38a Monmouth Street
Qur ref; JS/BLA.48.1 London WC2H 9EP

tel: 020 7042 0410
fax: 020 7379 6618

Premises Licensing
Westminster City Council
64 Victoria Street
London

SWIE 6QP

By post and email: premiseslicensing@westminster.gov.uk

23 October 2014
Dear Sirs

Application to vary a Premises Licence - Ref: 14/07347/LIPV
Black's Club, 67 Dean Street, London W1D 4QH {the “Premises”)

We refer to our client’s application listed for hearing next Thursday. We would be grateful if the
following documents could be included in the Committee’s papers, which we hope will assist
Members:

Report of Mr Adrian Studd

Letters of support

Menu

Black’s Club presentation

£ mail correspondence with Mr Bieda

R w®N e

There is no increase to the licensed area or increase in hours. The application is limited to the
following two proposals:

a. the introduction of new bar counter; and

b. the amendment of condition 10 (grandfathered from the Licensing Act 1964) , which currently
restricts the sale of alcohol to members only, to allow guests of members to purchase their
own drinks.

The new bar counter is proposed to improve servicing on the ground floor and create more space in
the kitchen, which will help support the new food offering. No other changes to the Premises Licence
or licensable activities are sought.

Various concerns and allegations have been presented by local residents objecting to the application,
which whilst being addressed by the applicant, are not relevant to the application. Paragraph 9.4 of

Thomas & Thomas Paitners LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England & Wales under number OC363873. A list of
members is available far Inspection at ouwr registered office at 38a Monmaouth Street, London WC2H 8EP. Thomas & Thomas
Pariners LILP is regulated by the Solicilors Regulation Authorily under number 561362.

page 41



Thomas & Thomas

[ RSN B B L
Morenors LLE

the 5.182 Guidance states that: “For representations in relation to variations to be relevant, they should
be confined to the subject matters of the variation”.

Our client respectively submits that only matters and conditions relevant to the scope of the
application ought to be considered by the Licensing Sub-Committee, those changes being in respect of
a new servery on the ground floor and the provision for guests 1o purchase drinks.

There is also comment in respect of the club entrance and ‘no food no music’ on the first floor. The first
floor is now used for dining with background music, both of which are not licensable activities and
therefore do not require an amendment of the licence.

Access to the Premises is now at ground floor level. Here members and guests are greeted by
reception staff on arrival and have to sign in. No members of the public can be admitted. The ground
floor door was left open during the warmer weather and due to previous residential concerns
regarding slamming doors. The previous basement entrance was unsafe for general access and noisy.

Since taking over the Premises in April this year, our client has taken various steps to improve the
operation of the club and regularise the Premises Licence which include:

1. New controlled entry policy.

New management controls and procedures relating to the use of external areas.

Improved food offering. Food sales have increased by over 300% compared to like for like sales

in 2013, with just over 50% of sales attributed to food.

Removal of cheap price alcoholic drinks from the drinks list.

Installation of electronically controlled Sonos background music system.

Refurbishment works sympathetic to the Premises listed building status.

Regular dialogue with local residents, including complimentary membership,

Instruction of Mr Adrian Studd to undertake a covert licensing visit and produce the enclosed

report.

9. instruction of acoustic consultants to undertake noise surveys (a survey was intended to take
place this week although unfortunately Mr Bieda was unable to provide access to his
property).

10. Regular dialogue with Mr Bieda in particular to address any concerns he may have. Our client
hopes to meet all of the residents on Monday.

w N

20 A [EaRpe

Even though the Premises is within the Stress Area, the nature and effect of the variation does not
impact upon the immediate amenity, neither does it add to cumulative impact in the West End Stress
Area, or indeed undermine the reasons for the Policy.

The Premises operates with a strict membership policy in accordance with the City Council's model
conditions and are therefore premises included in Policy PVC2.

Our client seeks to preserve the history and culture of the Premises as an epicurean member's club,
which for many years has provided a quiet environment for members to meet, converse, work and eat.
Conditions have been sent to the Environmental Health Officer for comment and will follow this letter
later this week.

Page 2 of 3

page 42



Thomas & Thomas

P L6

Please do not hesitate to contact Alun Thomas of this office should you have any queries arising.

urs)faithfully q/\
/ \ \ -

- -

Thomas & Thomas Partners LLP
tell: 020 7042 0413
email: athomas@tandip.com

Encl.

Page 3 of 3

page 43



Introduction.

| have been instructed to carry out observations on Blacks club which is situated at 67, Dean Street,
W1D4QH. | conducted observations between 5pm and 11.45pm on Thursday 16™ October. The
weather was unseasonably warm and dry and the area generally was very busy with the after work

crowd and tourists.

Personal summary — Adrian Studd.

| retired from the police service on 2nd November 2012 having completed 31 years exemplary
service with the Metropolitan Police in London. Between January 2012 and my retirement | was
employed as the Chief Inspector in charge of licensing for the London Olympic Games 2012. In this
role | headed up a team of officers with responsibility for supervision of licensing compliance at all
the Olympic venues, including the Olympic park. In addition | was responsible for ensuring that any
associated events were properly licensed, sufficiently staffed and operated in accordance with the
licensing legislation and best practice in order to ensure the safe and effective delivery of the

Olympic Games.

In addition to leading my team | visited and worked with both the Olympic park management and
many other venues, reviewing their policies and procedures and ensuring that the Games were
delivered safely and securely. The success of this operation not only protected the reputation of the
MPS but provided positive benefits for the profile of the MPS and the United Kingdom. | have been
awarded an Assistant Commissioners Commendation for this work. Prior to this role, between Jan
2002 and January 2012, | was employed first as an Inspector and then as a Chief Inspector on the
MPS Clubs and Vice Unit (Now SCD9 Serious and Organised crime command). My responsibilities
over this period focussed on licensing and included day to day supervision of the licensing team that

had a London wide remit to support the Boroughs with licensing activity.

Providing both Overt and Covert support for policing problem licensed premises across London. My
team worked with premises when licensing issues were identified in order to address these
problems through the use of action plans in order to raise their standards. Where this failed | would
support the Boroughs with evidence for use at review hearings if required. | devised and
implemented the MPS strategy 'Safe and Sound' which seeks to improve the safety of customers at
licensed premises by reducing violent and other crime, in particular gun crime and the most serious
violence. | also developed the Promoters Forum and risk assessment process, together these

initiatives contributed to an overall reduction in violence in London of 5% and of the most serious

1
page 44



violence and gun crime at licensed premises by 20% whilst | was there.

From 2004 until 2008 my role included representing the MPS and ACPO licensing lead both in
London and Nationally. In this role | developed key partnerships with industry, NGOs and
Government departments in order to improve the standards at licensed premises. | sat on the Bl
working party and helped develop the national training for Door Supervisors and worked with the
SIA to successfully introduce the new regime within London. | sat on a humber of Government
working parties and worked closely with the alcohol harm reduction team on identifying best
practice and ensuring this was used both within London and nationally by police and local

authorities.

| have been involved with Best Bar None for a number of years and have successfully helped a
number of boroughs implement the initiative. | am a trained Purple Flag and Best Bar none assessor
and until my retirement sat on the Board for Best Bar None in the Royal Borough of Kensington and
Chelsea. For the last five years | have been in charge of licensing for the Notting Hill Carnival, the
largest street carnival in Europe. During this time | have contributed to a reduction in violence
overall at the Carnival and delivered increased seizures of illegal alcohol, reduction of unlicensed
alcohol sales and a reduction in alcohol related violence. In addition to the above | have attended a
large number of internal MPS training and qualification courses, | am trained in conducting health
and safety risk assessments and hold the National Certificate for Licensing Practitioners, issued by

the British Institute of Inn keeping (BlI).

Following my retirement | set up a licensing consultancy to provide independent advice for premises
requiring a local authority licence. Since then | have provided evidence gathering services and advice
to a broad range of licensed premises on a variety of issues, including crime and disorder, Sexual
Entertainment, street drinking, rough sleepers, age related products, betting and gaming. This work
has involved premises that benefit from licences for activities such as alcohol on and off licences,
betting premises licences, SEV licences and late night refreshment. | have provided expert witness

evidence at both local authority and appeal court hearings.
Contents.

1) Observations.
2) Conclusions.

3) Application to vary licence.

page 45



1) Observations.

1.

| arrived at 17.00 on Thursday 16" October 2014. The weather was unseasonably warm and
dry and Dean Street was busy. Along Dean Street are many bars, clubs and restaurants
which were all busy and most had seating set outside. The atmosphere was busy, loud and

vibrant.

Blacks Club is the centre property of a terrace of 3, to the left is Bourchier Street which is a
well-used cut through from Wardour Street. To the right is Meard Street which is a busy cut
through and pedestrian Street and has two licensed premises in it. | understand that there is

a rear courtyard area behind Blacks but this is not visible from the Street.

The front door to Blacks club was open and | could see that in the hallway there was a
receptionist who was greeting customers as they arrived and they spent a few minutes
talking to her before going on and into the premises. | could see customers seated through
the first floor windows and walking past | could look down and see customers seated in the

basement, they appeared to be working and had papers spread across the table.




4. There was a steady flow of customers going into Blacks during the evening. The front door
remained opened but | could not hear any noise or music escape even when standing
immediately outside. All the customers | saw stopped at the reception area in the hallway

and spoke to the female sat there but | could not hear what was said.

5. The customers going into the club were a wide range of ages and males and females which is
a good indication that it has a broad appeal to members. | did not see any that appeared to
be drunk or were behaving in a loud or boisterous manner. There was no queuing to get into

the premises.

6. Due to the busy nature of Dean Street there was, on occasion, individuals and groups not
connected with the premises standing outside the club chatting. Unlike a large part of Dean
Street the pavement outside Blacks and the adjoining properties is not set out for dining and
is not in front of a restaurant window or entrance, this appears to make it a popular place to

stop and catch up with friends or use the mobile phone.

Dean Street from Meard St. to Bourchier St. 6.53 pm. 16/10/14

page 47



Dean Street, looking towards Bourchier St, the entrance to Blacks is on the right. 6.53pm

16/10/14.

During the course of the evening | saw no more than three people from the club smoking at
any one time outside the premises. These customers were well behaved, speaking in

moderate tones and were not audible above the ambient noise of Dean Street even when |

stood close by.

Smokers outside Blacks, 7.01 pm.



10.

11.

Dean Street and the surrounding premises remained busy all evening with customers sat
outside drinking and dining. The pavement outside Blacks was busy with pedestrians and the
there was a constant stream of vehicles moving along the road. At about 10.30pm there was

a brass band of buskers moving slowly along Dean Street that could be heard above all the

ambient noise.

Qutside dining at the junction with Meard Street, 9.14 pm.

At about 10.30pm | saw a group of four, males and females, attempt to enter Blacks club.
They spoke to the male, who | had seen at the door on a number of occasions, for a minute
or two. | could not hear what was said but he appeared to be explaining that they could not

come in and directed them off along the road.

It was 11pm before Dean Street started to get a little less busy. The bars, restaurants and
pavements were still busy but there were fewer people generally about. There was a slow
exodus of customers coming from Blacks mainly in twos and threes. All customers left
quietly, most walked off along Dean Street. | saw no drunkenness or boisterous behaviour

from any customer leaving the premises.

By 11.45pm it had started to rain a little and nearby restaurants were closing and clearing
away the rubbish. A rubbish collection vehicle moved slowly along Dean Street collecting
sacks and empty bottles in bags. Blacks was quiet and the upstairs lights appeared to have
been turned off. The front door was still open but | could not see any customers inside. Dean

Street was still busy with loud background noise.

6
page 49



2) Conclusion.

12. | did not go inside Blacks Club but based on my knowledge of the area, experience and
observations the premises is well run and attracts a good mix of customers who were well
behaved. There was no escape of noise and | could hear nothing from the premises above

the ambient noise in Dean Street.

13. Externally the premises was well managed, there was no queuing outside with customers
being quickly admitted inside. There were customers smoking outside the premises but only

in small numbers and they did not cause a nuisance.

14. Customers dispersed gradually from the premises and quickly made their way from the
premises. Customers were well behaved there was no noise or boisterous behaviour. During
the latter part of the evening there was a male who appeared to be a member of staff

regularly by the front entrance monitoring the dispersal.

3) Application to vary the licence.

15. | understand that the premises has applied to vary the licence to include the following;

[, Vary the plans to introduce a new bar counter on the ground floor; and
Il.  Vary condition 10 of the premises licence to allow guests of members to purchase their own
alcohol.

16. The important difference between Blacks club and the other licensed premises in the area is
that it is a members club. This application does not change that. Provided the premises
continues to operate as a members club and enforce the membership regulations this
application will have no adverse impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives or on
the area generally.

| understand that my duty is to the court and this report has been prepared in compliance with
that duty. All matters relevant to the issues on which my expert evidence is given have been
included in this report. | believe the facts | state in this report are honest and true and that the
opinions | have expressed are correct to the best of my judgement. The fee for this report is not
conditional on the outcome of the case in anyway whatsoever.

Adrian Studd

Independent Licensing Consultant,
17/10/2014.

page 50



page 51



LR M s AT e AT
PRTE PR AT AL

Ref — Alex Tate

To whorn it may concern,

As aresident of Bourchier Street, located directly behind Blacks Members Club, | highly support any
current and future plans or licence variations the new owners have.

Blacks Club is a Soho Institution and as such needs support on all fronts from tocal residents and
businesses. | have the utmaost canfidence in the new owner and management of the club, all aspects
of the services offered by the club have improved ten fold since the new change of ownership, |
believe the new highlight for the club will be to specialise in great food, wine and classic drinks and
wants to be known as “The Epicurean Club”. | do not befieve Blacks in any way adds to the stress
zone that is Soha in general but is in fact a veritable sanctuary away from the hustle and bustle of the
west end.

In my opinion Blacks has aver the jast 6 months strengthened its membership and door policy and
the management have improved the Bohemian, diverse and select membership hase.

Kind Regards,

Alex Tate

12 Bourchier Street, Suite 6, London, W1D 4HZ UK | T: +44 207 434 0185

www.carnabysales.com
Reglstration No,: 04726332

page 52



..wj

Bas

Ref — Andrew Loveday

To whom it may concern,

As a resident of Bourchier Street, located directly behind Blacks Members Club, | whaleheartedly
support any current and future plans or licence variations the new owners have.

Blacks Club is a longstanding, and respected Soho institution. As a result, it needs support on all
fronts from local residents and businesses, | am entirely canfident in the new owner and
management of the club. The improvements made since their taking over have been revolutionary,
and it is a joy to see this historic members club return to its hay day. | believe the new highlight for
the club will be to specialise in great food, wine and classic drinks and wants to be known as “The
Epicurean Club”. | do not belleve Blacks in any way adds to the stress zone that is Soho in general but
Is in fact a veritable sanctuary away from the hustle and bustle of the west end.

In my opinion Blacks has over the last 6 months strengthened its membership and door policy and
the management have improved the Bohemian, diverse and select membership base.

Kind Regards,

Andrew Loveday

12 Bourchier Street, Suite 8, London, W1D 4HZ UK | T +44 207 434 0185

www.carnabysales.com
Registration No.: 04726332

page 53



From: Richard Beatty <richard @polpo.co.uk>

Date: 15 October 2014 20:53:53 BST

To: Caroline Towning <Caroline@BlacksClub.com>
Subject: Improvements at Black's

To whoever it may concern.

I am a resident of 27a St Anne’s Court, Soho and I own a number of restaurants in the Soho
area including Polpo on Beak Street and Spuntino on Rupert Street. I have also been member
of Blacks since 2005. During that time I had noticed the deterioration of the club and I am
glass to say that there have been a significant number of improvements under the aegis of the
new management.

The Club is now checking the membership of the people coming through the door and
therefore ensures a better atmosphere,

The Club is now generally better run. The new management has invested in the food offer
and the Club now boasts a destination restaurant as well as a more appealing members area.

The new management has invested in a number of new features to ensure that the Club meets
goods health and safety standards.

Noise complaints relating to the Club have fallen dramatically.

The Club is now filling a real niche as it is attracting significant people from London’s
restaurant community.

It is the view of most of the members that prior to April 2014 even though the Club is a Soho
Institution it really wasn’t working and provided poor value for its membership. Since April a
huge number of improvements have been made

at the Club. The Club is now being run to a high professional standard and many of the
changes that have been made will reduce the stress levels on Dean Street and its environs.
Members are asked to leave quietly and non-members are excluded.

I know that Caroline and her team are looking for ways that they can build bridges with the
local community and play their part in ensuring that the impact of the Club on local residents
is minimised and I know that she has made a number of attempts to reach out to local
residents. I am sure that the on-going improvements that are being made will continue to
reduce the impact that the more successful Club will have,

Best wishes

Richard Beatty

page 54



From: Mark Edwards <mark @hardrainproject.com>

Date: 17 October 2014 11:16:14 BST

To: "Caroline @BlacksClub.com" <Caroline @ BlacksClub.com>
Subject: Blacks Club

To whom it may concern,

I'm a long standing member of Blacks. The management have introduced a new door policy
with security and a receptionist to make absolutely sure that only members and their guests
are allowed in to the club. I understand the entrance through the main door was reinstated in
order to reduce noise from the metal steps used in the past. I would also like to add that
members, as well as staff, are very aware of our neighbours and do respect their wishes.

Mark Edwards
Founder Director, Hard Rain Project

Mark Edwards
Hard Rain Project is a charity registered in England.

Charity Number 1153955

199 Shooters Hill Road, London SE3 8UL, UK
+44 (0) 20 8858 8307
+44 (0)77 100 99 818

www.hardrainproject.com
Skype: mark.edwards.hrp
mark@hardrainproject.com

page 55



From: MoSoho <t_shrimplin @themuseumofsoho.org.uk>
Date: 7 October 2014 00:17:21 BST

To: "caroline @blacksclub.com" <caroline @blacksclub.com>
Subject: In Support Of Black's Members Club

Reply-To: MoSoho <t_shrimplin @themuseumofsoho.org.uk>

To whom it may concern.

Having been a member of Black's for over twenty years I can quite comfortably say that if
recent developments are anything to go by Black's is an even more exclusive and discerning
establishment in regards to whom it let's through its hallowed doors than the previous
management ever was.

A very strictly enforced door policy is adhered to by its members and staff.
It has always limited its members to bringing in a maximum of 2 guests unless negotiated

prior to arrival.

Members are not reckless hooligans and generally conduct themselves in a calm and civilized
manner.

Black's is not a dance club nor is it a DJ bar; it promotes the art of conversation in
sympathetic surroundings.

I'look forward to spending the next twenty years in what for me is still the best members club
in Soho.

Your sincerely,

Tony Shrimplin (Chair) | The museum of Soho.

Postal Address: 55 Dean Street | London W1D 6AF | Registered Charity 1003879 The
Museum Of Soho Ltd.

page 56



From: Anna Smith <annasmithjourno @ googlemail.com>
Date: 8 October 2014 11:17:07 BST

To: Caroline Towning <Caroline @blacksclub.com>
Subject: Blacks Club

To whom it may concern,

As a longstanding customer and a member of Blacks | would like to support the

private members' club in its new management and reassure you that the club is more exclusive than
ever. Door staff are particularly diligent these days and | feel reassured that the club only ever admits
carefully vetted members and their guests, all of whom behave with great consideration. It is a
convivial cluband an asset to Soho, and personally it is a valued venue for meeting clients and having
a quiet drink with friends.

Best wishes,

Anna

Anna Smith

Film critic and Acting Film Editor, Metro

Chair of the Critics' Circle Film Section

50A Albert St

London NW1 7NR

Twitter: @annasmithjourno

uk.linkedin.com/infannasmithjourno/

TV showreel:
https://absolutepost.chillivault.tv/pa/384abaS369eabaec9433929e3b534a10/h2641P/Anna_S
mith _Reel mov.mp4

page 57



BLACKS

67 DEAN STREET -

Sourdough breads, organic olive oil,
olives & pickled garlic £7

Starters
Rabbit terrine, pickled carrots & toast £8
Celeriac & English apple soup with toasted hazelnuts* £7
Grilled mackerel with horseradish yoghurt, cucumber, apple & soft herbs £8
Ceps & chanterelles with garlic butter, fried duck egg & crystal bread £10

Mains

Pan-roasted monkfish with crushed avocado, lentils & crispy seeded bread £19

Sirloin steak, triple cooked chips & béarnaise sauce £23

Potimarron squash roasted with garlic & rosemary served with ricotta, |
kale & smoked chestnuts* £14

Roast rump of lamb with crushed potatoes, slow roasted onions & sage £18

Sides

Sweet potato fries £5
Wilted spinach, garlic 0il £5

Rocket, watercress & Parmigiano-Reggiano salad £5

Desserts
Dark chocolate ganache, sea salt crumble & vanilla ice cream* £8
Poached pear with almond sponge & vanilla cream* £8 |
Brown bread ice cream with orange & cinnamon shortbread £6 |

Blacks cheese board, fig chutney & oatcakes £10 |

page 58



- “The Epicurcan Members Club”™

page 59



cian tewnhouse

2 by Jolin

The home of Blac

Street, Built in 177

ed at &7 Dean
\

wprentice o the ighly aodd

Meard. the

N

s L

G ORCE

gthedrall It o

home 0 C Forenuim of
“The Club” was first formed in the 18th century where Samuel Johnson, David
Garrick and Joshua Reynolds formed a supper club where they would meet
and discuss the issues of lhe day with favourable food and wine.

Nearly 300 years later in 1992, "Blacks Club” was founded by Tom Bantock,

a famous Norfolk poacher. It was named Blacks Club as the antithesis to
White's Club, London's oldest gentlemen’s club, it is said thal many Blacks
Club members had been black balled from White's or considered black sheep
of Lhe family. Blacks Club over Lhe nexl 20 years would become

a famously “louche” bohemian drinking den.

In more recent years, with Tom disappearing from the London scene due to
years of over indulgence, Blacks started to rapidly decline. The building had

fallen into dis-repair and was sadly looking overly shabby and become the
forgotten Dame of Soho,

In 2014 with the sad news of Tom Banlock passing, Caroline Towning
purchased Blacks Club with the main aim to restore the shabby building
back to its original Georgian heritage, as well as revitalising the clubs
18" century roots as the original "Supper Club”. Members have
nicknamed this new era as "The New Blacks”

page 60



The Ethos of The New Blacks

Blacks Club has a simple ethos, which is

sation o

The only requirement for membership is thal you are exlraordinarily

interesting and interested.

Blacks is a place to leave your career and ego at the door; it's a place
of simplicity, elegance and honesty. Where members can congregate
to set the world to rights while enjoying the setting of a beautiful 18"

century townhouse

page 61



£

AN
N
w
o
(S

s
o
My
(g
Prominn,
o
Nt
N
s
(s
o
s
St
o
S

Matt Dryden walked through the doors of 67 Dean Street only a few weeks
atter Caroline Towning had purchased Black s. Matt was initially involved
ternporarily to help re-structure the kitchen team and menu, he soon found

himsell falling in love with Blacks and Lhe vision for Lhe ulure,

Matt has great pedigree, for the past 10 years he has gained enviable experience
passing through some of London's finest kilchens such as Petrus lunder Marcus

Wareing), Texture and more recently as Sous Chef at Dabbous

Matl has found his home behind the stoves as the Head Chel, leading a greal

tearn with passion for developing a new menu and direction for the food

page 62



The club is currently undergoing a subtle refurbishment with future plans
to develop a new kitchen, a new bar, gaining an upper level and building
a whimsical garden in the back where members can enjoy a smoke or

lounging by the fire enjoying a drink while gazing out into the garden.

Itis an exciting time for all who are part of The New Blacks - we are excited
about the new love and excitement for a club that has spent the last few

years being losl in an ever-changing Soho.

=1

page 63



page 64



Patel, Bina

From: Alun Thomas [Athomas@tandtp.com]
Sent: 23 October 2014 10:03

To: ‘David Bieda'

Cc: Patel, Bina

Subject: RE: Blacks

Dear David

Thank you very much indeed for your prompt reply.

The purpose of the test is obviously to enquire as to whether there is any noise breakout through the party
wall. The survey can take place at whatever place and time you think appropriate and convenient. I
understand either this or next week is not convenient for you.

The system is a “sonos” based wireless system which are controlled through an electronic system.
I look forward to discussing your concerns before the hearing if that is possible.

Yours sincerely

Alun Thomas
Partner

Thomas & Thomas Partners LLP
38a Monmouth Street
London WC2H 9EP

D: 02070420412

M: 07956 805464

T:020 7042 0410

F: 02073796618

E: athomas@tandtp.com
W: www.tandtp.com

@B

APAPTENG, GALALIFICA TV, Ao LICTWRED PR

APPROVED TG ADMINISTER
TOP TIER BIIAB QUALIFICATIONS

Thomas & Thomas Partners LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (number OC363873) and regulated and authorised by the
Solicitors Regulation Authority (number 561362). A list of members is open to inspection at the registered office at 38a Monmouth Street, London WC2H 9EP,
The term partner is used to refer to a member of Thomas & Thomas Partners LLP. VAT registration number GB 115 8839 92.

As this email and the information it contains are confidential and may be privileged, please notify us immediately if you have received this email in error. You
should not copy it for any purpose, or disclose its contents to any other person. Internet communications are not secure and therefore Thomas & Thomas
Partners LLP does not accept legal responsibility for the contents of this message as it has been transmitted over a public network. If you suspect the message
may have been intercepted or amended, please call the sender.

page 65



From: David Bieda [mailto:db@sixty8.com]
Sent: 21 October 2014 23:35

To: Alun Thomas
Cc: Jack Spiegler; 'Patel, Bina'
Subject: RE: Blacks

Alun,

I was out of London & then had a meeting with your clients.

What is the purpose of this acoustic test & how will it measure base sounds? Where would it be taken?
What is the proposed sound equipment in Blacks which, I assume, will create the sound?

I have building works here this week & possibly early next week, so it would not be a suitable moment for
any acoustic tests.

I have copied this to Ms. Patel in case this matter arises at the hearing.

I hope this email finds you well,

Best regards,

David Bieda

From: Alun Thomas [mailto: Athomas@tandtp.com]
Sent: 21 October 2014 16:30

To: David Bieda

Cc: Jack Spiegler

Subject: Blacks

David

I have obviously seen your representation in respect of the above premises.

If it would help to have a meeting to discuss your concerns, please let me know. In the meantime, I would
like to arrange an acoustic test at your premises on Wednesday or Thursday this week and 1 would be
grateful if you could let me know if this would be convenient so I can make the appropriate arrangements.
Could you do 10 AM this Wednesday?

I hope you are well.

Yours sincerely

Alun

page,66



APPENDIX B1

CITY OF WESTMINSTER MEMORANDUM
TO Licensing Officer

REFERENCE 14/07347/LIPV

FROM EH Consultation Team .

BEING DEALT WITH BY Cliona Coleman (ccoleman@westminster.gov.uk)
TELEPHONE 020 7641 6830

DATE 16" September 2014

The Licensing Act 2003

Basement To First Floor 67 Dean Street London W1D 4QH

| refer to the application for variation of the Premises Licence.

The applicant is seeking the following:
1. To introduce a new bar counter on the Ground Floor
2. To allow guests of members to purchase their own alcohol

| wish to make the following representation

1. No objection is made to the change of layout as outlined in the drawings submitted
with the application. New plans of the ground floor are submitted reference same
as previous plans submitted to this office showing the new bar counter.

2. Representation is made as the proposed amendment of the condition will result in
public nuisance in the West End stress area.

Although no objection is being made to the change of layout of the ground floor condition
12 only has capacities for ground floor and first floor, this appears to be an omission with
regards to the capacity in the basement. Applicant is asked to clarify whether the fire
brigade has provided a capacity for the basement.

Should you wish to discuss the matter further please do not hesitate to contact me.

Cliona Coleman
Environmental Health Officer

page 67



CITY OF WESTMINSTER MEMORANDUM

TO Licensing Officer

REFERENCE 14/07347/LIPV

FROM EH Consultation Team

BEING DEALT WITHBY Cliona Coleman (ccoleman@westminster.gov.uk)
TELEPHONE 020 7641 6830

DATE 22" October 2014

The Licensing Act 2003

Basement To First Floor 67 Dean Street London W1D 4QH

In addition to the inspectors report please see below recent noise history:

Sunday 10" August 2014 @ 17:42 Loud music coming from pub next door. Complainant
contacted @ 18:20 and visited. Very loud bass heavy music heard while standing in
customers property. Loudest in the basement where some bass elements of music were
causing vibration through party wall and detectable when touching the mantelpiece. Also
very intrusive on ground floor. Statutory Nuisance notice to be served.

Tuesday 19" August 2014 @ 21:10 Environmental Protection Act 1990, Section 80.
Noise Abatement Notice hand delivered - received by David Seccombe (General
Manager.

If you have any questions piease do not hesitate to contact.

Cliona Coleman
EHCT

page 68



Black’s, 67 Dean Street, W1, West End Ward, 26.09.2014 23:29 hrs

Black’s Private Member's club has applied to Westminster Council to vary their
Premises Licence as follows: (1) Introduce a new bar counter on the Ground Floor and
(2) Allow guests of members to purchase their own alcohol. The last date of objection is
the 29" of September 2014.

We watched the outside of the venue for a few minutes prior to entry. The front door
(on the plans The Residential Entrance) was wide open. The Club Entrance on the
plans was not in use and the gate leading to the basement stairs at the front of the
venue was secured with a bungee cord. There were two ground floor windows open
and one window open on the first floor. The Blue Variation Notice was still in situ on the
front fence. We entered the front door (Residential Entrance) un-opposed and walked
through the vestibule to the small reception desk. There was no signage on the door
'ENTER CLUB BY BASEMENT as per the plans. The members signing in book was
facing us and open at today’s date. Seated behind the small desk was a White Female.
We introduced ourselves and showed our identity badges. We asked to speak with the
DPS. She informed us that he was not on duty and summoned a Duty Manager, Matt. |
had dealt with Matt on my first visit to the venue five weeks ago, which was
unsatisfactory. | explained to Matt why we were there and he phoned the DPS-who
was nearby-and informed us that he would be there in 15 minutes. We checked the
membership book and there had been 28 (twenty-eight) members in that day and 29
(twenty-nine) guests. Matt asked if he could check ‘his restaurant’ and went upstairs.
When he returned we asked Matt to accompany us to the Basement fioor. We had with
us the plans for the venue. It was apparent that the activities in the basement had
changed from that on the plans. We marked the changes on the plans in red ink. On
checking the Fire Exit-which is the Club Entrance marked on the plans, we found it to be
blocked with bottles and Cooking Oil. The Fire Exit was impassable. Matt cleared the
obstructions immediately. There was a sign on the fire Exit door,” IT IS FORBIDDEN
TO TAKE DRINKS OUTSIDE-NO SMOKING ON THE STAIRS’. The area marked on
the plans ‘DINING AREA’ is now a ‘LOUNGE AREA'. There were 12 ( twelve) persons
seated around tables in the basement. There were bottles of wine on the tables and no
food. There is also a small bar stocked with Spirits and other alcoholic drinks which we
marked on the plans. Behind the small bar counter was a Till. The Chef was cleaning
the kitchen which was closing. The plans show the whole of the basement as being

page 69



covered for licensable activities. We then went up to the Ground Floor. The area
marked on the Plans as being ‘DINING AREA’ is now a LOUNGE AREA'. There were
19 (nineteen) people seated at tables in the now ‘LOUNGE AREA'. There was alcohol
on all tables and no food. We then checked the ‘COURTYARD’. This is area is even
smaller than on the plans as there is now a storage shed, which we marked on the
plans. The DPS had joined us by this stage. We went up to the First floor. The area
marked on the plans as ‘READING ROOMS (NO FOOD NO MUSIC)’ is now the main
DINING AREA. There are 7 (seven) tables and 22 (twenty two) chairs in this part of the
1t Floor. In the area next to the Hoist on the plans, there are 2(two) tables and 11(
eleven) chairs. In the smali area at the rear of the 18! floor there is one table and three
chairs as well as the Bed. There were 7 (seven) persons on the 1%t floor. We then
discussed a few matters with the DPS. The change of entrance came into force in June
2014. He confirmed that Dining was now on the 1% Floor and only Bar snacks are
available in the basement and on the Ground Floor. There is no sound limiter, but the
Club have purchased a hand held sound recorder and will be using that in the future.
There is no live music as a rule, only background music. The kitchen closes at 22:30
hours.

Condition 12 on the current licence indicates that the capacity for the Ground and First
floors are 30 (thirty) on each. These figures include staff.

Condition 13 (i) (a) restricts the sale/supply of alcohol on weekdays to 23:00 hrs.

Condition 13 (ii) which relates solely to the Basement and Ground Floor reads; Alcohol
may be sold or supplied for one hour following the hours set out above (70:00 -23:00)
...... to persons taking table meals in the premises in a part of the premises usually set
aside for the service of such persons and for consumption by such a person in that part
of the premises as an ancillary to his meal

Condition 13 (jii) (a) reads: ‘Alcohol may be sold or supplied until 01:00 in the morning
following weekdays....... by persons taking table meals in the premises in a part of the
premises usually set apart for the service of such persons and for consumption by that
person in that part of the premises as an ancillary to his meal’.

13 (iii) (b) reads: ‘That part of the premises must also be used for the provision of
entertainment by persons present and performing to which the sale or supply of alcohol
is also ancillary’.

page 70



13 (iii) (c) reads: ‘The alcohol must be sold or supplied at a time before (i) the provision
of entertainment by persons present and performing or (ii) the provision of substantial
refreshment, has ended...’

13 (iii) (d) reads: ‘This condition does not authorise any sale or supply to any person
admitted to the premises either after midnight (23:00 on Sunday) or less than half an
hour before the entertainment is due to end, except in accordance with condition 12 (ii)
above.

The above hour cannot be used as the kitchen closes at 10:30, and there is no
live entertainment. The Dining room has also been moved from the basement to
the first floor.

page 71



BracksLTn,

67 DRAN STREET, LONDONWIV.SHD TEL:-020728% 3381

CONVERSION OF EXISTING LICENCE

Legund

“EITE BOUNDARY, : :

Al doors, wallls, partitions, sereens wnd Alaznng shown in
thick blaztk linea on plen.comply with the definition of FIRE
RERIBTING, -

=B Fira Alarn Call Print with Fim Action sign adjacont,

FFF Limars which are fran from a) Funtoningu (othar than & balf
or rollur fasinning arwlever handlod Istch). In order

‘ensure that these doors are aiways avallable for nscape
from glther sida,

Conlrel Pensl Boundsrs.

‘Gantral Panol Saunders and lliuminaied sighuls,
MENVIER MF8308 Fire Alarm Convolier fo

‘BS 5839 Bt1:1988

Daor assumbly, which is abls t resist the phgsage of
nrnoke whon teabad it accurdsnen with the 3ifinh
Standzrd in foroe etine date of nsanulaatire, and is .5 12
‘hotie fira nesistant self clouing firo duor,

Arod coverud with o pystem of Exsapo Lightitrg trimt
ltiuminmtas the aren upon faliure of te normal Tigghting
<Powor supply, e sufiisisn sindan 1o srable poreans
todenve the.ares safoly. The assnpo iphting systen
coplorme 1 the Brilish Smodurd corent at b tmme ol

prey

! LINTNGE A IREA {
22,86 sqm
Now: R Coy D

@ Fire

Firg

c|

% ey

Araas coverad by Aomatic Smake Dotactorg,

e - )
K/ Raris.af pmmisen notcavored hy this applisation, }
SN d

A Wawr Fim Extingurshar (8 lire wxpacity)

é;\_ ‘Carbon Dioxidn Fire Extngulsher {?.'Mlagmm_ eapacily)

' anda surlllicate ta that elive! s Keot on the

i,
‘Area eoversd by an Autoratic Heat Dotozyr,

Blanket in containar.

ouruin to gas firas.

M (R R
< Lo LI

FRONT AREA : i

e XY

Aren bonvath stair faved with 142 hr. fice tesinting materisl,
A~ BIGN = "MIND YOUR HEAD" . . .
SIGN = "THIS GATE TO RE LOCKED OPEN WHILST-PREMISES )‘»/

ARE IN UsE”
MINIMUBM EXTMDTH tHROUGHOU T = B50mm

Fire Notives

iviE smn'.aqfs, )
8.7 sgm _

-natizesy conform 4o the Briteh Stendard for Bighs
‘slze of Inttering is at tndicated beiow,

Bowe fiku: this el sipns. The'following codes
thow the wording displaysd o the notices, Al

aurrant st the deto of inotel nnd the

Adc'lmnml Notes

' : ; (B2} () Dirncions).amow. y e
' ; o . wg G .. leftering Size - |
i SN Tose 1. Bz FIRE EXIT,EMERGENGY EXIT,. . _ 7eram
- L ; i = | - e o or:EX) T noticn gr@pﬁ!g:;ym?@n_l.'f
Wil . L | GRS ;] 'FIRE DOOR KEEP SHUT.” T8mm
‘]‘THEMA::IMUMNUMEER'DP PERSONS |INGLUDING STAFF] TG BE AGGOMMODATED AT —] = Vo ST e
ANY ONE TIMEIN THE BASEMENT SHOULD NOT EXSEED . 40 W | (Em FIRE DOOR-KEEP LOCKIED, . R2mm

. LI BASEMENT LEVEL PLAN A8 EXISTING, SCALE-1:100

page 72

" GorDoN .S_‘rm!i-‘r. MeLean Juiy 2005 ° Mopie- 07805 180237




&7 DEAN STREET, LONDON W.:l»\? SHD TEL:- 0207 287 3381
CONVERSION OF EXISTING LICENCE

SITE AOUNDARY.
\ : .

G| [STeeate $vEw
jarfd

L B reaion

= . ¥

g TOURTYARD
5

Bk

=

‘B

=

&

-

T i Il
5
o Holst)
= |
BTAIRWELL . __ _FEE(f i
wiEle 7 )

/ESTIBULE "DINING AREA '

&) . 538 sqm - <] [~ g

e fEoosse asgd L
% SINTRERG 18-

i}

X

) -

Legend

All duars, yelis, partitions, screens andg plazing shawn in
thick binak lines on plan comply with the definllian of FIRE
RESISTING.

&2} Firo Alarm Call' Foinl will Fire Action eigh abmeont

‘FFE Doornwhich aru-ires from o fastersngs (other than o .ball
arralior fastening or.a jovar handied latoh), narder o
anwure that theae doors are.aiways avaliable lor aucHpo
fram althisr sido.

B Contral Panp! Bouhders.

Control Pansl Soutiters ond lurinatad slonals.
MENWVIER MFEI08 Fira Alarm Conailber to

B BOAD P eos

B Door assambly, which I ablo o rosst thn paranpe af
smoke whan tesind I seoordance with the britsh
Standnrd inforee atthe dato of manufachire, ard ie 102
heur fire rozistant self clowng fire duor,

Arod | with o nyatom of Eesaps Lighting that
Niuminatos tha nroo upan failurae of te Fommm) finhting
paweor supsly, t o cuflliclont standard to snuble iharsons

“toloave the Oroe salely. Thwsscape lighting rystom
cantonms o the Brikch Stondand currsnt attm tme of is
installation und a-cartfieato 1o tha eftect i Kopt on the
Praimised,

‘Aran covernd by an Automalic Hoat Detector,

5] Aras eoverad by Aulomatc Bmaks Deteetyrs,
T e T T —
s -’ Rartsof pramiese not covared by. s application.

X \ S

Water Fira Extinguishor, {8 liva capacily)
Gorbon Dinkide Fire Extinguistwr, (2 kiloprarn o pacity)
‘Flre Blankat in eoptainer,

--.n. Firm curtain to gag firas.

-~ Noms 2] P y
—BIGN = "ENTER CLUB BY BASEMENT" , ML 2 10§

. RESIDENTIALENTRANGE
Tl NOW paag
L Lol Ens vy

) ~ i

cLﬁﬁ'an‘rﬁ'hN::gf ,
AT SEeuiEg:
LN A

 "MINIMUR EXIT WIDTH THROUGHOU'T = 850mm

Fire Nollces
| [E33] "Boxms like this indicute signs. The following rodec
= “ahawthie warding dispinyed on the notcog, Al
i nnticos eanfort 1 the British Standurd tar alpne
sumentat the dom of | llatian and the mini i

uiza of lotuting s an |ndnaplud beslaw,

Addliona) Notea
(@) Diractional atrow, | -
- Lettering Sz

ST REET i - : ‘
Tal. T A FIREEXTEMERGENCY.EXIT ©  * 76mm
) Y e i or BXIT nolce g::_uphlo aymbol, 4
e = 5 T 'FIRE DODR KEEP BHUT. trem
|, THE MAXIMUN NUMBER OF PERSONS INCLUDING STAFF] TO BE AGCOMMODATEDLAT | ‘ il L
| ANY GNE TIME ON THE GROUND ook SHOULED NOT ) 0 PERSONG. -FIREDQDR-KEER LOCKE, 22mm i

p— —
s V= g .
i > & L

«Ex;sma. Sc;xi.l::—_l:ldo




t BLACKST.TD.
67 DEAN STREET, LONDON WIV:SHD TEeL:- 0207 287 3381
CONVERSION OF EXISTING LICENCE

SHE aouNmav\ (Lepend
i All duers, walls, partitions, screens and pla3ing ahown in
. thiok black linan un ptan comply with thu dofinktion of FIRE
| RESIBTING,
== Fire Alarm Gall Point with fire Aclionsign udjnesnt

FFF Doore which aze res from all fastenings (athar than o ball
or rollsr fastoning ara lever handied (atoh). tnorderto
Bneurm thit thowo doorm nm alwayw Bvailable for vscape

from aithar elde,
[E] Control Panel Sounders,
r—==1 Cormral Panol Saunderc and Nluminatet signale,
MENVIER MF9308B Firs Awrm CGontoller to
v Vi . as 5838 P11;1988
‘BTAIRWELL [ . 5 Door assarntly, whish (o nble 10 rasict tho pansage of
i 0\ NI : smoke whan teutud In.neoordance with the British
- - ¢ Swndarx in foree at the dote of menutectur, and i e 172
r—"}— A ‘- E’ pt . . hour fire resistant eoll clomng Brn door,
i 3
| : e Aran d with o systom of Exsape Lighting that
L Holat 5 iuminates thn ras upon filure of 16 nomal lighting
. p ".JA‘_;“ (—j:.‘ pawnr supply, o 1 etffisiont standerd to enabie pefeann
| I D b o b R ) o leavn the eron safuly. Thnnssapa lighting nysten)
t A | A N canfortm to.the Brivah Stmndurd curentat tho bmp of its
L i 1 (o] instullntion ane n cortificate o that olluct i kapt on the
[T (%1 jﬂ TFFT i promicas
% i e . i . i} Aren covored by an Automutic Heat Detactor,
; i
;513 5 i b [ﬂ Arexs covarad by Autormane Emoka Datectrs,
1. Li_s", s 3 =
k r 3 E} . b ) s Partz of promisae not coversd by this application. | /
—§ o — : L AN
FTAsLES will o — : —
f A ¢ § DN Vs Fire Extinguisher. (0 hire capncity)
23 Cifidr )fj 'READING ROOMS ,‘?L : !
e (ND FOOD NG MUSICY A Carbon Dioxids Firs Extinguishat. (2:Kiopmm capacry)

61.75 sgm
N (O S TUR Y AN A\ Fice Blanket tn container,
‘Q—’ CONN veiemes Fire curtin © gas fires,

b Notus )
= BiBN = "IN CASE OF FIRE-AN ESCAPE TO THE RQOF,[8
"\, AVAILABLE ON TOP FLOOR"

| i 8IGH = "FRIVATE PROPERTY NO'ENTRY EXCEPT IN FIRE

L o g X ' EMERGENCY This le nota patt of Blooks Ciub, Plaase respact

v ‘thm Tenants-privacy*

MINIMUM EXIT WIDTH THROUGHOUT = B50mm
[Fire Nofices R
. oas } E ‘Boxes like thix Indisate signs. The following codes
' g 1= . show the dieg o yad on the A1 .

| ! Mok noticas conform o tne Briteh: Standard for sipns

e P - ‘eurrant at the date of instaliaton and the mi

: =i B i sizn of letbering s as (ndicated bolkow,

“Addittonal Nates

b R 1 ! : : | e (8) Dinaetional arrow. -
v DEAN] BSTREET ; AR L] % . : Letiering Size
i 3l o S PR F T SFIRE EXIT, EMERGENCY EXIT . Yenm
s & . ~er EX|T:hotite graphic aymbaol.

¥ ' - z iEEE] FIRE DOOR KEEP SHUT. 16mm
THE MAXIMUM NUMBER DF PEREONS [INGLUDING STAFF] T BE ACCOMMODATED AT | I S b % ;
AN ONE TIME ON THE FIRST FLODR SHOULD NOT EXCEED 30 MERUONE. * e ] 514 FIRE DOOR KEER LOCKED. 22mm H
T ] - L 5 . . : ¥

A e e 13- FIRST FLOOR PLANAS EXISTING. SCALE-1:100

GORDAN STUART MG.LEAN- JULY 2005 ‘MoRILE:- 07805 190 237

page 74




We left the venue at 23:29 hours.

McVitie and Hayes

page 75



CITY OF WESTMINSTER MEMORANDUM

TO Licensing Officer

REFERENCE 14/07347/LIPV

FROM EH Consultation Team

BEING DEALT WITH BY  Cliona Coleman (ccoleman@westminster.gov.uk)
TELEPHONE 020 7641 6830

DATE 23" October 2014

The Licensing Act 2003

Basement To First Floor 67 Dean Street London W1D 4QH

| understand there has been new owners from April 2014, since then there has been a
noise abatement notice served on Tuesday 8" August 2014 which was hand delivered
and received by David Seccombe (General Manager).

Additionally the report by the licensing inspectors has shown the premises to be
operated differently by the new owners.

Environmental Health therefore propose these conditions for this application. (Please
Note: Conditions 1,2 and 3 below replaces conditions 10, 11 on the current license and
condition 4 below replaces existing condition 12 on the current license):

1.

Alcohol may only be sold for consumption by members of a private club and their
bona fide guests not exceeding 4 guests per member. No person shall be
admitted to membership of the private club or be entitled to take advantage of any
of the privileges of membership without an interval of at least 48 hours between
their nomination or application for membership and their admission.

A list of the names and addresses of members of the Club shall be kept on the
premises at all times together with a book showing the names and dates of
attendance of any guests introduced by members. Both the list and the book shall
be produced on demand for inspection by the police or an authorised officer of the
Council.

Guests of members can only purchase alcohol whilst that member is present on
the premises.

The number of persons accommodated at any one time (including staff) shall not
exceed the following:

First Floor- 30 persons

Ground Floor — 30 persons
Basement — 30 persons

page 76



5. No drinks shall be consumed outside the premises nor glasses/bottles removed
from the premises by patrons when leaving.

6. A noise limiter must be fitted to the musical amplification system set at a level
determined by and to the satisfaction of an authorised officer of the Environmental
Health Service, Premises Management so as to ensure that no noise nuisance is
caused to local residents or businesses. The operational panel of the noise limiter
shall then be secured by key or password to the satisfaction of officers from the
Environmental Health Service and access shall only be by persons authorised by
the Premises Licence holder. The limiter shall not be altered without prior
agreement with the Environmental Health Service. No alteration or modification to
any existing sound system(s) should be effected without prior knowledge of an
authorised Officer of the Environmental Health Service. No additional sound
generating equipment shall be used on the premises without being routed through
the sound limiter device.

7. No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted
through the structure of the premises which gives rise to a nuisance.

8. Loudspeakers shall not be located in the entrance lobby or outside the
premises building.

9. All windows and external doors shall be kept closed after 21:00 hours, or at
any time when regulated entertainment takes place, except for the immediate
access and egress of persons.

10. Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, e.g. to
smoke, shall not be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with them.

11.The garden area shall cease to be used after 21:00 hours.

12.A Challenge 21 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where the
only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification
cards, such as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the PASS
Hologram.

13.During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure
sufficient measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or
accumulating from customers in the area immediately outside the premises, and
that this area shall be swept and or washed, and litter and sweepings collected
and stored in accordance with the approved refuse storage arrangements by
close of business.

14. Notices shall be prominently displayed at any area used for smoking requesting
patrons to respect the needs of local residents and use the area quietly.

15. After 23.00 hours patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the
premises, e.g. to smoke, shall be limited to 10 persons at any one time.

16.The means of escape provided for the premises shall be maintained unobstructed,

free of trip hazards, be immediately available and clearly identified in accordance
with the plans provided.

page 77



17.The variation of the Premises Licence (14/07347/LIPV) will have no effect until the
Licensing Authority are satisfied that the premises is constructed or altered in
accordance with the appropriate provisions of the District Surveyor's Association —
Technical Standards for Places of Entertainment and the reasonable requirements
of Westminster Environmental Health Consultation Team, at which time this
condition will be removed from the Licence.

Cliona Coleman

Environmental Health

page 78



Your
Our 14/07347/LIPV

Date: 8th September, 2014

APPENDIX B2

METROPOLITAN
METROPOLITAN POLICE
SERVICE

Constable Sandy Russell 4167CW
Westminster Police Licensing Unit
Westminster City Hall

Fourth Floor

64 Victoria Street

London

SW1E 6QP

Telephone: 020 7641 1705
mob

Facsimile: 020 7641 4236
Email:srusseli@westminster.gov.uk

Application for a Premises Licence Variation: Blacks, 67 Dean Street, W1.

Dear Ms Hepworth

With reference to the above application, | am writing to inform you that the
Metropolitan Police, as a responsibie authority, will be objecting to this application. It
is our belief that if granted the application would undermine the Licensing Objectives.

The venue is situated within the West End Stress Area, a locality where there is
traditionally high crime and disorder. There are concerns that this application will
cause further policing problems in an already demanding area.

It is for this reason that we are objecting to the application.

Should you wish to discuss the matter further please contact me on 0207 641 3179

or via email srussell@westminster.gov.uk

Yours sincerely

Sandy Russell.

page 79



13/10/2014 10:59:52 APPEN DIX BB

From: "David Gleeson" <dgleeson@live.co.uk>

Sent; 29/09/2014 01:34:27

To: Premises Licensing

Cc: Gary Hayes; John Raynham; Margaret Bloomer, Marina Tempia; Richard Utting; Richard Brown
Subject: Objection: 14/07347/LIPV - Black's, 67 Dean Street, Soho W1

Objections

Westminster Licensing Service
4th Floor (West) City Hall

64 Victoria Street

London SWME 6QP

29 September 2014

Dear Sir/Madam
Ref: 14/07347/LIPV Black’s, 67 Dean Street, Soho W1
Iw rite to make a relevant representation to the above application on behalf of the Soho Society.

The Soho Society is a charitable company limited by guarantee established in 1972. The Society is a recognised amenity society and w as formed to make
Soho a better place to live, w ork or visit by preserving and enhancing the area’s existing diversity of character and uses, and by improving its facilities,
amenities and environment. In particular, the Society supports the City Council’s policies, including the cumulative impact policy, as set out in the Statement of
Licensing Policy.

The Society objects to this application as it is currently presented, on the grounds of prevention of public nuisance, prevention of crime and disorder and
cumulative impact in the West End Stress Area.

The appiication seeks to introduce a new bar counter on the ground floor of the premises and to allow guests of members to purchase alcohol. These tw o
aims raise concerns about the premises. | understand that since its inception over tw enty years ago, Black's has operated as a private members club w hich,
unlike similar establishments, currently allow s members to introduce as many guests as they please. Recently the entrance to the premises has been moved
from the basement — w hich preserved an air of club exclusivity — to the ground floor. To introduce a new bar at ground level, with a new entrance that, we
hear from residents, is often left open, will likely encourage many more guests w ho will all be able to purchase alcohol. This will therefore add to the
cumulative impact on this particular stretch of Dean Street, w hich will be hugely unfair to residents living close by. The house immediately alongside Black's —
68 Dean Street — is residential and the ow ner has suffered from noise nuisance fromthe premises for the last few years. | believe residents in Meard and
Bourchier Streets are also complaining of noise nuisance. Earlier this month, Westminster served a noise abatement notice on the premises (14/26829/ENAC).

This area has been identified by the City Council (2.4.1 of the Statement of Licensing Policy, as amended) as under stress because the cumulative effect of
the concentration of late night and drink led premises and night cafes has led to serious problems of disorder and/or public nuisance affecting residents,
visitors and other businesses.

The policies in relation to the Stress Areas are directed at the global and cumulative effects of licences on the area as a w hole (2.4.5 of the Policy). The
policies are intended to be strict and will only be overridden in genuinely exceptional circumstances (2.4.2 of the Policy). The grow th in the entertainment
industry in Soho has led to a marked deterioration in the quality of life and w ell-being of local residents and it has jeopardised the sustainability of the
community. Soho has a substantial residential community and many of these residents suffer from problems such as, but not limited to, high levels of noise
nuisance, problems w ith w aste, urinating and defecating in the streets, threats to public safety, anti-social behaviour, crime and disorder and the change in
character of historic areas.

For the reasons | have set out, w e believe that the application, if granted in its present form, w ould fail to promote the licensing objectives of prevention of
public nuisance and prevention of crime and disorder. | respectfully urge the Sub-Committee to reject this application. |
Yours faithfully,

David Gleeson

Licensing Chair, The Soho Society
55 Dean Street

e 80
C:\Users\bpatel AppData\ Local\ Microsoft\ Windows\ Temporary InterEt)ataF%s\ Content.|[ES\PF3BXEC1\3537701[1].msg
page #1



APPENDIX B4
LICENSE APPLICATION 14/07347/LIPV

BLACKS CLUB BASEMENT TO FIRST FLOOR 67 DEAN STREET LONDON W1D 4QH

OBJECTION TO THE APPLICATION

David Bieda 67 Dean Street London W1D 4QJ

In making this objection I do wish the new owners well; as long as Blacks reverts to its former incarnation
as a quiet member club for members & up to two guests.
Reasons for Objecting: '

I object to this application as it will not, in my view, forward the Licensing Objectives, and in particular
“The prevention of public nuisance.” As the current license does not restrict the number of guests a member
may introduce the current application will enable members to introduce unlimited numbers of guests. This
may be ideal for an events venue. Whilst there is no legal definition of what constitutes a ‘club’ I assume I
must involve a degree of exclusivity or it would, in effect, become a form of bar. Such a change will in my
view increase the amount of alcohol consumed, is likely to increase the number of ‘events’ and will

exacerbate existing public nuisance issues. The nearby Groucho Club only allows two guests per member.
Vi

’ o
Crowd outside Blacks. Note windows open as no air conditioning.

Locus:

I am the owner occupier adjacent to Blacks and have lived here since August 3™ 1993 which was the time
when Blacks opened. I was one of the key-holders until recently & had to attend many times during the
night to turn the fire alarm off due to activities by one of the elderly tenants. In return I was made an
honorary member. The third floor was occupied by Edith Stewart and the second by Gino Santinelli, both
borne there and have been residential since ¢.1732. I understand that the new owners have turned the 2™
floor into an office.

Recent Changes in the nature of the operation:

Until about 3 years ago Blacks was an exemplary operation for an adjacent resident. However when new
investors were brought in the nature of the club changed with frequent events often very noisy with loud
music and much noise outside. I attach (ATTACHMENT 1) a log I have kept giving an indication of these
issues. It did appear that many of those attending were not members. There are no restrictions on Black’s
license as to the number of guests a member may introduce. There are also no restrictions as to the playing
of amplified music, such as ‘quiet background music only’, nor are there any restrictions as to private

page 81



entertainment. Is this a suitable license for ‘club’ in an 18c timber frame house with residential above and
adjacent?

Which Licensing Policies Apply? ‘

There are events planned for October 8, 13" 14® 30™ and 31%. T am not objecting to these per se but they
raise the above issue, especially as it then becomes unclear which policies apply in relation to the Stress
Area? Which policies should adjacent residents refer to? Is this an events venue or a private members club?

The current application & confusing issues.
There are a number of issues which appear to need clarification.

1.

The plan attached to the application has the 10+ year old postcode and it is unclear whether the rear
yard is part of the licensed area? Its recent use under the new owners is causing a public nuisance to
residents in Meard Street;

The plan submitted states ‘GROUND FLOOR PLAN AS EXISTING” yet is appears it might be the
plan as proposed as it shows a bar in the ground middle room where there is none at present. Which
is it?

The above plan shows the basement as the club entrance and the ground floor as the residential
entrance. In fact Blacks recently (about 6 weeks ago) changed to having their entrance on the ground
floor with the front door open at all times. Should there not be an application for this alteration? The
past arrangement was to safeguard the 2" & 3" floor residential. If this is a private members club
why have the front door open at all times?

License conditions 12 (ii) & 12 (iii) allow an additional hour for the sale of alcohol for the dining
area — yet the plan submitted shows that area on the ground floor when, in fact, it is now on the first
floor. Should there not have been an application for variation? Does this mean the plan submitted is
in fact inaccurate?

Should the plans submitted show all the area’s they occupy as they now appear to occupy the g
floor residential? Should their current planning application (14/09055/LBC) also be a variation?

New ‘open door’ policy unlike any other club in Soho or possibly London.

page 82



Current License conditions & permitted hours.

As far as I can understand the current license it is License conditions 12 (ii) & 12 (iii) which allow an
additional hour for the sale of alcohol. Possibly the unrestricted nature of ‘private entertainment’ also allows
these additional hours, but if this is the case is this a private members club or an entertainment venue?
S.12a (i) Sets out the hours alcohol may be supplied & they are: Weekdays (appears to include
Saturdays which is not a weekday) 10.00 — 23.00 & Sundays 10.00 - 22.30;

S.12a (ii) Appears to allow the above for a further hour, i.e. weekdays Midnight & Sundays 23.30 for
‘persons taking table meals in the premises in a part of the premises usually set apart for the service of such
persons and for the consumption by such a person in that part of the premises as an ancillary to his meal.’

See below under ‘entertainment’. It is unclear from the application what area is ‘sef apart’ for dining. It was
the ground floor (as on the plan submitted) but I gather is now the first floor. Were the applicants to claim
that meals can be served wherever, then the license needs to be altered | reviewed.

Then there are two sections b and ¢ referring to ‘...the provision of entertainment’. Does this mean that the
hours are extended by an hour when there is ‘entertainment’? If not what does it mean?

Under the section headed NOTE — there are a number of provisions a — ¢ which are difficult to understand.
Which hours to they refer to? 12a (i) or 12a (ii) - the extended hours?

In my view this license should have conditions attached such as below:-

[

Quiet background music only, not be heard outside the premises or in adjacent premises;
There should be some form of restriction on ‘entertainment’ as the house is not sound-proofed and
loud music with windows open in the summer causes a public nuisance;

b

3. Members may only bring in two guests who’s names shall be recorded in the entrance book;
4. The rear yard may not be used as this causes a nuisance to neighbouring residential in Meard Street;
5. Alcohol may not be taken off the premises (to prevent outside nuisance);
6. Various clauses to be clarified for all concerned, in particular the extended hours in Para’s 12a1) &
i1).
David Bieda
26 09 14
BLACKS LOG
EVENT DATE ISSUE
Event with band 300612 Band in basement loud noise
Wedding 010712 Loud talking outside
loud thumbing music & screaming from
Blacks basement
Noise Team 010712 Reference: 12/21900/ENAC
None 04 07 12  Screaming outside
Back home 10.30 loud bass noises &
Amplifiefd music 170812 percussion
with windows open...
None 050912 Loud talking outside - telephoned to ask
them to move
None 200912 Loud talking outside took pic
None 210912 Asabove
Performance 250912 Asabove 22.40 no pic

Ditto 250912 Thurb%"rﬁéagguitar type sound



None
None:

Gallery Show

None

Works

Wedding

Event Art Saves Lives
Event
Opera event

Music Event

Evente Monday 21st October
7.30pm Society of the Golden
Slippers - Live Music

Birthday party

280912
021012

091012

121012

111112

111112

091212
1404 13
1604 13
1804 13
3007 13

040913

120913

210913

211013
261013
261013
311013

171113

Loud talking outside

Shouting & screaming outside
Crowds outside + bikes chained to my
fire sign gate

exit etc told Gennaro @ Blacks &
emailed pic to Roald Piper @ WCC
Very noisy crown outside

See various emails...

Noisy drilling on a Sunday @ 1.30
afternoon

Jazz band in basement clearly audible
on

ground & basement. | dd not call as not
wishing to upset the wedding

Sunday - loud bongo music in basement
Very noisy crow outside @ 12.15 am
Loud music heard throughout

Rowdy crown outside shrieking

Rowdy crowd outside

Lots of loud noise from premises
windows open

Society of The Golden Slippers return on
September 4th with Kristina Train. She'll
be performing a mix of songs from her
catalogue and support is courtesy of
The Bonfires (who recently supported
US country sensation Kacey Musgraves.)
If you would like to join us for this very
special evening please email in your
requests.
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=erx-
4cnyTSY

Very noisy crowd outside @ 10.30pm

Very noisy crown outside @ 9.30pm
rang them up yet again to ask them to
get people to move to the other side of
Blacks where there are no residents
which they did.

very noisy event & chatter outside
very loud outside midnight

lots of noise at 01.15am

lots of noise outside at 11pm

Bike parked on my fire exist when |
complained | was met with a negative
response by staff who refused to have it
removed immediately. It was still there
one after bneing reported causing a

h‘ﬁ'é{&ésaéﬁy hazard.



Event

Pop Up Event

Event?

Private Party

Conference

Live Music FRANKY AND THE
JACKS '

No event
Party Barney

5 Forty

181113
301113
011213
031213

051213
121213

120114
130114
240114

1502 14
230113
010314

280313
0604 14
2704 14
1008 14
120914

1908 14

Lots of noise outside

As above

As above Sunday party
Intermittently as above

Lots of banging & screaming inside &
outside

Very noisy outside

Event appears to be full of non
members

Lot of loud talking outside

Very noisy outside

Very noise outside - lot of people
drinking & talking very loudly

Loud music & people outside (Sunday)
Lot of noise outside @ 18.00 hrs

Lot of noise outside 8.20

Lot of noise outside @ 00.52

Lot of noise outside @ 1.30am

Loud thumping music Noon to 9pm
WCC served noise abatement notice
Noise number: 14/26829/ENAC

Lot of loud talking outside

page 85



Patel, Bina

From: David Bieda [db@sixty8.com]

Sent: 22 October 2014 16:24

To: Patel, Bina

Cc: 'Holter, Michael’; 'Ana & Steven Potter & Crinan @ 1 Meard Street’; 'David Gleeson’,
Roberts, G (clir); McVitie, Martin; 'Richard Brown'

Subject: 14/07347/LIPV BLACKS CLUB 67 DEAN STREET W1D 4QJ

Dear Ms. Patel,
Richard Brown will represent me at the hearing.

Following a friendly meeting I had with the MD and Manager of Blacks Club yesterday I make the
following comments which I hope might assist in resolving issues of concern.

REAR YARD

Blacks Club indicated they would be pleased to meet the nearby residents in Meard Street to discuss the use
of the rear yard, which hitherto has not been used by members & guests, notwithstanding that it appears to
be part of the licensed area. I gather from neighbours that the use stopped but has re-started. Blacks felt that
sound attenuation measures might work but I doubt this due to the funnel nature of the rear yards in Meard
Street, which abut a tall building along Bourchier Street, thus sounds are amplified.

PLANS

I request that Blacks provide a complete set of plans showing the actual current uses, entrance and exit, and
proposals for planned changes to same. I also request that a complete set of the plans for the current license
is available so the two may be compared. I think it would have assisted had this been done in the first place
and a variation made for all changes to the existing plans. I cannot see the point of such plans if an operator
can change them unilaterally; it can also lead to mis-understandings which may be the case currently.

THE EXISTING LICENSE & PROPOSALS

In my Representation I made suggestions at the end as to proposed Conditions and wish to modify them as
below. It may be that they are unsuitable for the current hearing. It seems to me that “unrestricted’ music
and entertainment is unsuitable and needs to be refined as more akin to a bar or performance venue.

Sound transmission: Model Condition 11 to apply, however this would not deal with noise from open
windows. In effect quiet background music seems appropriate to a club (which is not a bar);

Members & guests: To replace Condition 10 by: ‘Alcohol may only be sold for consumption by members of
a private club and their bona fide guests (not exceeding 2 guests per member). No person shall be admitted
to membership of the private club or be entitled to take advantage of any of the privileges of membership
without and interval of at least 48 hours between their nomination or application for membership and their
admission.’

Blacks have put it to me that on occasion guests may wish to book tables for larger numbers. Also on
occasion the Club is rented out by members for private parties. I would think the above wording might be
accommodated to encompass the above. What I (and others) object to is members being able to introduce
unlimited numbers of guests who can buy drinks. At what point does a private members club cease to be
same?

page, 86



' A list of the names and addresses of members of the club shall be kept on the premises at all times together
with a book showing the names and dates of attendance of any guests introduced by members. Both the list
and the book shall be produced on demand for inspection by the police or an authorised officer of the
Council.' 1 believe this is already done.

First floor as restaurant: - ‘After 11pm, sale of alcohol on the first floor shall only be to a person seated
taking a table meal there and for consumption by such a person as ancillary to their meal.' This would
appear to accord with terms of the current license.

Outside noise: 'Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, e.g. to smoke, shall
not be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with them'.

REAR YARD

'The external area at the rear of the premises marked as 'Courtyard' on the approved plan shall not be used
by members or guests.'

Whilst this does not affect me it clearly disturbs neighbours. In the event of a way round this being found,
this could lifted or modified, but this is not my call.

Best regards,

David Bleda

PS

It has occurred to me that below would help noise escape from 68 Dean Street so I may make a Listed
Building application for necessary works.

page 87



l

Lo 1y s L % b & oy &

THIS il
REXLLY —
Sl PRISE

e

o \ /

—
—

|
- nilll.l;f..r,.
iR R TR

=

> ~y )=

David Bieda
68 Dean Street Soho London W1D 4QJ
Tel 020-7437-5512 Fax 020-7437-6612
Mob. 07855-256860

www.sixty8.com (under reconstruction)

page,88



APPENDIX B5

Patel, Bina

From: Steven & Ana [Mail@StevenandAna.com]

Sent: 28 September 2014 16:56

To: David Bieda

Cc: Michael Holter; Roberts, G (clIr); McVitie, Martin; Sollars, Jim; Patel, Bina

Subject: Re: 14/07347/LIPV- BLACKS CLUB DEAN STREET W1

Attachments: Blacks Sound Files.zip; ATT00001.htm; Blacks garden day.JPG; ATT00002.htm; Blacks
garden night.JPG; ATT00003.htm; Blacks Club sound files.zip; ATT00004.htm

Categories: Green Category

Ms Patel,

I am writing in support of my neighbour David Bieda’s objections for Blacks’s Club.

Our house backs onto the opening between Meard Street / Bouchier Street in Soho and this has always been
very calm and peaceful. Recently, since change of ownership, Black’s have begun using the back area
(previously a pass-through for the kitchen) as an outdoor courtyard garden / smoking area for members and
guests. i

Unfortunately, due to the tunnel-like construction of the buildings facing back to back in this space, the
sound created by the drinking club members travels and is loudly amplified to all the houses along this
space. We have also had to close windows due to cigarette smoke when there are many smokers using the
space.

I have attached a zip file with a few recordings I have made from my kitchen on random evenings in the
past few weeks. I’ve also recorded a few evenings when there were no members in the courtyard garden so
you can hear the contrast (windows were still open with guests inside - this is the noise level we have had on
a regular basis until the courtyard was opened as a smoking / drinking area).

I have also attached two images so you can see the space being referred to.

Please let me know if you require anything further.

Kind regards,

Ana Potter

One Meard Street
07817 720 725

page 89









Patel, Bina

From: Steven & Ana [Mail@StevenandAna.com]

Sent: 28 September 2014 20:56

Cc: David Bieda; Michael Holter; Roberts, G (clIr); McVitie, Martin; Sollars, Jim; Patel, Bina
Subject: Re: 14/07347/LIPV- BLACKS CLUB DEAN STREET W1

Categories: Green Category

Ms Patel,

Just a quick follow up in case it is unclear, I am making a representation re 14/07347/LIPV- BLACKS
CLUB DEAN STREET W1 - in support of the objections outlined by David Bieda, and agreeing that the
application and the Club as currently run do not promote several Licensing Objectives of the 2003 Act
including:

* public safety,

» prevention of public nuisance

Please let em know if I can be of further assistance.

Kind regards,

Ana Potter

On 28 Sep 2014, at 16:55, Steven & Ana <mail@stevenandana.com> wrote:

Ms Patel,

I am writing in support of my neighbour David Bieda’s objections for Blacks’s Club.

page,; 92



APPENDIX B6

Patel, Bina

From: Holter, Michael [Michael.Holter@wilmerhale.com]

Sent: 29 September 2014 17:10

To: Patel, Bina

Cc: 'mail@StevenandAna.com’; Roberts, G (cllr); 'armaiti.bedford@hotmail.co.uk’;
'h.proctor@etoncollege.org.uk’; 'db@sixty8.com’; McVitie, Martin; Sollars, Jim

Subject: Re: 14/07347/LIPV BLACKS CLUB 67 DEAN STREET W1D 4QH

Categories: Green Category

Apologies, Ms Patel. | should, of course, have referred to the Licensing (not the Planning) Committee.

Kind regards, Michael Holter

From: Holter, Michael

Sent: Monday, September 29, 2014 02:42 PM

To: Patel, Bina <bpatel@westminster.gov.uk>

Cc: Ana & Steven Potter & Crinan @ 1 Meard Street <mail@StevenandAna.com>; Clir Glenys Roberts @ WCC
<glenys.roberts@dailymail.co.uk>; Armaiti Bedford & Terry Bedford @ 1 Meard Street
(armaiti.bedford@hotmail.co.uk) <armaiti.bedford@hotmail.co.uk>; Henry Proctor @ Meard Street
(h.proctor@etoncollege.org.uk) <h.proctor@etoncollege.org.uk>; David Bieda <db@sixty8.com>;
mmecvitie@westminster.gov.uk <mmcvitie@westminster.gov.uk>; Jim Sollars <jsollars@westminster.gov.uk>; Holter,
Michael

Subject: RE: 14/07347/LIPV BLACKS CLUB 67 DEAN STREET W1D 4QH

Dear Ms Patel,

| should like to make a representation in order to object to 14/07347/LIPV- BLACKS CLUB DEAN STREET W1.

As you can see from the exchange below, since changing hands recently Blacks Club has been causing a real public
nuisance to the surrounding residential properties and | fear that a widening of their existing licence to allow
general members of the public buy alcohol on their premises will only serve to fuel this problem still further.

I should be grateful if you and the Planning Committee could take account of these objections.
Many thanks,

Michael Holter (5 Meard Street)

From: Holter, Michael

Sent: 24 September 2014 10:29

To: David Bieda; mmcvitie@westminster.gov.uk

Cc: Ana & Steven Potter & Crinan @ 1 Meard Street; Clir Glenys Roberts @ WCC; Peter Schulz
(peterschulz11@yahoo.co.uk); Armaiti Bedford & Terry Bedford @ 1 Meard Street (armaiti.bedford@hotmail.co.uk);
Barbara Follett MP at 9 Meard Street (barbaraprivate@barbara-follett.org.uk); Henry Proctor @ Meard Street
(h.proctor@etoncollege.org.uk); kenprivate@ken-follett.com; Holter, Michael

Subject: RE: 14/07347/LIPV BLACKS CLUB 67 DEAN STREET W1D 4QH

David,

page 93



Thank you so much for bringing to WCC's attention the very real problems that Blacks has started to present to our
immediate neighbourhood since changing hands a few weeks ago.

Even though | live at 5 Meard Street, which is about 50 yards down the road from Blacks, the noise now coming
from Black’s back yard, which all of a sudden appears to have been opened up to guests, has completely changed for
the worse the atmosphere and feel of our own outside areas along the length of Meard Street, in particular in the
evening and at night times. Because of the sound funnel created by our row of terraced houses on Meard Street, on
the one hand, and the Goldcrest building along Bourchier Street, on the other, the cacophony of loud and inebriated
voices now coming from Black’s newly opened-up outside area echoes around the back of our properties at all

hours and is truly a nuisance, not least because many of us have bedrooms located towards the back of our
properties, for what was until now additional peace and quiet.

Mr McVitie: | should be most grateful if you could look into the various issues raised by David Bieda below and if we
could then perhaps arrange a meeting to see what can be done to restore the quiet enjoyment of our homes.

Many thanks and kind regards,

Michael Holter (020 7645 2574)

From: David Bieda [mailto:db@sixty8.com]
Sent: 23 September 2014 19:53

To: mmcvitie@westminster.gov.uk
Cc: Holter, Michael; Ana & Steven Potter & Crinan @ 1 Meard Street; ClIr Glenys Roberts @ WCC
Subject: 14/07347/LIPV BLACKS CLUB 67 DEAN STREET W1D 4QH

Dear Mr. McVitie,

I & others will be commenting on the above application and I have some questions as below having read the
current license which I do find confusing. I have printed out the application & plan. Also we would
welcome a meeting with you if possible.

Is there a section on clubs in the WCC Licensing Statement?

Does WCC have any definition of what constitutes a club?

Is the rear yard part of the licensed area (very difficult to tell from the plan submitted)?

The plan submitted is very old with the old postcode — it states ‘GROUND FLOOR PLAN AS

EXISTING’ yet is appears it might be the plan as proposed as it shows a bar in the ground middle

room where there is none at present. Which is it?

5. The above plan shows the basement as the club entrance and the ground floor as the residential
entrance. In fact Blacks recently (about 6 weeks ago) changed to having their entrance on the ground
floor with the front door open at all times. Should there not be an application for this alteration? The
past arrangement was to safeguard the 2" & 3" floor residential;

6. License conditions 12 (ii) & 12 (iii) allow an additional hour for the sale of alcohol for the dining
area — yet the plan submitted shows that area on the ground floor when, in fact, it is now on the first
floor. Should there not have been an application for variation? Does this mean the plan submitted is
in fact inaccurate?

7. Should the plans submitted show all the area’s they occupy? They appear to have changed the 20
floor residential into an office;

8. The current license does not have a restriction on how many guests a members may bring in. Am |

correct that their current application would therefore enable a member to have unlimited guests all

buying drinks?

= pe=

The current license.

The unrestricted nature of recorded music creates a problem;

page,94



The members & guests outside causes endless problems of noise nuisance;

S.12a (i) Sets out the hours alcohol may be supplied & they are: Weekdays (appears to include
Saturdays which is not a weekday) 10.00 —23.00 & Sundays 10.00 - 22.30;

S.12a (ii) Appears to allow the above for a further hour, i.e. weekdays Midnight & Sundays 23.30 for

‘persons taking table meals in the premises in a part of the premises usually set apart for the

service of such persons and for the consumption by such a person in that part of the premises as an
ancillary to his meal.’

See below under ‘entertainment’. It is unclear from the application what area is ‘set apart’

for dining. It was the ground floor (ass on the plan submitted) but I gather is now the first
floor. Were the applicants to claim that meals can be served wherever, then the license needs to be altered |
reviewed.

¢

Then there are two sections b and c referring to “...the provision of entertainment’. Does this mean that the
hours are extended by an hour when there is ‘entertainment’? If not what does it mean?

Under the section headed NOTE — there are a number of provisions a — ¢ which are difficult to understand.
Which hours to they refer to? 12a (i) or 12a (ii) - the extended hours?

Some proposed new conditions:

1. Quiet background music only, not be heard outside the premises or in adjacent premises;
2. Members may only bring in two guests who’s names shall be recorded in the entrance book;
3. The rear yard may not be used as this causes a nuisance to neighbouring residential in Meard Street;
4. Alcohol may not be taken of the premises (to prevent outside nuisance);
5. Various clauses to be clarified for all concerned.
Many thanks,
David Bieda

David Bieda
68 Dean Street Soho London W1D 4QJ
Tel 020-7437-5512 Fax 020-7437-6612
Mob. 07855-256860
www.sixty8.com (under reconstruction)
The Seven Dials Trust
www.sevendials.com (nb under reconstruction).

page 95



13/10/2014 11:04:44 APPENDIX B7

From: "Glenys Roberts" <Glenys.Roberts@dailymail.co.uk>

Sent: 24/09/2014 12:29:10

To: Premises Licensing

Subject: 14/07347/LIPV BLACKS CLUB 67 DEAN STREET W1D 4QH

I should like to support residents in their objections to the new variations proposed on the grounds of public nuisance, prevention of crime and disorder. | also
query w hether the premises are currently trading according to the terms of the current licence and w hether in fact the garden is part of the licensed
premises. Please keep me informed Clir Roberts

This e-mail and any attached files are intended for the named addressee only. It contains information, w hich may be confidential and legally privileged and also
protected by copyright. Unless you are the named addressee (or authorised to receive for the addressee) you may not copy or use i, or disclose it to anyone
else. If you received it in error please notify the sender immediately and then delete it from your system.

Associated New spapers Ltd. Registered Office: Northcliffe House, 2 Derry St, Kensington, London, W8 5TT. Registered No 84121 England.

age 96
C:\Users\ bpatel\ AppData\ Local\ Microsoft\ Windows\ Temporary Intenet Figs\ Content.|IES\KQDSQHSW\ 3533557[1].msg
page #1



Licence & Appeal History

APPENDIX C

Application Details of Application Date Decision
determined

Conversion Application to convert the existing 15.09.2005 Granted under
licences delegated authority

05/06523/LIPCV

Transfer Application to transfer the licence 30.06.2014 Granted under

delegated authority

14/03609/LIPT '

DPS Request to remove the designated 20.08.2014 Request acknowledged
premises supervisor

14/05673/LIDPSR

DPS Application to vary the designated 20.08.2014 Granted under

14/05708/LIPDPS

premises supervisor

delegated authority

There is no history of appeal relating to these premises

page 97




APPENDIX D

CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS PROPOSED
BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING

When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the Licensing Act
2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant the licence subject
to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule.

At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, or
add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers appropriate for the
promotion of the licensing objectives.

This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or proposed as
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority or an interested
party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing service but reflect the
positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and have not necessarily been
agreed

Conditions: attached to the existing premises licence at Appendix A1 — 14/05708/LIPDPS

Mandatory:

1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor
in respect of this licence.

2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor does
not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended.

3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who holds
a personal licence.

4. 4} The responsible person shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that staff on relevant
premises do not carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in
relation to the premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following
activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging
the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises in a manner which
carries a significant risk of leading or contributing to crime and disorder, prejudice to
public safety, public nuisance, or harm to children;

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or
encourage, individuals to;

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or
supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the
responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or

(i) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise),

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic
(other than any promotion or discount available to an individual in respect of
alcohol for consumption at a table meal, as defined in section 159 of the Act);

page 98



o(i)

o (i)

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or
reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less;

(d) provision of free or discounted alcohol in relation to the viewing on the premises of
a sporting event, where that provision is dependent on;

(i) the outcome of a race, competition or other event or process, or
(ii) the likelihood of anything occurring or not occurring;

(e) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or
in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone,
encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of
drunkenness in any favourable manner.

The responsible person shall ensure that no alcohol is dispensed directly by one person into
the mouth of another (other than where that other person is unable to drink without assistance
by reason of a disability).

The responsible person shall ensure that free tap water is provided on request to customers
where it is reasonably available.

(0 The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure that an
age verification policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of
alcohol.

(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under
18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on
request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of
birth and a holographic mark.

The responsible person shall ensure that;

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the
premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in
advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to
customers in the following measures;

(i) beer or cider: %2 pint;
(i) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
i) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; and

(b) customers are made aware of the availability of these measures.

A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise
licence in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any
individual aged 18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated
premises supervisor. For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or officer of
the club present on the premises in a capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of
alcohol.

A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the
premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 9(i) above -
(a) "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;

(b) "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula -
page 99



(d)

(e)

9 (iii).

o(iv). (1)

(2)

P = D+(DxV)
Where -

0] P is the permitted price,

(i) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty
were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the
value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the aicohol;

(c) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in
force a premises licence -
(i) the holder of the premises licence,

(i) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of  alcohol

under such a licence;

"relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in
a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

"value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added
Tax Act 1994.

Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 9(ii)(b) above would (apart from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph
shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the
nearest penny.

Sub-paragraph 9(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph
9(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on
the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value
added tax.

The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of
alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the
second day.

Conditions reproducing the effect of conditions subject to which the relevant existing licenses

have effect.

Conditions for Sale of Alcohol: Such parts of the basement, ground and first floors as are
shown more particularly coloured and edged in red on the deposited plans.

10. Intoxicating liquor may be sold only to members of the club meeting at the club premises for the
consumption by those members and their bona fide guests.

Alternative to condition 10 proposed by resident

10. Alcohol may only be sold for consumption by members of a private club and their bona fide guests

(not exceeding 2 guests per member). No person shall be admitted to membership of the private
club or be entitled to take advantage of any of the privileges of membership without and interval
of at least 48 hours between their nomination or application for membership and their admission.

Alternative to condition 10 proposed by EHS

page 100



11.

12.

10. Alcohol may only be sold for consumption by members of a private club and their bona fide guests
not exceeding 4 guests per member. No person shall be admitted to membership of the private
club or be entitled to take advantage of any of the privileges of membership without an interval of
at least 48 hours between their nomination or application for membership and their admission.
(agreed by applicants)

No person shall be admitted to membership of the said club without an interval of at least two
days between membership and admission. The name and address of the person so applying
must be prominently displayed in the club premises, in a part frequented by the members, for
at least two days before election.

The maximum numbers of persons, including staff, to be present inside the building at the licensed
premises shall not exceed the numbers specified from time to time by the proper officer of the London
Fire and Civil Defence Authority. The numbers currently specified are:- (a) as to the Ground Floor 30
persons; (b) as to the First Floor 30 persons.

Alternative to condition 12 proposed by EHS

12. The number of persons accommodated at any one time (including staff) shall not exceed the
following:

First Floor- 30 persons
Ground Floor — 30 persons
Basement — 30 persons

Conditions which reproduce the effect of any restriction imposed on the use of the premises
by specified enactments.

Conditions which reproduce the effect of any restriction imposed on the use of the premises
by specified enactments.

13. (i) Alcohol may be sold or supplied:

(a) On weekdays, other than Christmas Day, Good Friday or New Year's Eve, 10:00 to
23:00.

(b) On Sundays, other than Christmas Day or New Year's Eve, 12:00 to 22:30.

(c) On Good Friday, 12:00 to 22:30

(d) On Christmas Day, 12:00 to 15:00 and 19:00 to 22:30.

(e) On New Year's Eve except on a Sunday, 10:00 to 23:00.

() On New Year's Eve on a Sunday, 12:00 to 22:30.

(9) On New Year's Eve from the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to the start of
permitted hours on the following day (or, if there are no permitted hours on the
following day, midnight on 31st December).

Basement and Ground Floor

(i) Alcohol may be sold or supplied for one hour following the hours set out above (other than

Christmas Day and New Year's Eve) and on Christmas day, between 15:00 and 19:00 to
persons taking table meals in the premises in a part of the premises usually set apart for the
service of such persons and for consumption by such a person in that part of the premises as
an ancillary to his meal. For other purposes or in other parts of the premises the hours set out
above shall continue to apply.

page 101



(iii) (a). Alcohol may be sold or supplied until 01.00 in the morning following weekdays (other than
Good Friday and Christmas Day), 00.30 a.m. in the morning following Sundays (other than
Christmas Day) and 00.30 in the morning following Good Friday to persons taking table meals
in the premises in a part of the premises usually set apart for the service of such persons and
for consumption by that person in that part of the premises as an ancillary to his meal.

(b).That part of the premises must also be used for the provision of entertainment by persons
present and performing to which the sale or supply of alcohol is also ancillary.

(c) The alcohol must be sold or supplied at a time before (i) the provision of entertainment by
persons present and performing or (ii) the provision of substantial refreshment, has ended. For
other purposes or in other parts of the premises the hours set out above shall continue to

apply.

(d) This condition does not authorise any sale or supply to any person admitted to the
premises either after midnight (23.00 on Sunday) or less than half an hour before the
entertainment is due to end, except in accordance with condition number 12(ii) above.

NOTE - The above restrictions do not prohibit:

(a) during the first thirty minutes in the basement and ground floor and twenty minutes on
the first floor after the above hours the consumption of the alcohol on the premises;

(b) during the first twenty minutes after the above hours, the taking of the alcohol from the
premises unless the aicohol is supplied or taken in an open vessel,

(c) during the first thirty minutes after the above hours the consumption of the alcohol on
the premises by persons taking table meals there if the alcohol was supplied for
consumption as ancillary to the meals;

(d) the sale or supply of alcohol to or the consumption of alcohol by any person residing in
the licensed premises;

(e) the ordering of alcohol to be consumed off the premises, or the despatch by the vendor
of the alcohol so ordered;

() the sale of alcohol to a trader or registered club for the purposes of the trade or club;

(9) the sale or supply of alcohol to any canteen or mess, being a canteen in which the sale
or supply of alcohol is carried out under the authority of the Secretary of State or an
authorised mess of members of Her Majesty's naval, military or air forces;

(h) the taking of alcohol from the premises by a person residing there;

(D the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to any private friends of a
person residing there who are bona fide entertained by him at his own expense, or the
consumption of alcohol by persons so supplied;

0) the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to persons employed there for
the purposes of the business carried on by the holder of the licence, or the
consumption of liquor so supplied, if the liquor is supplied at the expense of their
employer or of the person carrying on or in charge of the business on the premises.

In this condition, any reference to a person residing in the premises shall be construed as

including a person not residing there but carrying on or in charge of the business on the
premises.

page 102



14.

15.

No person under fourteen shall be in the bar of the licensed premises during the permitted
hours unless one of the following applies:

(a) He is the child of the holder of the premises licence.

(b) He resides in the premises, but is not employed there.

(c) He is in the bar solely for the purpose of passing to or from some part of the premises
which is not a bar and to or from which there is no other convenient means of access
or egress.

(d) The bar is in railway refreshment rooms or other premises constructed, fitted and
intended to be used bona fide for any purpose to which the holding of the licence is
ancillary.

In this condition "bar" includes any place exciusively or mainly used for the consumption of
intoxicating liquor. But an area is not a bar when it is usual for it to be, and it is, set apart for
the service of table meals and alcohol is only sold or supplied to persons as an ancillary to
their table meals.

The terminal hour for late night refreshment on New Year's Eve is extended to 05:00 on New
Year's Day.

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating schedule

None

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by a Licensing Sub Committee

None

Conditions proposed by parties under the variation application

Proposed By Residents

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

No music shall not be audible from outside the premises or in adjacent premises.

A list of the names and addresses of members of the club shall be kept on the premises at all
times together with a book showing the names and dates of attendance of any guests
introduced by members. Both the list and the book shall be produced on demand for
inspection by the police or an authorised officer of the Council. (also proposed by EHS and
agreed by applicants)

The external area at the rear of the premises marked as 'Courtyard' on the approved plan shall
not be used by members or guests.

There shall be no off sales of alcohol
First floor as restaurant: After 23:00, sale of alcohol on the first floor shall only be to a
person seated taking a table meal there and for consumption by such a person as ancillary to

their meal.

Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, e.g. to smoke, shall not
be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with them.

Proposed by EHS

22.

Guests of members can only purchase aicohol whilst that member is present on the
premises. (agreed by applicants)

page 103



23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

No drinks shall be consumed outside the premises nor glasses/bottles removed from the
premises by patrons when leaving.

A noise limiter must be fitted to the musical amplification system set at a level determined by
and to the satisfaction of an authorised officer of the Environmental Health Service, Premises
Management so as to ensure that no noise nuisance is caused to local residents or
businesses. The operational panel of the noise limiter shall then be secured by key or
password to the satisfaction of officers from the Environmental Health Service and access
shall only be by persons authorised by the Premises Licence holder. The limiter shall not be
altered without prior agreement with the Environmental Health Service. No alteration or
modification to any existing sound system(s) should be effected without prior knowledge of
an authorised Officer of the Environmental Health Service. No additional sound generating
equipment shall be used on the premises without being routed through the sound limiter
device.

No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the
structure of the premises which gives rise to a nuisance.

Loudspeakers shall not be located in the entrance lobby or outside the premises
building.

All windows and external doors shall be kept closed after 21:00 hours, or at any time
when regulated entertainment takes place, except for the immediate access and
egress of persons.

Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, e.g. to smoke, shall
not be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with them.

The garden area shall cease to be used after 21:00 hours.

A Challenge 21 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where the only
acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards, such as a
driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the PASS Hologram.

During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure sufficient
measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or accumulating from
customers in the area immediately outside the premises, and that this area shall be swept
and or washed, and litter and sweepings collected and stored in accordance with the
approved refuse storage arrangements by close of business.

Notices shall be prominently displayed at any area used for smoking requesting patrons to
respect the needs of local residents and use the area quietly.

After 23.00 hours patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, e.g.
to smoke, shall be limited to 10 persons at any one time.

The means of escape provided for the premises shall be maintained unobstructed, free of trip
hazards, be immediately available and clearly identified in accordance with the plans
provided.

The variation of the Premises Licence (14/07347/LIPV) will have no effect until the Licensing
Authority are satisfied that the premises is constructed or altered in accordance with the
appropriate provisions of the District Surveyor’'s Association — Technical Standards for
Places of Entertainment and the reasonable requirements of Westminster Environmental
Health Consultation Team, at which time this condition will be removed from the Licence.

page 104



The following mandatory conditions will replace mandatory conditions 1 to 9 above following

the Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Licensing Conditions) (Amendment) Order 2014.

1

No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor
in respect of this licence.

No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor does
not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended.

Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who holds
a personal licence.

(1)

(2)

(a)

()

(d)

()

The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out,
arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following
activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging
the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises -

games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or
encourage, individuals to;

drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied
on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is
authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or

drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted
fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which
carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or
reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the
vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or
glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable
manner,

dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that
other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a disability).

The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to
customers where it is reasonably available.

(1)

(2)

(3)

The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an
age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or
supply of alcohol.

The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure
that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age
verification policy.

The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under
18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on
request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of
birth and either -

page 105



8(i)

8(ii)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(a)  aholographic mark, or
(b) an ultraviolet feature.

The responsible person must ensure that -

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the
premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in
advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to
customers in the following measures -

(i) beer or cider: % pint;
(i) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml;

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is
available to customers on the premises; and

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of
alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.

A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise
licence in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any
individual aged 18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated
premises supervisor. For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or officer of
the club present on the premises in a capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of
alcohol.

A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the
premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above -

(a) "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;
(b) "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula -

P = D+(DxV)

Where -

(i) P is the permitted price,

(i) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty  were charged
on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(iiiy V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added
tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

"relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
premises licence -

(i) the holder of the premises licence,

(i) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such
a licence;

"relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club
premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a
capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

"value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added
Tax Act 1994.

page 106



8(iii).

8(iv).

Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from this paragraph)
not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be
the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

(1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph
8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on
the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value
added tax.

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of
alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the
second day.

page 107



LO90LULUL ¥ 1 409wl 1u Suusuy | poruooss siymis |17
¥102Z/01/¥1 81ed | -¢oz ubu aseqeep Jojpue WBuAdods umoisd @ 210 Asuoiels SISIBIN _H_
s,A1salepy JoY 1o J9|j05U07) BU} Jo uoissiuuad ay) yim Aeaing ol
qejeq wlojun 82In0S ejeq 80UBUPIO WoJ) pasusol| ejep Buiddew sapnjoul jonpoid siyl
F Wit 1 : . \ o ELBBZ S
_ _ _ g e 1 LLEZ)- i % AroicsC e N
L] S a1 . prog- B v gag?
S9SN ||B JO 869.L- i S wvmmw._w e 8 owm .wawmw = FI
X |enuapisay N 99086}~ _‘. , Vo wammwmwcwmr. _.._wmmmu. L ¥LEBEOZL
— % v CO_tOQOhn_ wmmmw.l_. : ! NQ ) & 62V9Z (gglizTE o
D \ L6v2z s
g L909"
N.,! % Z9vr 176609}
AN " a1 5
Dl /91 | sesnJvui0 AN 2 Sa ._mt_mmmmw 2658
GIEBEEEIE o PO B 1 T5 BYELE p
1£98l= A 9 mmmi.w—. g . v
P = |4 ny -
g0k T
A - I i " &
g 0szeALE wnﬁ. ™ L& .z 8
ZvTve ) Sé v698° ¥
uolPNIISU0D e 2w y . )
c 2pun ’ hov.vm_l I B vNQNmmNm FIN 2 8l2v K
nsca 0826 N - j = = o -
H. *mwnm i
Z 0097 i 8,90,
jeluspissy Lozl gLag® * o
pasodoid . . —
6z | / IBuSpISay 8588 A mmwm.. : 866£19 o
! 53 . 80%¢ice e
) € ogeol- - P
B a7 (44 o
I S A 0889Z1GELI- ;
o 0061~ cw_\cﬂ‘ 3
¢ Lo
£ m - ;
9106 .83.. _ g ;
6616 19915 % g 3
peel- & 6 hwww L .
[ ] . fzgsl -
vives) 196gk- - - /H,.. P )
€4T1- - g - = , 5981 . %
. A g e Z,a5c01" = 9
620Z}- JSEHZ- e P o b F-< .,ﬂmm.- 5 Z.,0v° o
~. Nmrm-.wmmmr Lo ; ? .._. s _. X Mmmw.
L0 .va...?N _ . : _.l S " e I” Gy <
szael- 4 % P ; o & " 2T k518"
S W 117616457V E 2 b 9 0928k TR ¢
¢ ‘ ‘
uopuoT joalis ues /9 J00|4 }Sdi4 O} juswaseqg "s)oe|g




Premises within 75 metres of: Black's, Basement to First Floors, 67 Dean Street, London

p/n Name of Premises Premises Address Licensable Hours
19769 Compton News 48 Old Compton Street London W1D 4UA Menday|tolSaturday Y Pt Sunday 08:00:-
N Sunday to Wednesday 23:00 - 02:00 Thursday to
23060 Caffe Nero Ground Floor 43 Frith Street London W1D 4SA Saturday 23:00 - 04:00
Friday to Saturday 10:00 - 00:00 Monday to
23812 The Crown & Two Chairmen 31-32 Dean Street London W1D 3SB Thursday 10:00 - 23:30 Sundays before Bank
Holidays 12:00 - 00:00 Sunday 12:00 - 22:30
. " Basement And Ground Floor 42 Old Compion Slreet Monday to Saturday 08:00 - 23:00 Sunday 10:00 -
26205 The Vintage House London W1D 47X 22:30
-25073 Amorino 41 Old Compton Street London W1D 6HF e . e
Sunday 11:00 - 00:00 Monday to Thursday 11:00 -
-21310 Maoz Falafel 43 Old Compton Street London W1D 6HG 01:00 Friday to Salurday 11:00 - 02:00
-20390 The Delhi Brasserie 44 Frith Street London W1D 4SB e i
-11484 40 Dean Strest 40 Dean Street London W1D 4PX Monday to Saturday 1?)0026 00:30 Sunday 12:003
~ . ; Basemenl And Ground Floor And Part First Ficor 47 Frith [ Sunday 09:00 - 00:30 Monday to Salurday 09:00 -
9242 Ronnie Scott's Jazz Club Street Landon W1D 4SE 03:30
9 Friday to Saturday 10:00 - 00:00 Monday to
-7524 Koya Bar Ground Floor 50 Frith Streel London W1D 45Q Thursday 10:00 - 23:30 Sunday 12:00 - 22:30
-5860 Rosa's Ground Fioor 48 Dean Street London W1D 5BF Monday to Salurday 12:30 S0 a2 00=
Monday to Thursday 07:00 - 00:00 Friday to
-5312 &Pasla 60 Dean Street London W1D 6AW Saturday 07:00 - 00:30 Sunday 07:00 - 23:00
y . . Friday to Saturday 10:00 - 00:00 Sunday 10:00 -
3427 Soho Whisky Club First Floor 42 Old Compton Street London W1D 4TX 22:00 Monday to Thursday 10:00 - 23:00
1100 Honest Burgers Ground Floor 4 Meard Strest London W1F OEF Mondayito Saturday 1&?26 00:30/Sundayi12:00=
3435 The Groucho Club 44-45 Dean Street London W1D 4Q8 Ay &'y 12000
17555 Muriel's Kitchen 36 Old Compton Street London W1D 4TT Monday to Sunday 07:00 - 01:30
19168 Dean Sireet Town House 69 - 71 Dean Street London W1D 3SE Monday to Sunday 00:00 - 00:00
28215 Sunset Strip Basement To First Floor 30 Dean Street London W1D Sunday 09:00 - 00:00 Mclinday to Saturday 09:00 -
38A 01:30
32719 Selva Food & Wine 68 Old Compton Street London W1D 4UJ Monday to Sunday 00:00 - 00:00
-30396 Patisserie Valerie 44 Old Compton Street London W1D 4TY Monday to Saturday 1?)(?%6 R0-S0/SuTdavH12i00R
29218 Black's Basement To First Floor 67 Dean Street London W1D Monday to Saturday 10:90 - 01:30 Sunday 12:00 -
4QH 01:00
Basement And Ground Floor 33 Old Compton Street Friday 1o Saturday 11:00 - 00:00 Sunday 11:00 -
il GO London WAD 65U 22:30 Monday to Thursday 11:00 - 23:30
24011 Tuk Tuk Basement And Ground Fioor 56 Old Compton Street Monday to Saturday 10:00 - 00:30 Sunday 12:00 -
London W1D 4UN 00:00
. Friday to Saturday 10:00 - 00:00 Monday to
-22229 Siam Thai Restaurant pasementand|Ground Flozrs;t:s EiithiSireetilondoniWd D Thursday 10:00 - 23:30 Sundays before Bank
Holidays 12:00 - 00:00 Sunday 12:00 - 22:30
Monday to Thursday 10:00 - 00:30 Friday to
-20405 Burger Lobster 36 - 38 Dean Street London W1D 3TE Saturday 10:00 - 01:00 Sundays.before Bank

Holidays 12:00 - 00:30 Sunday 12:00 - 23:00

page 109




Monday to Saturday 10:00 - 00:30 Sunday 12:00 -

-18559 Gopal's Of Soho Ground Floor 12 Bateman Street London W1D 4AH 00:00
Monday 1o Sunday 12:00 - 14:30 Friday to Sunday
-18378 Il Siclliano 33 Dean Street London W1D 4PW 18:00 - 00:00 Monday to Thursday 18:00 - 23:30
-13282 Cay Tre {Soho) 42-43 Dean Street London W1D 4QA Monday to Sunday 09:30 - 01:30
9327 El Cantara 45 Frith Street London W1D 4SD Monday/tojSaturday 1?):8_26 01:00 Sunday;12:00 «
8670 The Arts Thealre Club Ground Floor West 50 Frith Strest London W1D 45q | Monday to Saturday 09:00 5 03:30.5unday,09:00:¢
5795 Barrafina 54 Frith Street London W1D 4SL Monday/toiSaiurday e
Basement To First Floor 63 Dean Street London W1D Monday to Saturday 10:00 - 00:30 Sunday 12:00 -
-5034 Tonkotsu g
Llele) 00:00
-2666 Jackson + Rye 56 Wardour Street London W1D 4JG Mandayjlo;Saturday 13836 00:30/Sundayi1 2:00%
-2393 Koya 49 Frith Street London W1D 4SG Monday to Saturday 12:906 00:30 Sunday 12:00-
1759 Prix Fixe Brasserie Basement And Ground Floor 39 Dean Street London Monday to Saturday 10:90 - 00:30 Sunday 12:00 -
W1D 4PU 00:00
Basement And Ground Floor 41 Dean Street London Monday to Saturday 10:00 - 00:30 Sunday 12:00 -
4658 Duck Soup WAD 4PY 00:00
Friday to Saturday 09:00 - 00:00 Monday to
5024 Cookhouse Joe 33 Dean Street London W1D 4PW Thursday 09:00 - 23:30 Sundays before Bank
Holidays 12:00 - 00:00 Sunday 12:00 - 22:30
. . Friday to Saturday 10:00 - 00:00 Monday to
5313 Admiral Duncan Public House 54 Old Compton Street London W1D 4UD Thursday 10:00 - 23:30 Sunday 12:00 - 22:30
. Friday 07:30 - 00:00 Monday to Thursday 07:30 -
5351 La Polenteria 64 Old Compton Street London W1D 4TL 23:30 Saturday 08:00 - 00:00 Sunday 08:00 - 23:00
7044 Balans Restaurant Ground Floor 60-62 Old Compton Street London W1D | Monday 09:00 - 03;30 Tl{esday to Sunday 09:00 -
4UG 05:00
8106 Rejtane Leaciiorts &jSccial Ground Floor 75 Dean Street London W1D 3SQ Monday 1o Saturday 11:00 - 23:00
8378 Pulcinella Restaurant Basement To First Floor 37 Old Compton Street London | Monday to Saturday 10:q06 00:30 Sunday 12:00 -

W1D &JY

Key : C(F) - Children’s Films, Exh - Exhibitions, F - Films, IS - Indoor Sports, M - Weekday Music, M&D - Weekday Music &
Dancing, NCL - Night Café, P - Plays, R(F) - Restricted Films, $(D) - Sunday Dancing, S(F) - Sunday Films, S(M) - Sunday Music,
S(P) - Sunday Plays, ULP- Premises currently not licensed by the Citv of Westminster.

page 110




APPENDI F

B\




Sl B S

e =
., @g&g&z@ww» i

i

i
o
o
.
o
G

=y







This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2

A Licensing Sub-
City of tinster Com m ittee Report

ltem No:

Licensing Ref No: | | 14/07378/LIPV

Date: | |30 October 2014

Classification:
For General Release

Title of Report: | | co.operative Food
18-22 Park Road
London

NW1 4SH

Repanok Operational Director of Premises Management

Policy context: | ["cjev of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy

Financial summary:
None

Report Author: | | gam Eaton, Environmental Health Case Officer
(Licensing)

Contact Details: | | Telephone: 020 7641 1868
E-mail: seaton1@westminster.gov.uk

page 115



1. APPLICATION DETAILS

Application Vary the premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003.
Type:
Applicant: Co-operative Group Food Limited Date 1 September 2014
Application
Received:
Premises Co-operative Food
Name and 18-22 Park Road
Address: London
NW1 4SH
Ward Name: Regent's Park | Stress Area: | No
Description of | The premises operate as a convenience retail store which sells alcohol for
Premises: consumption off the premises.
Summary of To vary the Premises Licence as follows:
Variation
e To remove condition 26 which relates to deliveries
e« To amend conditions 28 relating to refuse collections and 30 relating to
delivery vehicles

Note: Where the committee is minded to grant the application it will be granted subject to the
mandatory conditions and conditions consistent with the operating schedule modified to such extent
as the authority considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives detailed in

Appendix D to this report.

Proposed Licensable Activities, Proposed Hours:

References / Notes

1. | To remove the following condition 26 from the licence:

All deliveries and collections to take place at the rear of the

property marked X' on the plan.

Relevant representations and policies applicable:
1A The Environmental Health Service have made a representation
against the application as the removal and amendment of
conditions 26, 28 and 30 regarding deliveries and collections
from the rear area will have the likely effect of causing an
increase in Public Nuisance. Please refer to Appendix B1 for
further information.
1B The Metropolitan Police Service has no representation against
this application. Please refer to Appendix B2 for further
information.
1C The St Marylebone Society makes a representation against the
application as the removal of the conditions will have a negative
impact on the local residents in the matter of noise, fumes and
obstruction. Please refer to Appendix B3 or further information.
1D Four residents have made adverse representations against this
application on the grounds of the Prevention of Public Nuisance
and the Protection of Public Safety. Concerns have also been
raised about the Protection of Children from harm relating to
delivery vehicles on the pavement. Please refer to Appendices
B4 - B7 for further information

1E  Two local residents have made comments supporting the

Environmental
Health Service
Representation

Metropolitan Police
Service Comments

St Marylebone
Society
Representation

Resident
Representations &
Conditions

Resident Supporting
Comments

application as they request that the degi%_r;ated lorry bay at 18 —
page 110




1F

1G

1H

22 Park Road is used for deliveries to the premises. Please
refer to Appendices B8 — B9 for further information.

The following policies within the City Of Westminster Statement
of Licensing Policy apply:

Prevention of crime and disorder (CD1)

Public Safety (PS1)

Prevention of public nuisance (PN1)

Protection children from harm (CH1)

Off Sales of alcohol outside the stress area (0S1)

Policy OS1 Applies:

Applications will generally be granted and reviews
determined subject to the relevant criteria in Policies CD1,
PS1, PN1 CH1 and HRS1 and other policies in this Statement

The Licensing Sub-committee may refuse, grant in full or grant
in part this proposal, having taken into account the
representations received and Westminster's Statement of
Licensing Policy. The decision taken should promote the
licensing objectives of:

prevention of public nuisance,
prevention of crime & disorder,
public safety and

protection of children from harm.

Policies Applicable

Summary

2A

2B

To amend conditions 28 and 30 as follows:
Condition 28:

All refuse to be collected inside the premises and to be picked
up from the area marked 'x' on the plan.

To be Amended To:

All refuse to be coliected inside the premises.
Condition 30:

Delivery vehicles will not be permitted to leave their engines
running whilst waiting to enter the delivery area.

To be Amended To:

Delivery vehicles will not be permitted to leave their engines
running whilst making deliveries.

Please refer to 1A to 1G above.

The Licensing Sub-committee may refuse, grant in full or grant
in part this proposal, having taken into account the
representations received and Westminster's Statement of
Licensing Policy. The decision taken should promote the
licensing objectives of:

Opposed by the
Environmental
Health Service, 4
Residents and
Supported by 3
residents

Summary

page 117




prevention of public nuisance,
prevention of crime & disorder,
public safety and

protection of children from harm

Current The premises are currently licensed, under reference 14/03669/LIPN please refer
Licensing to the licence at Appendix A3.

Position
Full licence history is provided at Appendix C.

Current Planning comments will be provided for the hearing.
Planning

Position:

Residential 139 of the 168 units within a 75m radius of the premises are residential, proposed
Density: residential and residential under construction (83%), refer to Appendix E

List of A1 — Application Form

Appendices: A2 — Current Licence 14/03669/LIPN

A3 - Applicant Submissions — Transport and Infrastructure document
A4 — Applicant Submissions — Advice from S Fitzgerald QC

A5 — Applicant Submissions — Taylor v Manchester City Council
B1 — Environmental Health Service representation

B2 — Metropolitan Police Service Comments

B3 — Resident Association Group

B4 — B7 Resident Representations

B8 — B9 — Resident Supporting Comments

C — Premises Licence History

D — Conditions

E — Residential Map and list of premises in the vicinity

F — Photo of premises

Relevant 1 x Environmental Health Service
Representations: 1 x Resident Association

4 x Residents (Opposing)

2 x Residents (Supporting)

1. APPLICANT SUBMISSIONS AND EVIDENCE

1.1 The evidence submitted by the applicant in support of the Licensing Objectives is provided in
Appendix A1.

2. LICENSING ACT 2003 APPLICATIONS AND APPEAL HISTORY
3.1 Any chronology relating to appeals is set out in Appendix C.
Background Documents — Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972

e Licensing Act 2003
e City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy (7" January 2011)
¢ Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (June 2013)

page 118




sorp————— APPENDIX A1

Application to vary a premises licence under the Licensing fct 2003 j‘\:kﬁhl
—_—

7 .

s o *e.,_t% N\
e W

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. If you' é?@npleting

this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that your answers's{€Hy }idc the

boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary. <

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

(Insert name(s) of applicant)
being the premises licence holder, apply to vary a premises licence under section 34 of the Licensing
Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below

Premises licence number

14/03669/LIPN

Part 1 — Premises Details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description
Co-operative Food
18/22 Park Road

Post town London Postcode NW1 4SH

| Telephone number at premises (if any)

Non-domestic rateable value of premises £87,001-£125,000

Part 2 — Applicant details

Daytime contact

telephone number OiiSiR20Ea342

E-mail address (optional) richard.arnot@wardhadaway.com

Current postal address if different | Dept 10227

from premises address 1 Angel Square

Post town Manchester Postcode l M60 0AG
wh9628864v1

page 119



Part 3 - Variation

Please tick as appropriate

Do you want the proposed variation to have effect as soon as possible? Xves |
No

If not, from what date do you want the variation to take effect? [DD| it

[ LT T T 1]

Please describe briefly the nature of the proposed variation (Please see guidance note 1)

1. To remove condition 26

2. To amend condition 28 which shall be "All refuse to be collected inside the
premises.”

3. To amend condition 30 which shall be "Delivery vehicles will not be permitted to
leave their engines running whilst making deliveries.”

In all other respects, the licence is to remain the same save that the existing conditions
will be renumbered to account for the removal of condition 26.

If your proposed variation would mean that 5,000 or more people are
expected to attend the premises at any one time, please state the number [ ]
expected to attend:

wh9628864v1 page 120




Part 4 Operating Schedule

Please complete those parts of the Operating Schedule below which would be subject to change if this
application to vary is successful.

Provision of regulated entertainment

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)

g

h)

plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A)

films (if ticking yes, fill in box B)

indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C)

boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)
live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E)

recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F)

performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G)

anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)
(if ticking yes, fill in box H)

Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box I)

Sale by retail of alcohel (if ticking yes, fill in box J)

In all cases complete boxes K, L and M

wh9628864v1

page 121

Please tick all that apply

O OO OO0O00ao



A

Plays Will the performance of a play take place indoors or

Standard days and timings | outdoors or both — please tick (please read guidance Indoors O

(please read guidance note | note 2)

6) Outdoors ]

Day Start Finish Both O

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for performing plays (please read guidance
note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
performance of plays at different times to those listed in the column on the
left, please list (please read guidance note 5)

Sat

Sun

wh9628864v1

page 122




B

Films Will the exhibition of films take place indoors or

Standard days and timings | outdoors or both — please tick (please read guidance Indoors O

(please read guidance note | note 2)

6) Outdoors [

Day Start Finish Both 0O

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of films (please read
guidance note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
exhibition of films at different times to those listed in the column on the left,
please list (please read guidance note 5)

Sat

Sun

wh9628864v!

page 123




C

Indoor sporting events Please give further details (please read guidance note 3)

Standard days and timings

(please read guidance note

6)

Day Start Finish

Mon

Tue State any seasonal variations for indoor sporting events (please read
guidance note 4)

Wed

Thur Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for indoor
sporting events at different times to those listed in the column on the left,
please list (please read guidance note 5)

Fri

Sat

Sun

wh9628864v1

page 124




D

Boxing or wrestling Will the boxing or wrestling entertainment take place

entertainments indoors or outdoors or both — please tick (please read Indoors ]

Standard days and timings | guidance note 2)

(g;lease read guidance note Outdoors 0

Day Start Finish Both O

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for boxing or wrestling entertainment (please
read guidance note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for boxing or
wrestling entertainment at different times to those listed in the column on the
left, please list (please read guidance note 5)

Sat

Sun

wh9628864v1

page 125




E

Live music Will the performance of live music take place indoors

Standard days and timings | or outdoors or both — please tick (please read Indoors 0

(please read guidance note | guidance note 2)

6) Outdoors O

Day Start Finish Both ]

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the performance of live music (please read
guidance note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
performance of live music at different times to those listed in the column on
the left, please list (please read guidance note 5)

Sat '

Sun

wh9628864v1

page 126




F

Recorded music Will the playing of recorded music take place indoors

Standard days and timings | or outdoors or both — please tick (please read Indoors O

(please read guidance note | guidance note 2)

6) Outdoors O

Day Start Finish Both O

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded music (please read
guidance note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the playing
of recorded music at different times to those listed in the column on the left,
please list (please read guidance note 5)

Sat

Sun

wh9628864v1

page 127




G

Performances of dance Will the performance of dance take place indoors

Standard days and timings | or outdoors or both — please tick (please read Indoors L]

(please read guidance note | guidance note 2)

6) Outdoors ]

Day Start Finish Both |

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance (please read
guidance note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where vou intend to use the premises for the
performance of dance at different times to those listed in the column on
the left, please list (please read guidance note 5)

Sat

Sun

wh9628864v1

page 128



H

Anything of a similar Please give a description of the type of entertainment you will be providing

description to that falling

within (e), () or (g)

Standard days and timings

(please read guidance note

6)

Day Start Finish | Will this entertainment take place indoors or Indoors O
outdoors or both — please tick (please read guidance

Mon note 2) Outdoors ]

Both [

Tue Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Wed

Thur State any seasonal variations for entertainment of a similar description
to that falling within (e), (f) or (g) (please read guidance note 4)

Fri

Sat Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
entertainment of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)
at different times to those listed in the column on the left, please list
(please read guidance note 5)

Sun

wh9628864v1

page 129




Late night refreshment Will the provision of late night refreshment take

Standard days and timings | place indoors or outdoors or both — please tick Indoors X

(please read guidance note | (please read guidance note 2)

6) Outdoors O

Day | Start Finish Both O

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)
Consumption off the premises only

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the provision of late night refreshment
(please read guidance note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
provision of late night refreshment at different times, to those listed in
the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 5)

Sat

Sun

wh9628864v1

page 130




J

Supply of alcohol Will the supply of alcohol be for consumption — On the

Standard days and timings | please tick (please read guidance note 7) premises O

(please read guidance note

premises

Day Start Finish Both OJ

Mon State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol (please read
guidance note 4)

Tue

Wed

Thur Non-standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
supply of alcohol at different times to those listed in the column on the
left, please list (please read guidance note 5)

Fri

Sat

Sun

K

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or matters
ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children (please read

guidance note 8).

None

wh9628864v1

page 131




L

Hours premises are open

State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 4)

to the public

Standard days and timings

(please read guidance note

6)

Day Start Finish

Mon

Tue

Wed
Non standard timings. Where you intend the premises to be open to the
public at different times from those listed in the column on the left,

Thur please list (please read guidance note 5)

Fri

Sat

Sun

Please identify those conditions currently imposed on the licence which you believe could be removed as a
consequence of the proposed variation you are seeking.

Condition 26 is to be removed and conditions 28 and 30 are to be amended as described on
page 2 of this application.

wh9628864v1]

page 132




Please tick as appropriate
e Ihave enclosed the premises licence [
® [ have enclosed the relevant part of the premises licence O

If you have not ticked one of these boxes, please fill in reasons for not including the licence or part of it
below

Reasons why I have not enclosed the premises licence or relevant part of premises licence.

wh9628864v] page 133



M

Describe any additional steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives as a result of the
proposed variation:

a) General — all four licensing objectives (b, ¢, d and e) (please read guidance note 9)

Having regard to the four licensing objectives, the applicant believes that no additional steps
are required.

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

¢) Public safety

wh9628864v1] page 134




d) The prevention of public nuisance

¢) The protection of children from harm

Checklist:

Please tick to indicate agreement
e [have made or enclosed payment of the fee. X

I have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and others where
applicable.

e [ understand that I must now advertise my application.

XX X

® Thave enclosed the premises licence or relevant part of it or explanation.

® ] understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will be
rejected.

X

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE NOT EXCEEDING
LEVEL 5 ON THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003,
TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION.

Part 5 — Signatures (please read guidance note 10)

Signature of applicant (the current premises licence holder) or applicant’s solicitor or other duly
authorised agent (please read guidance note 11). If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in
what capacity.

Signature Ecvcon Ar >

Date 29 August 2014

Capacity Solicitors acting on behalf of the Applicant

Where the premises licence is jointly held, signature of 2nd applicant (the current premises licence
holder) or 2nd applicant’s solicitor or other authorised agent (please read guidance note 12). If
signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity.

wh9628864v1 page 135




Signature

Date

Capacity

Contact name (where not previously given) and address for correspondence associated with this
application (please read guidance note 13)

Ward Hadaway

Sandgate House

102 Quayside

Posttown | Newcastle upon Tyne \ Post code | NE1 3DX
Telephone number (if any) \ 0191 204 4000

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail, your e-mail address (optional)

Notes for Guidance

This application cannot be used to vary the licence so as to extend the period for which the licence
has effect or to vary substantially the premises to which it relates. If you wish to make that type of
change to the premises licence, you should make a new premises licence application under section 17
of the Licensing Act 2003.

1. Describe the premises. For example the type of premises, its general situation and layout and any
other information which could be relevant to the licensing objectives. Where your application
includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place for consumption of these off-
supplies, you must include a description of where the place will be and its proximity to the
premises.

2. Where taking place in a building or other structure please tick as appropriate (indoors may include
a tent).

3. For example state type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further
details, for example (but not exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.

4. Tor example (but not exclusively), where the activity will occur on additional days during the
summer months.

5. For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day
e.g. Christmas Eve.

6. Please give timings in 24 hour clock (e.g. 16:00) and only give details for the days of the week
when you intend the premises to be used for the activity.

7. If you wish people to be able to consume alcohol on the premises, please tick ‘on the premises’. If
you wish people to be able to purchase alcohol to consume away from the premises, please tick
‘off the premises’. If you wish people to be able to do both, please tick ‘both’.

8. Please give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of
the premises which may give rise to concern in respect of children regardless of whether you
intend children to have access to the premises, for example (but not exclusively) nudity or semi-
nudity, films for restricted age groups or the presence of gaming machines.

9. Please list here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.

10. The application form must be signed.

11. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided that they
have actual authority to do so.

wh9628864v1 page 136




12. Where there is more than one applicant, each of the applicants or their respective agents must sign

the application form.
13. This is the address which we shall use to cotrespond with you about this application.

wh9628864v1
page 137



Schedule 12
Part A

APPENDIX A2

WARD: Regent's Park
UPRN: 010033525241

City of Westminster o Regulation 33, 34
64 Victoria Street, London, SW1E 6QF Premises licence

Premises licence number: 14/03669/LIPN

Original Reference: 14/03669/LIPN

Part 1 — Premises details

Postal address of premises:

Co-operative Food
18-22 Park Road
London

NW1 4SH

Telephone Number: Not Supplied

Where the licence is time limited, the dates:

Not applicable

Licensable activities authorised by the licence:

Sale by Retail of Alcohol

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities:

Sale by Retail of Alcohol

Monday to Saturday: 08:00 to 23:00
Sunday: 10:00 to 22:30

The opening hours of the premises:

Monday to Sunday: 07:00 to 23:00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol, whether these are on and/or off

supplies:

Alcohol is supplied for consumption off the Premises.

page 138



Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of
premises licence:

Co-operative Group Food Limited
Dept 10227

1 Angel Square

Manchester

M60 0AG

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where
applicable)

IP26715R

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the
premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol:

Name: Jinal Patel

Please note: It is the policy of the Licensing Authority not to display the address
details of a designated premises supervisor.

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated
premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol:

Licence Number: LN20102368
Licensing Authority: London Borough Of Merton

Date: 7 August 2014

Ve

Signed: PP
Operational Director - Premises Management

page 139




Annex 1 — Mandatory conditions

1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises
supervisor in respect of this licence.

2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises
supervisor does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended.

3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person
who hold a personal licence.

4, (1)
(2)

5 0
(i)

The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure
that an age verification policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or
supply of aicohol.

The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to
be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the
policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification
bearing their photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark.

A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for
consumption on or off the premises for a price which is less than the
permitted price.

For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 5(i) above -

(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Aicoholic Liquor
Duties Act 1979,

(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formuia -
P = D+(DxV)

Where -

(i) P is the permitted price, .

(i) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol
as if the duty were charged on the date of the sale or supply
of the alcohol, and

(i) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the
alcohol as if the value added tax were charged on the date of
the sale or supply of the alcohol;

() “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which
there is in force a premises licence -
(i) the holder of the premises licence,
(i) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of
such a licence, or
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a

supply of alcohol under such a licence;

(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which
there is in force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of
the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the
member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with
the Value Added Tax Act 1994.

page 140



(i)

(iv)

Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 5(ii)(b) above would (apart
from this paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by
that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-
paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

(1) Sub-paragraph 5(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given
by Paragraph 5(ii)(b) above on a day (“the first day”) would be
different from the permitted price on the next day (“the second day")
as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to

sales or supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the
period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

page 141



Annex 2 —- Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule

None

page 142




Annex 3 — Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

10.

1.

12.

13.

14,

15.

The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the
minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit
points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any
light condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises is open
for licensable activities and during all times when customers remain on the premises.
All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 28 days with date and time
stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately upon the
request of Police or authorised officer throughout the preceding 28 day period.

A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV
system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff
member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of
recent CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested.

All tills shall automatically prompt staff to ask for age verification identification when
presented with an alcohol sale.

The licence holder shall ensure that outside of the hours authorised for the sale of
alcohol and whilst the premises are open to the public, all alcohol within the trading
area is to be secured behind locked grills, locked screens or locked cabinet doors so
as to prevent access to the alcohol by both customers and staff.

No super-strength beer, lagers, ciders or spirit mixtures of 5.5% ABV (alcohol by
volume) or above shall be sold at the premises.

No single cans or bottles of beer or cider or spirit mixtures shall be sold at the
premises.

No more than (15) % of the sales area shall be used at any one time for the sale,
exposure for sale, or display of alcohol.

There shall be no self service of spirits on the premises, save for spirit mixtures less
than 5.5% ABV.

Prominent signage indicating the permitted hours for the sale of alcohol shall be
displayed so as to be visible before entering the premises, where alcohol is on public
display, and at the point of sale.

Prior to any football match taking place at Wembiey Stadium the premises licence
holder shall ensure that;

(i Alcohol sales in respect of cans of beer or cider are limited to no more than 4
cans per person for a minimum of four hours before the commencement of
the relevant designated sporting event;

(ii) No sales of alcohol in boftles or glass containers are made in the period four
hours before the commencement of the designated sporting event

i) On any day where there is a relevant designated sporting event taking place,
the premises will not externally advertise as a result of a local store
promotion the availability of beer or cider in such a way as to be likely to be
the sole inducement to attract persons to the premises who are either
attending the designated sporting event or in the vicinity of the premises as a
result of the designated sporting event;

(iv) All members of staff working at the premises are informed of this condition
prior to taking up employment;

(v) On the day of the relevant designated sporting event, upon the direction of a
police officer of the rank of Inspector or above, using the grounds of the
prevention of crime and disorder or public safety, the premises will

page 143



16.
17.

18.

19.
20.

21.

23.

24,

25

26.

27.
28.

29.

30.

31.

immediately cease to sell alcoho! until further directed by the police or until
the relevant designated sporting event has finished.

There shall be "CCTV in Operation" signs prominently displayed at the premises.

An incident log (whether kept in @ written or electronic form) shall be retained at the
premises and made available to an authorised Officer of the Police or the Local
Authority.

The premises shall operate a proof of age scheme, such as a Challenge 25, whereby
the only forms of acceptable identification shall be either a photographic driving
licence, a valid passport, military identification or any other recognised form of
photographic identification incorporating the PASS logo, or any other form of
identification from time to time approved by the secretary of the state.

The premises will be fitted with a burglar alarm system.

The premises will be fitted with a panic button system for staff to utilise in the case of
an emergency.

The premises licence holder shall ensure that the appropriate fire safety, and health
and safety regulations are applied at the premises. :

A complaints procedure will be maintained, details of which will be made available in
store and upon request.

A refusals register (whether kept and written or elecfmnic form) will be maintained at
the premises and will be made available for inspection upon request by an authorised
Officer of the Police or the Local Authority.

All relevant staff will receive training in their responsibilities under the Licensing Act
2003 and Challenge 25 (or any similar scheme). Refresher training will be given twice
a year and training records made available to the Police or an authorised officer of
the Licensing Authority.

Tilis will be installed at the premises which prompt staff to request age verification
from customers who appear to be under the age of 25 (or any other age should
Challenge 25 be replaced by a similar scheme).

All deliveries and collections to take place at the rear of the property marked 'x' on the
plan.

All deliveries and collections to take place between 08:00 and 23:00 hours.

All refuse to be collected inside the premises and to be picked up from the area
marked 'x' on the plan.

No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the
structure of the premises which gives rise to a nuisance.

Delivery vehicles will not be permitted to leave their engines running whilst waiting to
enter the delivery area.

During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure
sufficient measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or
accumulating from customers in the area immediately outside the premises, and that
this area shall be swept and or washed, and litter and sweepings collected and stored
in accordance with the approved refuse storage arrangements by close of business.

page 144



Annex 4 - Plans

Attached

page 145




uelo;
nﬁms A3NNNS

AIAHNS ONILIVMY

0N

FE—

(SLN) dVIN AJAHNS FONVYNQHO




Schedule 12 WARD: Regent's Park
Part B UPRN: 010033525241

Clty of Westminster Premises licence Regulation 33, 34
64 Victoria Street, London, SW1E 6QP summary
Premises licence number: 14/03669/LIPN

Part 1 — Premises details

Postal address of premises:

Co-operative Food
18-22 Park Road
London

NwW1 4SH

Telephone Number: Not Supplied

Where the licence is time limited, the dates:

Not applicable

Licensable activities authorised by the licence:

Sale by Retail of Alcohol

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities:

Sale by Retail of Alcohol
Monday to Saturday: 08:00 to 23:00
Sunday: 10:00 to 22:30

The opening hours of the premises:

Monday to Sunday: 07:00 to 23:00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol, whether these are on and/or off
supplies:

Alcohol is supplied for consumption off the Premises.

page 147




Name and (registered) address of holder of premises licence:

Co-operative Group Food Limited
Dept 10227

1 Angel Square

Manchester

M80 0AG

Registered number of hoider, for example company number, charity number (where
applicable)

IP26715R

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for
the supply of alcohol:

Jinal Patel

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited:

Restricted

Date: 7 August 2014

» 7
Signed: pp 7 -

Operational Director - Premises Management

page 148




APPENDIX A3

. CONSULTANCY | ENVIRONMENT

INFRASTRUCTURE ! BUILDINGS

TRANSPORT & INFRASTRUCTURE - PLANNING
THE CO-OPERATIVE FOOD Lid
18-22, PARK ROAD, LONDON

TECHNICAL NOTE ~ SERVICING

K

nsuing.com

i
.

JUE:"



i

TRANSPORT & INFRASTRUCTURE -~ PLANNING
THE CO-OPERATIVE FOOD Ltd
18-22, PARK ROAD, LONDON

TECHNICAL NOTE - SERVICING

Londaon
11 Borough High St, London, SE1 9SE
T. 020 7407 3879

page 150



18-22 PARI ROAD, LONDON
TECHNICAL NOTE - SERVICING
QCTO8ER 2014

LNT202Z TN E TN PCEIE TN

NFEASIRGSILES  AauOiN Y

DOCUMENT ISSUE RECORD

II Date of |

Revision stalus | Author: | Checked:

| Issue |

A 17/10/14 DRAET Daniel Jackson Dovi.d Hurren David Hurren
Engineer Director Director
Daniel Jackson David Hurren David H
B 20/10/14 FINAL ' , I
Engineer Director Director
Limitations

The assessments and interpretation have been made in line wilh legisiation and guidelines in force at the ime of
wriling, representing best practice at that time.

All of the comments and opinions contained in this report, including any conclusions, are based on the information
obtained by BWB during our investigations.

There may be othet conditions prevailing on the site which have net been disclosed by this investigation and which
have not been taken info account by this report. Responsibility cannot be accepted for conditions not revealed by
the investigation.

Any diagram or opinlon of the possible configuration of the findings is conjectural ond given for guidance only and
confirmation of intermediate graund condltions should be considered if deemed necessary.

Except as otherwise requested by the Client, BWB is not abliged and disclaims any obligation to update the repart
for events taking place after:

a) the date on which this assessment was undertiaken; and
) the date on which the final report is delivered.

BWB muakes no representation whatsoever concerning the legal significance of its findings or to other legal matters
referred to in the following report.

This report hos been prepared for the sole use of The Co-operative Food Ltd. No other third partles may reiy upon ar
reproduce the contents of this report without the wiitten permission of BWB. If any unauthorised third pary comes
into possession of this report they rely on It at their own risk and the authors do not awe them any Duly of Care or
Skill.

page 151



18-22 PARK ROAD. LONDON
TECHNICAL NOTE . SERVICING
OCTOBER 20114

LNT2022 TN CORSEAARECY  ANVIECHMEN?
MOCATT OS] B BN

CONTENTS PAGE

DOCUMENT ISSUE RECORD
1.0 INTRODUCTION
Instruction

Objectives

2.0 THE SITE
Site Location

3.0 EXISTING CONDITIONS
Front Loading Bay
Rear Servicing

4.0 SERVICING PROPOSALS
Servicing Vehicles
Delivery Schedule

o © W W bh A B N DN =222 -

Proposals
5.0 CONCLUSIONS

-
N

TABLES

Table 1 A4 - Park Road - Annual Average Dally Flow Traffic Count Data
Table 2 Rear Loading Area Delivery Schedule

Table 3 Front Loading Bay Delivery Schedule

FIGURES

Figure 1 Site Location Plan

APPENDICES

Appendix A City of Westminster - Environmental Health Consultation Team Letter
AppendixB  The Olympic Code of Conduct for Quiet Night Time Deliveries

page 152



18-22 PARK ROAD, LONDON
TECHNICA, NOT= - 3ERVICING
OCTOBER 2014

LNT2022 ™N LONSUTARC Y ENVIRGEAN

NLSIGT IR BULOMIGY

1.0 INTRODUCTION

Instruction

1.1 BWB Consuiting (BWB) was instructed by The Co-operative Food Ltd ¢the Client) to
respond to the City of Westminster (CoW) - Environmental Health Consultation Team'’s
(EHCT) letter (reference 14/07378/LIPV) dated 29" September.

1.2 The proposed development at 18-22 Park Road, London is for a Co-operative Food
Ltd shep which Is in the Al retail land use category.

1.3 Figure 1 shows the site location in context of the surrounding highway network.

o

M
Omons” ©

Objectives

14 This report responds directly to Cow - EHCT's lefter, shown in Appendix A, which
states that the opplicant (The Co-operative Food Ltd) ‘has not provided any
supportive staterent for the variation or how these amendments will minimise public
nuisance within the area’. The variation relates to the following:

« To remove condition 26 that requires all deliveries and coliections from the
rear area of the property.

» To amend condition 28 removing the requirement for refuse to be plcked up
from the rear area of the property.

page 153



18-22 PARK ROAD. LONDON
TECHNICAL NOTE - SERVICING
GCTOBER 2014

SRR St

2.0 THE SITE
Site Location

2.1 The location of the proposed Co-aperative Food Store is af 18-22 Park Road., London,

22 It is situated on the east side of the Ad1 - Park Road which is part of the Transport for
London Road Network (TLRN) and is also a Red Route which aims to prioritise buses,

2.3 This section of the Ad1 - Park is part of a route which is served by 6 bus routes which
operate a very frequent service in both directions. Of the 4 bus routes that use this
section of the A41 - Park Road, 2 of the routes also run as night buses.

24 Due to the strategic nature of the A41 - Park Road It iends itself to heavy vehicle flows
which will contain a high proportion of Heavy Goods Vehicles (HEVs), buses and
Light Goods Venhicles (LGVS) that will be undertaking servicing and making deliveries
in London.

2.5 The Ad41 - Park Road has o Department for Transport (DfT) permanent traffic counter
(Count Point 8083) located approximately 400m north of the site. The data collected
at this location shows that the likely average traffic flow passing by the site. based on
2013 data, is approximately 24,500 vehicles per day.

2.6 Of these 24,500 vehicles it is likely that approximately 10% of this traffic flow will consist

of HGVs and buses which are the noisiest vehicle types. Table 1 (overleaf) shows a
summary of the traffic count data on A41 ~ Park Road from the last § years.

page 154



18-22 PARN ROAD. LOREGDN
FECHNIGAL NXHE - EQVCRG

BWB

" ¢ T Can
v (aTesT T ¢ o)

AADF | | |

Year Road | Cycles | Motorcycles |
s A Tade | 88
2010 Al | 174 532
i 2011 Adl a7 an
‘ 2012 A4l 478 1,123
| 2013 A4 30a 1076

Cars & Buses & | | Total %IHGV
Toxis | Coaches | AlLHGVs | Vatioles | % HGY | (nasuses)
20406 1,797 3,191 843 29292  31% 0.7%
6125 | 1560 | 2387 786 | 21300 | 3% 1.0%
20354 1744 2598 &89 | 26964 | 26% $0%
18702 | 1,683 2937 1 | 25197 3.0% 97%
17,595 1 1,636 3043 8§25 24505 34% | 100%

page 155



18:22 PARK ROAD, LONDON
TECHNICAL NOTE - SERVICING
OCTOBER 2014

LNT2022 TN

CORIULIAHL T - ANVIEONMEY)
SHLEEILAULINNE  ULIANGS

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.6

3.6

3.7

EXISTING CONDITIONS
Front Loading Bay

Sltuated directly outside of 18-22 Park Road is an existing loading bay which is
approximately 42m in length. A bay of this size could accommodate the following:

«  2x16.5m Maximum Legal Ariculated Vehicle;
s 3x12.0m Rigid Truck; or
= 5x 7.5t Box Van,
Photo 1 (overleaf) shows the loading bay in context of the site,
There are no restrictions on the fime that loading bay can be used although the

loading time is limited to 20 minutes. Photo 2 (page 6) shows the sign that specifies
thot loading may take a maximum of 20 minutes,

Rear Servicing

There is a semi covered rear servicing area which can be and is used by 18-22 Park
Road and the Mumtaz Indian Restaurant. Access to this area is achieved by turning in
to Sussex Place from Outer Circle. Photo 3 (page 7) shows access to and the size of
the servicing area.

Our site visit suggested that Sussex Place is a private road although the access rights
over this land are not known.

It is understood that Sussex Place is used for parking by residents of Clarence Terrace
and employees of the London Business School. The area that Is avaliable for parking Is

a parallel parking bay dithough users are choosing to park perpendicular to the kerb.
Photo 4 (page 8).

The way this parking Is being utilised could restrict the size of vehicle that can access
and egress the rear servicing area.

page 156



1872 PASK RCAD, LONHON
FECHN CAz RONE « 29V LNG.
OTIOBI 214

INIA? tN

Photo 1 - Existing Front Loading Bay

page 157



1822 PARK ROAD, LONDON
[ECHNICAL NOTE - SERVICING
CCIOHBER 2014

LM12022 TN

RED ROUTE

“ﬁ:‘;tagnm '
‘Men st
Jpin

page 158



18.22 PARK ROAD. LOMCON
TECHNICAL NOTE - SERVICING
OCTOBER 2014

LiNT2022 IN

BWB

CERSCUAKE S i nvipvenEn:
ELLLPR S TEAT L S L P

Photo 3 - Rear Servicing Area

page 159




18:22 PARK ROAD. LONCON
1ECHNICAL NOTE - SERVICING
CCTOBER 2014

(NT2022 IN

Photo 4 - Sussex Place Parking

page 160



18-22 PARK ROAD. LONDON
TECHNICAL NOTE « SERVICING
CCTOBER 2614

LNT2022 TN

4.0 SERVICING PROPOSALS

Servicing Vehicles

4.1 The Co-operative Food Ltd use a range of vehicles to service and make deliveries 1o
their stores, The vehicles that are likely to serve this site are:

= 7.5t Box Van; and/or

= 18f Rigid Truck.

Delivery Schedule

4.2 As the Co-operative Food Ltd offers o range of products In its stores there will be o
range of deliveries that will need o be made at differing times throughout the day.
However, as a result of the store having the ability to service and deliver from either
the front or rear of the store there are two potential delivery schedules.

4.3 Due to the size of the rear servicing area the size of vehicle that can access It is

limited to a 7.5t Box Van whereas the front loading bay is able to accommodate any
vehicle size.

4.4 On average a total of 17 cages per day will be delivered to the store in elther 7.5¢ Box
Vans or an 18t Rigid Truck. In addition to this, there will be one delivery each for
papers, bakery items and sandwiches. These additional deliveries are likely to be
made in vans that are smaller than a 7.5t Box Van although bakery items are usually
delivered in an 18t Rigid Truck.

4.5 Table 2 details the delivery schedule should only the rear servicing area be used and
specifies the type of delivery, its freguency and the times that it will need to be
delivered. It should be noted that this is @ conservative estimate.

Delivery Frequency Time Delivered

Ambient Twice a day 10am - 4pm

} i i 6 days per week g y 1

' Chilled | Twice a day 10am - 4pm

' } 6 days per week I

| Frazen | Twice a day i 10am - 4pm
| 6 days per .we_ek

Bakery 1 Once per day [ 10am - 4pm =
[ 6 days per week

i Papers | Once per day 18C

e 7 days a week i .
Sandwiches [ Once per day TBC
’ 6 days a week
f Total ‘ _ 9deliveries per day

Table 2 ~ Rear Loa&iﬁg Areda Delivery Schedule

page 161



18-22 PARK ROAL, LONDON
TECHNICAL NOTE - SERVICNG
CCIOBER 2014

INITZ2G22 TN WAL (bt

4.6 Due to the size of the rear servicing area limiting the size of vehicle that can access it,
there will be a need for approximately 9 deliveries per day made by a 7.5t Box Van.

4.7 Table 3 details the delivery schedule should the loading bay at the front of the store

be used and specifies the type of delivery, its frequency and the times that it will
need to be delivered.

Ambient, Combined Delivery 10am - 4pm
Chilled & Once a day
Frozen 6 days per week i =
Bakery Once per day T10am - 4pm
6 days per week
Papers Once per day 18C

_7 days a week

Sundwiches B Once per day _ TBC

6 days a week

Total 4 deliveries per day

Table 3 - Front Loading Bay Delivery Schedule

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

4.13

As the front loading bay does not restrict the size of vehicle all deliveries (excluding
bakery, papers and sandwiches) can be combined into a compartmentalised 18t
Rigid Truck which will only need to visit the store once a day.

A 7.5t Box Van does not have the ability to be compartmentdlised to deliver ambient,
chilled and frozen goods, which results in the much higher trip rate for these vehicles.

Therefore, if the store was to only use 7.5t Box Vans there would be two ambient
deliveries, one chiled delivery and one frozen deliveries — or a total of four daily
deliveries as opposed to a single delivery if utilising an 18t Rigid Truck.

In addition to this, an 18t Rigid Truck would not be at full capacity which means that
at peak ftimes ie. Christmas, it would have sufficient spare capacity to
accommodate further stock without an additional delivery should it be required.

Deliverles to the rear of the sfore would require vehicles to reverse in to the loading
area which would require that reversing alarms are used for health and safety
regsons. This would create a recsonable level of noise whereas deliveries made to the
front of the store would not require a reversing manoeuvre and therefore reversing
alarms would not be used.

Proposals

Based upon the information and evidence shown in the previous chapters regarding
the existing servicing and loading facilities, the restrictions upon them, the constraints
surrounding their use and the requirements of The Co-operative Food Lid it is
proposed that the following offer a pragmatic solution:

page 162



18-22 PARK ROAD, LONDON
TECHNICAL NOTE - SERUICING
OCTIOBER 2014

LMT2022 TN

CONSUERL G ERYIYONV NG
TUTRASINUT IR MGRDIRG Y

4.14

4.15

4.16

417

4.18

* One consolldated ambient, chilled and frozen goods and one bakery delivery
per day made to the loading bay on A41 - Park Road using an 18t Rigid Truck;

* Al other deliverles (i.e. papers and sandwiches) using a vehicle 7.5t Box Van
ar smaller will be made to the semi covered rear servicing areq;

* All deliveries made to the loading bay on A4l - Park Road will abide by the
restrictions upon the bay and will take no longer than 20 minutes;

« All deliveries that are made to the loading bay on A4 - Park Road will be
made betwsen 10am ond 4pm. It should be noted that there are no
restrictions upon the hours of use on this loading bay. This proposal has been
made to reduce the potential ‘public nuisance’ that could be caused if
servicing was made outside of these hours; and

= Al deliveries that are made to the loading bay on A41 - Park Road will be In
accordance with the London Olympic Code of Conduct - Quiet Night Time
Deliveries.

The Olympic Code of Conduct - Quiet Night Time Deliveries aims to provide
businesses with simple and practical guidance on how to minimise noise from night-
fime delivery activitfies. The code provides guidance on:

*  Planning for quiet night time deliveries

¢« Key measures to reduce noise at the delivery point; and

= Key measures for drivers,

The Olympic Code of Conduct - Quiet Night Time Deliveries can be found in
Appendix B.

The code is meant to reduce noise levels ot night, which is a far more sensitive time of
day for receptors of noise. The implementation of this code should therefore be seen
as d robust approach to take in minimising noise of day time deliveries.

The time periods for deliveties suggested in Co-operative Food Ltd’s proposals cim to
bring the loading bay outside of the proposed store in line with other surrounding
loading bays which prohibits loading outside of the hours of 10am ~ 4pm.

By following these stringent proposals. it is likely that deliveries to the site will be no

noisier than the current level of noise that Is generated by general traffic and the high
proportion of HGVs on the Ad41 - Park Road.

page 163



18.22 PAIK ROAD . LONDON
TECHNICAL NOTE - $£RVICING
OCTORER 2014

LNT2022 TN

CCHSULANG Y ENVIAGHMENT
INPAANERGC IS RBUDINGY

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

5.6

CONCLUSIONS

Based upon the information and evidence provided within this report a series of
pragmatic servicing and delivery proposals have been suggested that will reduce
potential public nuisance within the area.

Where it is practical to do so the semi covered rear servicing area will be utllised for
deliveries that can access the area without the need for reversing alarms as they will
be below the size of a 7.5t Box Van.

The proposals alse provide bensflits from an air quality point of view as deliveries,
especially by larger vehicles, are made to the loading bay on A41 Park Road and o
simple manoeuwvre is required fo access the bay. Use of the rear servicing area will
require af least two turning manoeuvres (one to access and one to egress) and idie
time which will increase the time that the vehicle spends in an area which is cioser to
residential propertles along Sussex Place,

Use of the loading bay on A41 - Park Road allows the number of deliveries 1o be
consolidated from @ deliveries per day down to 4 which offers the most practical
solution to minimising publlc nuisance. Consolidating deliveries is not only in line with
TfL guidance but it also makes a positive contribution fowards sustainability.

Any impact that is directly associated with deliveties made to the loading bay on Ad1
~ Park Road are likely to be negligible due to the suggested proposals and the noise
levels that the A41 already generates,

By following these stringent proposals, for what is in essence, an unrestricted loading
bay. The Co-operative Food Ltd Is demonstrating Its willingness to listen to and work
with local stakeholders to be a good nelghbour as well as implementing sustainable
delivery plans.

page 164



o

APPENDICES

page 165



LOMHLGIANS b 5 AR NIMIEE
DOFASHITINGE RURRINGS

APPENDIX A
CITY OF WESTMINSTER ~ ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH
CONSULTATION TEAM LETTER

page 166



CITY OF WESTMINSTER MEMORANDUM

TO Licensing Officer

REFERENCE 14/07378/LIPV

FROM EH Consultation Team

REFERENCE

BEING DEALT WITH BY  lan Watson (iwatson@westminster.gov.uk)
TELEPHONE 020 7641 3183

DATE 29th September 2014

The Licensing Act 2003

Co-operative Food, 18-22 Park Road, NW1

| refer to the application for variation of the Premises Licence.

This representation is based on the operating schedule submitted.

The applicant is seeking the following

1. To remove condition 26 that requires all deliveries and collections from the rear area
of the property.

2. To amend condition 28 removing the requirement for refuse to be picked up from the
rear area of the property.

3. To amend condition 30 with the following ‘Delivery vehicles will not be permitted to
leave their engines running whilst making deliveries'.

[ wish to make the following representation

1. The removal and amendment of conditions (26, 28 and 30) regarding deliveries and

collections from the rear area will have the likely effect of causing an increase in
Public Nuisance within the area.

The applicant has not provided any supportive statement for the variation or how these
amendments will minimise public nuisance within the area.

Should you wish to discuss the matter further please do not hesitate to contact me.

lan Watson
Senior Practitioner Environmental Health (Licensing)

page 167



SONETARCY YNGR
REPESTRGOIUAL ¢ AL RnGE

APPENDIX B
THE OLYMPIC CODE OF CONDUCT FOR
QUIET NIGHT TIME DELIVERIES

page 168



Games Period 2012

Transport for London (TfL) Code of Practice for ‘Quiet’ Night-time Delivery and
Servicing

Background

The Games period during Summer 2012 will have an impact on delivery and
servicing activity across London.

In many cases, due to temporary restrictions, delivery and servicing activity for
premises including shops, pubs, offices, hotels and restaurants may only be possible
between 00.00 midnight and 06.00 a.m.

This required change to a night-time servicing profile will clearly pose challenges to
businesses, operators and London Boroughs — night-time activity will need to be
carried out in a way which both serves the needs of businesses and minimises
disruption to local residents.

To help businesses and Boroughs deal with this change in the timing of activity,
Transport for London (TfL) has developed this Code of Practice for ‘quiet’ night-time
delivery and servicing during the Games period.

Purpose of the Code of Practice

The purpose of this Code of Practice is to provide businesses with simple, practical
guidance on how to minimise noise from night-time delivery activities - the Code is
relevant to all sectors of activity and is structured in 3 parts:

» General Guidance on planning for ‘quiet’ night-time deliveries
* Key measures to reduce noise at the delivery point
e Key measures for drivers

Businesses in London should ensure that their staff, suppliers and carriers are aware
of the change in delivery profile and that they understand the sensitive nature of
delivery and servicing activity at night during the Games period.

Businesses in London should forward copies of this Code of Practice to all parties
likely to be servicing their premises during the Games period. It is particularly
important that drivers are briefed on the Code of Practice, as they play a critical role
in minimising noise from delivery and servicing activity.

This Code of Practice provides generic best practice in minimising noise from
delivery and servicing activity — BUT each delivery point will have its own particular
issues and it's important that these are reviewed and then specific noise reduction
measures added, as required.

The effectiveness of this Code of Practice has been demonstrated in a series of out-

of-hours delivery trials covering a variety of sectors, across London. Case studies for
these demonstration trials are available.

page 169



General Guidance

Think! - about the potential noise impact of any night-time activity on local
residents and review the likely sources of noise from delivery and servicing
activity for your specific situation

Where possible, use newer and quieter delivery vehicles and equipment
Ensure all staff involved in delivery activity are briefed and trained
appropriately, in accordance with the Code of Practice

Ensure all suppliers and carriers receive copies of the Code of Practice and
are aware of the importance of adhering to it

Liaise with your local Borough, making contact with the Environmental Health
Officer (EHO - responsible for noise issues) to explain what you plan to do to
manage night-time delivery and servicing activity during the Games period
Liaise with colleagues, suppliers and carriers to ensure they are aware of the
sensitive nature of night-time delivery activity in your location and try to
minimise the likelihood of multiple vehicles arriving at the same time — ensure
all drivers follow the guidance below

The Delivery Point

¢ @ 8 @ o

Ensure delivery bay doors are well maintained to minimise noise when moved
Switch off any external tannoy systems

Avoid using external bells at delivery points

Switch off the radio when delivery point doors are open

Ensure the delivery point and surrounding areas are clear of all obstructions,
helping to make vehicle manoeuvring as simple as possible

Ensure all doors, gates and shutters are opened and closed as quietly as
possible

Keep doors other than the delivery point closed to ensure noise does not
escape

Where possible, prepare all empty handling units, salvage, returns etc behind
closed doors. Check they are in the correct condition, position and height etc
before taking outside - minimise activity ‘out in the open’

Think of how to minimise contact between hard surfaces, particularly metal on
metal, during the unloading/loading processes — for example, use of rubber
matting and buffering material on doors etc

Service any equipment used in the delivery operation in advance to minimise
noise

Make sure the delivery point is ready for the vehicle in advance of arrival —
gates and doors should be open in advance, to avoid the vehicle sitting
stationary, idling

Ensure staff don't shout or whistle to get the attention of the driver

page 170



The Driver

If early for your delivery slot, do not park up/wait near to residential property
Consideration to noise and local residents should be shown as you approach
the site and manoeuvre your vehicle into position

Do not sound your hom

Reversing alarms should be switched off, if not subject to health and safety
requirements; use a qualified banksman instead, if available

Engines are to be switched off immediately when you are not manoeuvring —
but try to minimise the number of start-ups and avoid over-revving
Refrigeration equipment is to be switched off in advance of arrival at premises
If sitting in the cab, waiting with the radio on, then ensure windows are closed
and the radio is switched off before opening the cab door

Minimise the frequency of opening and closing cab and other vehicle doors
Take extra time if needed to unload as quietly as possible

Close cab doors quietly

Be mindful of how far your voice can carry when talking outside at night

If opening a gate / roller shutter door to gain access, be sure to avoid
excessive noise; raise roller shutter doors gently and try to reduce the
frequency of door/gate opening

Lower flaps on tail-lifts carefully and quietly

No whistling or shouting to get the attention of store employees

When moving gates, locks and load restraint bars, ensure these are placed
gently in their resting position/stowage point— don't drop or drag them on the
ground

When safe to do so, use sidelights rather than headlights when off-road and
manoeuvring, to minimise light intrusion

Minimise excessive air brake noise

When working in the vehicle loadspace, avoid banging cages etc into vehicle
walls

Show the same consideration when leaving the site, as when arriving

TiL 07/09/11

page 171



i



APPENDIX A4

RE. THE CO-OP AND PREMISES LICENCES
UNDER THE LICENSING ACT 2003

ADVICE

1. I am asked to advise the Co-Op about a condition which appears in several of its
premises licences granted under the Licensing Act 2003, and as to the proper

interpretation of this condition.

2. I have in front of me a typical example of such a premises licence, in this case
granted by Knowsley Council, for a Co~-Op situated in Fazakerley. The licence authorises
the licensable activity of the sale by retail or the supply of alcohol. The licensee is the Co-
Operative Group Food Limited. Aftached to this licence are the mandatory conditions,
and various other conditions under the headings of the licensing objectives i.e. the
prevention of crime and disorder, public safety, the prevention of public nuisance, and the
protection of children from harm. Modifications were made to the condit.ioné, following
a hearing on 14" March 2013, which the Council considered “appropriate, proportionate

and reasonable” to make “having regard to the promotion of the licensing objectives™,

3. Under the heading of “The Prevention of Public Nuisance” appears just one

condition, (not modified earlier this year) which is:-

“No deliveries to take place between 10pm and 7am the
following day.”

-1- SPACO-OP ADVICE 25.4,13,docx

page 173



4, I understand that no deliveries of alcohol have taken place between 10pm and
7am, but it has been alleged that some deliveries of other goods which the shop sells have
taken place within those hours. This condition, as I have mentioned, is typical of more
than one Co-op premises licence and although the premises licence I have quoted is one
granted by Knowsley Council, this Advice extends to other licences with a similar
condijtion. Knowsley Council, I understand, have put forward the view that the condition
means that no deliveries whatsoever may take place between 10pm and 7am, whereas the
Co-Op and my Instructing Solicitor maintain that the condition can only refer to the

deliveries of alcohol to the premises covered by the licence.

The Licensing Act 2003

5. The heading to the Act specifies that it is:-

“An Act to make provision about the regulation of the sale
and supply of alcohol, the provision of entertainment and the
provision of late night refreshment, about offences relating to
alcohol and for connected purposes.”

6. Section 1 sets out the “licensable activities”, the first one of which is the sale by

retail of alcohol.

U By Section 2(1)(a), a licensable activity (in this case the sale by retail and supply
of alcohol) may be carried on under and in accordance with a premises licence. By
Section 136, a person commits an offence if he carries on a licensable activity from
premises otherwise than under and in accordance with an authorisation, i.e. a licence in

this case. There are various other offences relating to alcohol set out in the following

g 2 SRCO-OP ADVICE 25.4.13.dacx

page 174



sections. Obviously, therefore, the licence is entirely concerned with making lawful, and

controlling, the licensable activities.
8. By Section 4(1) a licensing authority:-

...... must carry out its functions under this Act (“licensing
functions”) with a view to promoting the licensing
objectives.

(2)  The licensing objectives are:

(a)  the prevention of crime and disorder;

(b)  public safety;

(c) the prevention of public nuisance; and

(d) - the protection of children from harm.”

9. By Section 11, a premises licence means a licence which “authorises the premises
to be used for one or more licensable activities”. So, as may be seen, everything is tied to

the licensable activity which in this case refers to the sale by retail of alcohol.

10. A licensing authority is given power to grant a premises licence subject to
conditions (see Section 18). If no relevant representations are received, the authority’s
power to impose conditions is limited, but if a relevant representation is received, the
authority’s power is somewhat wider. However it is still constrained as the authority may
only impose conditions (other than the mandatory conditions), “appropriate for the

promotion of the licensing objectives”.

-3- SRCO-OPF ADVICE 25.4.13.docx

page 175



11.  The Co-Op requires this licence solely to enable the sale of alcohol by retail. It
does not require any premises licence to carry on the main bulk of its trade, which is that
of selling food and other grocery products, presumably permitted under appropriate
planning permission. Therefore, it can lawfully supply food and other grocery products
other than alcohol without a premises licence. If there were no premises licence in force,
the Co-Op can perfectly lawfully receive deliveries of food and other grocery products at

any time.

12. A licensing authority may only impose a condition so far as it considers it
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives in relation to a licensable
activity. It does not have carte blanche to impose any condition which it considers may be
appropriate to the premises. To impose such a condition unrelated to a licensable activity
would be ultra vires, unlawful and irrational. This was recently illustrated in a Scottish

case, Bapu Properties Limited v. City of Glasgow Licensing Board 2012 WL 488659.

This was an appeal to the Sheriff’s Court under the Licensing (Scotland) Act 2005 where
the Licensing Board had refused an application for a variation of a premises licence in
relation to a licensed Indian restaurant. The restaurant wished to extend the ambit of the
licence to include an external seating area along the pavement next to the glass frontage
of the restaurant. One of the reasons given by the Board to support this refusal was that
the granting of the application would be inconsistent with the licensing objective of
preventing public nuisance. The Board considered that granting the application would
Jimit the space on the footpath so as to cause congestion and inconvenience to pedestrians

in a busy area of the city centre.

- SF\CO-OP ADVICE 25.4.13.docx

page 176



13.  The Scottish Licensing Act is not identical in its terms to the Licensing Act 2003
but it has striking similarities. It refers to “premises licences,”, and licensing objectives,
one of which is “preventing public nuisance.” One of the grounds for refusal of a licence
is that “the Board considers that the granting of the licence would be inconsistent with
one or more of the licensing objectives.” In my view, it is right that the Scofttish court and

the Scottish law should provide authority and guidance for the English court.

14,  The Court found:-

“45. The single function of a Licensing Board under the
2005 Act is that of the licensing of the sale of alcohol. The
powers to licence (sic) the sale of alcohol cannot be
deployed to effect objectives not related to the sale of
alcohol, but which the Licensing Board might yet find
desirable. The objectives listed in Section 4 of the 2005
Act” (which are the licensing objectives), “though striking in
their apparent generality, are not “free-standing” objectives.
They are “licensing” objectives. The objectives, if they are
to be relied upon to refuse a licence, must be “linked to the
sale of alcohol” (Brightcrew Limited v. The City of Glasgow
Licensing Board, [2011] CSIH 46 at paragraph 26).”

The court went on to describe how the supposed public nuisance arose from the
apprehended pedestrian congestion on the footpath. However the court held that
congestion was not directly or materially linked to the sale of alcoho! on the premises. It
did not flow directly or materially from the licensing of the sale of alcohol. If it existed at
all it would be attributable to the physical presence of the tables and the chairs of the

restaurant’s external operation, which was already sanctioned by, inter alia, planning

consent. Of course, conditions imposed on licences in England should not duplicate other

~Sa SRACO-OP ADVICE 25.4.13.docx

page 177



statutory provisions either, and here the Coop is entitled to sell food and other grocery

products by virtue of planning permission.
15.  The Court further stated:-

“48. The Board is not concerned with preventing public
nuisance generally. The Board is only concerned with
prevention of public nuisance so far as referable to the sale
of alcohol.”

16.  In the Brightcrew case (supra), at para 26, in addition to what was quoted in the
Bapu case, the Inner House, Court of Session stated that, although the licensing
objectives were all desirable in a general sense, that did not empower a Licensing Board

to insist on matters not linked to the sale of alcohol. The same is true in England.

17.  Consequently, in my view,,any condition imposed has to be able to be materially
and directly related to a licensable activity, which in this case is the sale by retail of
alcohol. The authority do not have power under the Licensing Act to impose a condition
which relates to anything other than one of the licensable activities i.e. here the sale by
retail of alcohol. As was said in the Bapu Properties case (following the Brightcrew
case), the authority is not concerned with preventing public nuisance generally, only with
the prevention of public nuisance so far as it is referable fo the sale of alcohol. A
condition which purports therefore to limit all deliveries of foodstuffs or other groceries
would be an unlawful condition because the authority would not have the power to
impose it. However, the condition can be construed, and, in my view, must be construed,

perfectly lawfully, if construed only to refer to deliveries of alcohol to be sold in the shop.

_6- SFACO-OP ADVICE 25.4.13.doex

page 178



When faced with two possible interpretations, one of which would be unlawful and the

other of which is lawful, the lawful interpretation is the one to be followed,

18.  In contract law, “where the words of a contract are capable of two meanings, one
of which is lawful and the other unlawful, the former construction should be preferred.”
This principle is based on the proposition that “the parties are unlikely to have intended to
agree to something unlawful.” (See Lewison “The Interpretation of Contracts,” 5"
Edition at 7.1). The same can be said here: the authority is unlikely to have intended to
impose a condition that was ultra vires and unlawful. Indeed, one must work on the basis
that the authority intended to act lawfully and within its powers, and therefore, the

condition can only refer to deliveries of alcohol.

19. 1 have in front of me a letter from Mrs Jane Miller in Croydon written to the local
council in relation to a variation application put in by the Co-Op in respect of premises in
Featherbed Lane, complaining that deliveries of bread to the Co-Op have taken place
before 7am. The letter is the only representation received in respect of the application.
The Licensing officer is suggesting that it is a relevant representation and therefore there
needs to be a hearing. However, as I have set out above, when the authority are carrying
out its duties under the Licensing Act, under section 4 (see para 8 above), the authority
are concerned with matters relevant to the licensable activity in question and not public
nuisance generally. Mrs Miller’s letter deals only with alleged deliveries of grocery
products and has nothing to do with the retail sale of alcohol, and therefore has nothing to
do with the likely effect of the grant of the application on the promotion of the licensing

objectives. It therefore cannot be a relevant representation (see section 35(5)). Therefore

.7- SRCO-0P ADVICE 25.4,13.docx

page 179



the application must be granted administratively without the need for a hearing (see

section 35(2)).

SUSANNA FITZGERALD Q.C.

One Essex Court
Temple

London

EC4Y 9AR.

29 April 2013

-8- SICO-OP ADVICE 25.4.13 . docx

page 180



RE, THE CO-OP AND PREMISES
LICENCE

UNDER THE LICENSING ACT 2003

ADVICE

Ward Haddaway
Sandgate House
102 Quayside
Newcastle Upon Tyne
NEI1 3DX

Telephone: 0191 204 4000
DX: 61265 Newcastle upon Tyne

Ref RXA.AS.C00229.4 Richard Amot

page 181



APPENDIX A5

Talor v Manchester City Council TCG Bars Ltd [2012) EWHC 3467 (Admin) (07 December 2012) Page 1 of 19

[Home] [Databases] {World Law] [Multidatabase Sesrch] [Help] [Feedback]
« Y England and Wales High Court
*a- (Administrative Court) Decisions

You are here: BAILLL >> Databases >> Eneland and Wales High Court (Administrative Court) Decisions >> Taylor v
Matnchester City Council TCG Bars Ltd [2012] EWHC 3467 (Admin) (07 December 2012)

URL: htip:/twww.bailit.orglew/cases/EWHC/Admin/2012/3467, him}
Cltens: [2012] EWHC 3467 (Admin)

[New search] [Printable RTF version] [Help)

Neutral Citation Number: [2012] EWHC 3467 {Admin)
Case No: CO/5736/2012

IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE

QUEEN'S BENCH DIVISION

ADMINISTRATIVE COURT IN MANCHESTER

(ON APPEAL FROM THE MANCHESTER AND SALFORD MAGISTRATES' COURT BY WAY Of CASE

STATED)

Leeds Combined Court,
1 Oxford Row, Leads LS1 3BG

071212012

Before:

MR JUSTICE HICKINBOTTOM

Between:
MATTHEW TAYLOR

Appellant
-and -

MANCHESTER CITY COUNCIL

TCG BARS LIMITED Respondents

Jeremy Phillips (instructed by LR Law) for the Appellant
Sarah Clover {instructed by Susan Orrell, City Solicitor, Manchester City Councill)
for the First Respondent
The Second Responcdents were not represented and did not appear.
Hearing date: 26 Novermnber 2012

HTML VERSION OF JUDGMENT

Crown Copyright ©

hitp:fiwiw batlil. orglew/casesEWHCG/AmIn/2012/3467.him 1000172013

page 182



Taylor v Manchester Cily Council TCG Bars Ltd [2012) EWHC 3467 (Admin) (07 December 2012) Page 2¢.qg

*
Mr Justice Hickinbottom: i

Intraduction N

1. When and to what extent, if at all, can an application to vary a licence under the Licensing Act 2003 be
amended? d

2. Thatis an important question in practice, because many applicants seek to change thelr proposed
variation in the light of representations they receive objecting to it or some part of it. It is & question
which, as | understand It, has never before been addressed by the courts,

3. The question comes before this court in the form of a case stated by Deputy District Judge Robinson
sitting in the Manchester and Salford Magistrates' Court. On 8 and 8 March 2012, he heard an appeal
by the Appeliant Matthew Taylor against a decision of the Licensing Sub-Committee of the First
Respondent Manchester City Council ("the Councll'), taken on 7 October 2011, to grant 2 variation to a
premises ficence relating to premises known as Via in Canal Street, Manchester. The Second
Respondents TCG Bars Limited ("TCG Bars") owned and operated Via, and were the premises licence
holder.

4. As a preliminary issue, Mr Taylor contended that the Council had asted unlawfully because TCG Bars
had significantly revised their application after the statutory period of advertisement and constltation
had expired, meaning that responsible authorities (such as the Council's own Environmental Health
Department) and local residents had no reasonable notice of the revision and no proper opportunity of
making representations In respect of it.

5. The Deputy District Judge held that the Councit did not act unlawfully, and Mr Taylor appealed that
decision to this coust by way of case stated dated 14 May 2012, In paragraph 52 of the Case Stated,
the Deputy District Judge poses the followlng question for this court:

"Given the variance bstween the application to vary the premises licence originally
adveriised and the revised scheme, and the timing of those revisions, was | correct in
ruling that it was lawful for [the Gouncil] to proceed to determine [TGC Bars'] application
in accordance with section 35 of the Licensing Act 2003?" L

The Licensing Act 2003
8. In this judgment, all statutory references are to the Licensing Act 2003, unless otherwise indicated.

7. The Licensing Act 2003, which came into force on 24 November 2008, radically changed licensing in
England and Wales. Until then, there had been a patchwork of licensing systems, under which alcohol
icences were granted by licensing Justices, reflecting their historicat role in maintaining the peace;
whilst other licensing functions, such as entertainment, were in the administrative province of local
councils.

8. The 2003 Act created a single system, in which magistrates were relieved of their administrative
licensing responsibilities, in favour of local authorities. The White Paper which led to the reforms ("Time
for Reform: Proposals for the Modemisation of Our Licensing Laws” (Cm 4698) (April 2000)) identified
three reasons for the transfer of all licansing functions to local councils, as follows (paragraph 123):

o Accountabliity: we strongly belisve that the [lcensing authority should
be accountable to local residents whose lives are fundamentally
affected by the decisions taken.

o Accesslbilty: many local residents may be Inhibited by coust
processes, and would be more willing to soek to influence decisions
if in the hands of local councillors.

o Crime and dlsorder: Local authorities now have a leading statutory

role in preventing local crime and disorder, and the link between

http:/fwww.ballli arglew/cases/EWH CfAdmin/2012/3467 himl 10/01/2013

page 183




Taylor v Manchester Clty Council TCG Bars Lid [2012] EWHC 3467 {Admin) {07 December 2012)

10.

11.

12.

13.

Page 3 of 19

alcohol and crime persuasively argues for them to have a similar lead
on licensing.”

The first bullet point emphasises that licensing declsions were to be regarded as adminlstrative
decisions, taken in the public interest and subject to political accountability,

The role of a licensing authorily under the 2003 Act was recently considered by the Court of Appeal in
R (Hope and Glory Public House Limited) v City of Westminster [2011] EWCA Civ 31 ("Hope and Glory
Publie House"). Having rehearsed the history behind the Act, Toulson LJ, giving the judgment of the
court, said (at (41]-{42)):

"41. ... [T]he licensing function of a licensing authority is an administrative function. By
contrast, the function of the district judge Is a judicial function, The licensing authority has
a duty, in accordance with the rule of iaw, to behave fairly in the declsion-making
procedure, but the declsion ltself is not a judicial or quasi-judicial act, It is the exercise of
a power delegated by the people as & whole to decide what the public interest requires..,.

42, Licensing declsions often Involve welghing a variety of competing considerations: the
demand for licensed establishments, the economic benefit to the proprietor and to the
locality by drawing in visitors and stimulating the demand, the effect on law and ordar, the
impact on the lives of those who live and work in the vicinity, and so on. Sometimes &
licensing decision may involve narrower questions, such as whether nolse, noxious
smells or litter coming from premises amount to a public nuisance. Although such
questions are in a sense questions of fact, they are not questions of the 'heads or tallg'
variety, They involve an evaluation of what is to be regarded as reasonably acceptable in
the particular location. In any case, deciding what (if any) conditions should be attached
to a licence as necessary and proportionate to the promotion of the statutory licensing
objectives is essentlally a matter of judgment rather than a matter of pure fact"

That chimes with the White Paper, Toulson LJ again stressing the essentially evaluative nature of the
decislon making precess in most licensing matters, which demands a complex balancing exercise,
involving particularly the requirements of various strands of the public interest in the speclfic
circumstances, including the spacific locality. He also marked the fact that Pasliament has determined
that, in this context, local authorities are best placed to make decisions of that nature,

The administrative nature of a licsnsing authority's function is also emphasised by, e.g., requlation 23
of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 (S1 2005 No 44) ("the Hearing Regulations"),
which provides that the hearing of an application "shall take the form of a discussion led by the
authority...” and forbids cross-examination except In limited circumstances.

However, the justices still have a role to play in the new scheme. The main sanction for thase who fail
to comply with the new licensing laws Is criminal, and magistrates have retained respansibility for
dealing with people charged with offences under the licensing laws, as well as having an appellate
function from licensing decisions of the relevant locai authority.

The basic mechanism for regulation of the relevant activities is as follows, By section 2 of the 2003 Act,
"llcensable activities” can only be carried on under and in accordance with s “premises licence" issued
by a "llcensing authority", defined in section 3(1) usually to be the relevant local council; and section
136 Imposes a criminal sanction on those who carry on licensable activities otherwise than under and
in accordance with such a licence. "Licensable activities” include the retail sale of alcohol, the provision
of regulated entertalnment and the pravision of late night refreshment (section 1(1)).

Section 4 is also an important provision, Under It, a licensing authority must carry out its functions
under the Act (and hence must datermine any licensing decision i has to make) with a view to
promoting the following "licensing objectives":

(2) the prevention of crime and dlsorder;
{b) public safety;

(c) the prevention of public nuisance; and

page 184 10/01/2013



Taylor v Manchester City Council TCG Bars Lid [2012] EWHC 3467 {Admin) (07 December 2012) Page 4 of 19

14,

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

hllp:l/www.bailii.org!ewlcaseleWHC/AdmIn/2012[3487.hlrg

(d) the protectlon of children from harm.

It is noteworthy that all of these objectives are essentially concerned with the public interest; although,
of course, evidence of how a licence might affect individuals may be relevant to the assessment of that'
public interest.

By saction 4(3), in exercising those functions, the authority must also have regard to both:

i) Guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182, which requires her to
issue such guidance. The relevant version for the purposes of this appeal, which | shall
refar to as simply "the section 182 Guidance", was issued In Aprll 2012. It has now been
replaced by new guidance issued in October 2012.

iy The authority's own licensing statement published under section 5, which requires each
authorily to publish a statement of licensing policy regularly, at the relevant tme for a
period of three years and now (by virtue of section 122 of the Police Reform and Social
Responsibility Act 2011) for a period of five years. The Council's current Statement of
Licensing Policy ("the Council's Staterment of Licensing Policy") cavers the period 2011-
14.

The licensing functions of an authority are in practice delegated to a licensing commlitee or sub-
committee (sections 6 and 7). In the Council's case, they have established a Licensing Committee of
16 Council Members, with any application that requires a decislon being determined by a Sub-
Committee of three members of the Licensing Committee at a hearing (paragraph 3.36 of the Councll's
Statement of Licensing Policy).

As Mr Phillips submitied, the regime is essentially a permissive one, generally allowing anyone to carry
out "llcensable activities” In an unfettered way by requiring the licensing authority to grant or vary a
licence on application, unless the decision making powers of the licensing authority are friggered — by,
e.0., representations being made on an application to vary — whereupon the authority must take a
decision in response to the application based upon the promation of the licensing objectives, However,
even then, the steps it has power to take are fimited to those specifically identified in the scheme.

Section 17 sets out the procedure for making an application for a new licence. Section 17(3) requires
an application to be accompanied by "a plan of the premises to which the application relates, in the
prescribed form". Sectlon 17(5) provides that the Secretary of State must by regulations require the
applicant and the licensing authority to adverlise the application for a prescribed period and in &
prescribed manner, and "prescribe a perlod during which interested parties and responsible authorities
may make representations to the retevant licensing authority about the application”, "Interested parties"
are defined In section 13(3) as including a person living in the vicinity of the premises. (Under section
105 of the Police Refarm and Social Responsibillty Act 2011, "interested parties” has now been
substituted by "persons who live, ar are involved in a business, in the relevant licensing area”, but that
change has no relevance to this appeal). "Responsible authorities” are defined in sectlon 13(4) to
include relevant local weights and measures, polics, fire, rescue, health, environmental health and
planning authorities.

An application must also put forward an individual as the "designated premises supervisor", and no
supply of alcohal can be made under a licence unless there is such a supervisar named in the licence
and he has a current "personal licence" In accordance with Part 6 of the 2003 Act (sections 15 and 19).
Personal licences form no part of this appeal, and | need not say anything further about them; except

that, since May 2010, the designated premises supervisar for the premises at 28-30 Canal Street has
been Anthony Cooper,

The Secretary of State has made procedural regulations in respect of applications for premises
licences In the form of the Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates)
Regulations 2005 (SI 2005 No 42) ("the Premises Regulations"), as well as the Hearing Regulations.

Subject to the express requirements of the Hearing Regulations, procedure at the hearing of an
application is expressly a matter for the licensing authority {regulation 21 of the Hearing Regulations).
There Is no similar provision in the Premises Regulations, which are generally prescriptive as to the
pre-hearing procedure that must be followed by the applicant (who must comply with the appropriate
provisions in Parts 2 and 4), and the licensing authority (which must comply with the appropriate
provisions in Parts 4 and &) {regulations 4 and 6).

10/01/2013
e 185




Tayior v Manchester City Cauncil TCG Bars Ltd [2012] EWHC 3467 (Admin) (07 December 2012) ‘ Page 5 of 19

21.

22.

23,

24,

25.

hup‘.l/www.ballil.org/ewlcases/EWHClAdmin12012/36%811]

Regulation 23(1) of the Premlises Regulations repeats the requirement that an application for a new

licence must be accompanied by a plan; and regulation 23(3) provides that a plan, when requirad, must
show various specified topographical features, including;

"(a) The extent of the boundary of the building, If relevant, and any external and internal
walls of the bullding and, if different, the perimeter of the premises;

(b) the location of points of access to and egress from the premises;
(c) if different from subparagraph (3)(b), the location of escape route from the premises:
(d) N .u

Of course, in addltion to the elements required by regulation 23(3), a plan that is lodged may show
other matters which are not required by law.

Regulation 25 requires applications to be adve_rtisad In specific ways for 28 days,

“Relevant representations” are defined es representations made by an interested party or responsible
authorlty, which are nelther frivolous nor vexatious nor withdrawn, and which are in time and “are about
the likely effect of the grant of the prermises licence on the promotion of the licensing

objectives” (section 18(6) and (7) of the 2003 Act). That definition is important: representations to be
relevant have to be about the effect of the licence on the promotion of the public interest ficensing
objectives set out in section 4, although evidence of the actual or potential impact of the licence on
Individuals may be relevant to the various strands of public Interest involved. That is reflected in
Appendix 2 to the Councll's Statement of Licensing Policy which, under the heading "Relevant
Information for Residents and Other interested Parties”, states:

1]

o In accordance with (the definition of 'relevant representation'], you

should demonstrate how your representation affects the promotion of
the licensing objectives.

o Provide an evidential base for the grounds of the representation;
which could Include written logs of problems, details of pravious
complaints, photographs or video evidence of the particular case."

The relevant period for representations in a case such as this is "28 consecutive days starting on the
day after the day on which the application to which It relates was glven fo the authority by the
applicant” (regulation 22 of the Premises Reguiations).

Where no "relevant representations” are made, the llcensing authority is bound to grant the application
subject only to specified conditions derlved from the operating schedule (section 18(2)), Where such
representations are made, a decision making power arises in the licensing authority, because the
requirement that the authaority is bound to grant the application Is subject not only to those same

conditions but also to section 18(3) and (4), which provides that, where relevant representations are
made: ' .

"(3) ... the authority must -

(a) hold a hearing to consider them, unless the authority, the applicant and
each person who has made such representations agree that a hearing in
unnecessary; and

(b} having regard to the representations, take such steps mentioned in sub-
section (4) (If any) as It considers necessary for the promotion of the
licensing objectives.

(4) The steps are —

e 186 10/01/2013



Taylor v Manchester City Council TCG Bars Ltd [2012) EWHG 3467 (Admin) (07 Pecember 2012) Page 6 of 18

(a) to grant the licence subject to [such conditions mandated by the
statutory provisions, and such conditions as are consistent with the

operating schedule accompanying the application modified to such extent

as the authority considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing
objectives];

{b) to exclude from the scope of the licence any licensable activities to
which the application relates;

(0) to refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premisss supervisor,
(d) to reject the application.”
26. With regard to subsection (4)(a):

() by section 18(5), for these purposes, conditions are "modified” if any of them Is "altered or omitted or
any new condition is added"; and

(ii) by section 109 of the Police Reform and Soclel Responslbility Act 2011, "necessary” has now been
replaced by "appropriate”; but agaln that change Is not material to this appeal.

27. Whilst the provisions of section 18(3) and (4) are written in mandatory terms (... the authority
must..."), a discretion arises as the result of the words “take such steps ... as If considers necessary
..." (emphases added). However, in determining a licence application, the discretlon that an authority
has is limited in two ways: (i) that authority can only take one or more of the steps listed in sectlon 18
(4), and (i) it is empowered (although also obliged) to take only such of those steps It "considers
necessary for the prometion of the licensing objectives". The statutory provisions con sequently both
define and limit an authority's powers in determining an application for a new licence.

28. Once a licence has been granted, if it is proposed to change the relevant business or premises such
that the carrylng out of licensable activities will fall outsida the licence which has been granted, then the
licence holder can change the licence in one of three ways.

29. First, if it Is proposed to extend the perlod for which the licence has effect or to vary substantially the
premises to which It relates, then a new application under section 17 has to be made (section 36(6),
and paragraph 8.73 of the section 182 Guidance). That requires, not anly advertisement and a perlod
for the meking of relevant representations to be made, but also the licensing authority to reconsider
and review the entire licence afresh.

30. Second, at the other end of the scale, if the proposal is of a very limited nature, which is Incapable of
having an adverse Impact on the promotion of any of the licensing objectives, then a simplified
procedure involving restricted publicity can be adopted (sections 41A-41D, introduced by the
Leglslative Reform (Minor Variations to Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates) Order 2009
(S 2008 No 1772)). Paragraphs 8.59 and 8.60 of the section 182 Guidance provide:

"g.59. Many small variatians to layout will have no adverse impact on the licensing
objectives. However, changes to layout should be referred to the full variation process if
they could potentially have an adverse impact on the promotion of the licensing
objectives, for example by... affecting access between the public part of the premises
and the rest of the premises or the street or public way, e.g. block emergency exlts or
routes to emergency exits....

8,60, Licansing authorities will also pneed to consider the combined effect of a series of
applications for successive small layout changes (for example, as part of a rolling
refurbishment of a premises) which in themselves may not be signlficant, put which
cumulatively may Impact on the licensing objectives. This emphasises the Importance of
having an up to date copy of the premises plan avallable.”

31. Itls not suggested by any parly that the changes proposed in this case, to which | shall come shortly,
warranted a new section 17 applicatian for a new licence, or could properly have been the subject of
the minor variation procedure. It is common ground that it was appropriate for those proposed changes
to be the subject of the third procedure, namely an application for a variation of the licence under

hitp:/fwww. bailil orglew/cases/EWHC/Admin/201 2/3467&% g e 187 10/01/2013




Taylor v Manchester City Council TCG Bars Lid {2012) EWHC 3467 (Admin) {07 December 2012) Page 7 of 19

32.

33.

35.

36.

37.

38,

section 34,

The procedure for an application under section 34 mimors the procedure for a new application under
section 17.

The Secretary of State has to make regulalions for the due advertisement of the application (section 34
(2)); and, by regulations 25 and 26 of the Premises Regulations, she has provided that the
advertisement of suich application must be the same as for an application under section 17 for a new
licence. ’

Any premisss liconce has to be accompanied by a plan; but that does not mean that a plan always has
to accompany an application to vary. Section 34(6) and regulations 27 and 27A of the Premises
Regulations refer, expressly or implicitly, to accompaniment by a plan where appropriate; and
regulation 23(1) only requires a plan to accompany an application for a new licerice under saclion 17,
For example, If an application to vary is made merely to extend hours for the same licensed activities
without any change to the premises themselves, a plan would be unnecessary In practice and is not
required by the scheme. However, it was properly common ground that where, as here, there Is an
application for & variation Including significant changes to the internal layout of the premises (Including

elements required to be on & plan by regulation 23(3)), a plan complying with regulation 23(3) would be
essentlal to the application,

Section 35(2)H4) of the 2003 Act, reflecting to an extent section 18(2)~(4) in respect of a section 17
application for a new licence, provides that, where no relevant representations are recelved within the
relevant period, then the licensing authority must grant the variation; but, where such representations
are recelved, then they trigger a decision making process. The authority must hold a hearing and must,
having regard to the representations, take such steps from those listed in section 35(4), if any, as it
cansiders necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives. Sub-section (4) states that:

“{4) The steps are -
(a) to modify the conditions of the licencs;
(b) to reject whole or part of the application

and for this purpose the conditions of the licence are medified if any of them
Is altered or omitted or any new conditian Is added."

Again, the licensing authority has a discretion in its decisian making here; but, as with section 18(4) for
an applicatian for a new ilcence, where there are relevant representations in respect of an application

to vary, itis limited: the authorlty can only respond to the application in one or more of the ways set out
in section 35(4), and it can only take such steps "as it considers necessary for the promotion of the

licensed objectives.” Again, that requires an evaluation of what is nacessary for the promotion of those
objectives.

Therefore, as with a saction 17 application, it can be seen that it is the making of relevant
representations In respect of an application to vary that triggers a process of decision making by the
authority, in the form of a hearing and degision to take such steps as are allowed and required by
section 35(3) and (4). Where no representations ara received within the relevant period, the applicant
is entitled to the variation he seeks: no decision making process is triggered at all (Corporation of the
Hall of Arts and Sciences v The Albert Court Residents’ Association [2011] EWCA Civ 430
"Corporation of the Hall of Arts and Sciences"). It was suggested, obiter, in Corporation of the Hall of
Arts and Sclences that an authorily has no power to take into account late representations even where
the decision making process may have been triggered by other, In-time representations (see, e.g.,
[41]): and It ssems to me that that follows from the wording of section 35(3), which focuses exclusively
on relevant representations which are defined in terms of being in-time, Howaver, it was common

ground before me ~and, In my view, properly so - that, if someone has made relevant represeniations,
then he may later amplify them,

There is one fina! procedure that should be mentioned. Under saction 51 , where a premises licence Is
in effect, a responsible authority or interested party may apply to the licensing authority for a review of
the licance. The onus of eslablishing grounds for review falls upon the person Initlating the application
- including establishing that the ground is relevani to one or more of the licensing cbjectives (section

g bailii. JHCIAdmMIN/2012/3467. -
hitp:/fwwew.ballii.orglew/cases/EV min ﬁg@% 188 10/01/2013



Taylor v Manchester City Councit TCG Bars Ltd [2012] EWHC 3467 {(Admin) (07 December 2012) Page 8 of 19

39,

40.

41,

42,

51(4)(a)) — but, otherwise, the procedure again reflects that for a new licence. In particular, any such
application’has to be lhe subject of advertisement (as well as notice to the licence holder), and there is
a period In which representations may be made. There must be a hearing to consider the application
and any relevant representations, which are agaln defined by reference to relevance to the licensing
objectives (section 52(7)). In response to an application, the authorlty agaln must take such steps that
are listed as it considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing ob|ectives, those steps being, in
this context: :

"(a) to modify the conditions of the licence;

(b) to exciude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence,
(é) to remove the designated premises supervisar,

{d) o suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;
{e) to revoke the licence.”

Such an application would be appropriate where a licence holder performs licensable activities, within
the scope and in accordance with the terms and conditions of his licence, but nevertheless those
activities impact adversely on local residents, by causing unanticipated disorder or a public nuisance. It
might be prompted by, e.g., a change In the manner in which the business is conducted (albsit within
the scope and conditions of the licence), or merely busier trade.

The Facts

Canal Street Is an area of restaurants and bars, as well as residentlal accommodation, ih e central part
of Manchester known as the Village.

Since September 2005, TGC Bars have operated a bar in premises at 28-30 Canal Street, under a
premises licence granted by the Councll. Those premises front onto Canal Street, and back onto
Richmond Street, a parallel street. They comprise essentially twe licensed fioors: the ground flaor
including a mid-level mezzanine floor, and a basement.

The licence authorises three activities: tha retail sale of alcohol, the provision of identified regulated
entertalnment and the provision of late night refreshment. The licence as inlfially granted was subject to

94 conditions, Inctuding the following in Anhex 2

Condition 31: "The licensed pramises shall be provided with an adequate number of exits
clearly indicated and so placed end maintained so as to readlly afford the audience ample
means of safg egress.”

Condition 33: "Emergency doors must not be fitted with any sécuring device other than an
approved type of panic bolt fitting...."

Condltion 34: "Doars not in normal use, which are regarded as emergency exits, should
be fitted with an alarm which is activated when they are opened. The alarm should be
inaudible in public areas and should sound in an area permanently manned by
management/staff whilst the premises are occupied...."

Condltion 80: "Alterationg cr addltions, elther permanent.or temporgyy, to the structure,
ighting, heating or other installations or to the approved seating gangways or any other
arrangements in the premises must not be made except with the prior approval of the City
Councll."

Condition 71: "Occupancy: Bassment 240 persons, Mid Level 120 persons, Ground Level
260 persons, Total 620 persons.”

Condition 72: "The windows and external doors on the Canal Street fagade to be kept
closed after 23.00 hours except for access and sgress.”

hitp:fiwww.ballil.arg/lew/cases/EWH CtAdmin/2012!3467.% g e 189 10/01/2013




Taylor v Manchester City Council TCG Bars Ltd [2012] EWHC 3467 (Admin} (07 Decembar 2012) Paga 9 of 18

43,

44,

45.

46.

47,

48,

The licence had a plan of each floor attached to it, showing the matters required by regulation 23(3),
and more. It showsd five sels of extemal doors on the Canal Street fagade ground floor, twa (each with
a lobby Inside) marked, "Entrance”; and one, at the south east end of the building, glving access to the
basement anly via a doorway anto Canal Street ("the V2 doorway") and a set of stairs. The V2 doorway
Is adjacent to the door to the residential apartments on the upper fioors of 10 Canal Street (the first
floor, ground floor and basement of those premises being another licensed bar called "Crunch", ownad
and managed at the relevant time and now by the Appellant, which has an enfrance just a few yards
further up Canal Street). At the bottom of those stairs from the V2 doorway, the basement plan
attached to the licence for the Via premises shows double doors markad "FD" into a bar area with
dance flaor,

The extent to which the V2 doorway had been used prior to the application to vary Is contentious.
However, It was common ground before the Deputy District Judge that It had not been used as the
principal entrance and exlt to the premises, and use of the doorway had not been required to cease as
a rasult of being a breach of licence. For the purposes of the preliminary ruling, the parties agreed that
it was not necessary for the judge to make a finding about the extent of the use that had been made of
that doorway (Case Stated, paragraph 13) - and he did not make any such finding.

On those licence plans, there ars a number of doors shown from the rear of the building onto
Richmond Street; notably one set, again to the east end of the building, giving access to a secaond set
of stairs down to the basement (“the Richmond Street doorway"). The external doors to the Richmond
Street doorway are again marked on the plan, “FD". The evidence was, and the Deputy District Judge
found (Case Stated, paragraph 10), that at all material times that doorway was in fact only used hy staff
and as an emergency escape.

In addition, the plans showed that there were several sets of Internal stalrs joining the ground fioor and
basement,

On 9 August 2011, TGC Bars made an application to the Councll, under section 34, to vary their
licence. The proposed variation had a number of elements, comprising In effect as follows (Case
Stated, paragraph 14):

o An extension of hours [for both sale of alcohol and provision of
entertainment by one hour per day, ending one hour later each day].

6 Internal works to the ground fioor premises.

o The creation of two separate venues (Via — ground fioor; Club Polari
- basement), by the construction of internal walls, which had the
effect of providing new toilst accommodation for Via at basement
tevel. Club Polari would have its own completely separate toilet
accommedation.

o The provisian of a wholly new and independent means of access to
Club Polari for members of the public/club patrons by way of a public
entrance doorway on Richmond Street (necessary because the
previously utilised access from Via would no longer be possible with
the new layout).”

The “previously utilised access from Via" Is, of course, not a reference to the V2 doorway and stairs;
but to the Internal access from the ground floor.

The application was based upon a compleled prescribed form, schedule of alterations and plans. The
plans showed considerable changes to the internal walls and general layout of each fioar (which made
a plan a vital component of the application: see paragraph 34 above); but no change to the structure or
layout of either the staircase at the north east corner of the building to the Richmond Street doorway
{(where the legend "FD" still appeared on the external doors), or the staircase at the south east corner
onto Canal Straet via the V2 doorway (where the doors at the fool of the stairs were also still marked
"FD"). However, the schedule made clear that the alterations would include:

hhpjlwww.ballii.org/ew)caseleWHCIAdmin/ZO1ﬂﬁg&@ 190 10/04/2013



Taylor v Manchester Clty Councll TCG Bars Lid [2012] ENHC 3467 (Admin) (07 December 2012) Page 10 of 18

49,

50.

61.

62.

53.

* . a full refurblshment of the rear staircase (currently used for staff and as an emergency
escape) to provide improved and independent public access to this basement area from
the rear of the buliding."

The application was duly adverlised, and a number of representations were received by the Council In
respect of the proposed extension of hours and the public access from Richmond Street. None
objected to the division of the premises Into two separate public venues, per se.

The Council's Environmental Health Department opposed both the proposed increase in hours and the
proposed public use of the Richmand Street doorway on grounds of public nulsance. In respect of the
latter, they said that that door was likely to lead to issues of public nuisance because Richmond Strest
Is very harrow and bordered by high sided buildings, so any noise created by customers using that side
of the building would likely be exaggerated by the corridor effect of the buildings which could lead to
noise nuisance for the ocoupiers of the apartments that back onto Richmond Street. Those apartments
include some in 10 Canal Street. No representations were received from any other responsible
authority.

With regard to interested parties, the occupants of Flat 8, 10 Canal Street (Mr & Mrs Seymour)
abjected to the public use of the Richmond Street doorway on similar grounds, asking for permission
for that new public entrance to be refused. Mr Taylor (who lives in Flat 1), the occupant of Flat 3 (Mr
Welford) and another local resident living in 2 different block, all objecled to the extension of hours. All
of those representations were received by the Council before the close of statutery period for
representations, on 7 September 2011.

On 12 September, solicitors for TCG Bars respdnded to those representations by writing to the Council
as follows:

"The application Is made up of three parts -
1. To carry out same internal alterations.
2. To creats a new entrance on Richmond Street.

3. To extend the operation hours at the premises for alcoho! and
entertainment.

We have racelved representations from some resldents and from the Environmental
Health {Department] which our client has considered fully.

We are instructed, tharefore, to amend the application in the light of the representations
as follows.

4. We withdraw the part of the application to extend the hours for licensahle
activities which will remain as existing.

.

2. We attach amended layout plans which remove the application for the
new entrance on Richmond Street.

The application to carry out other internal works which have not received any
representation remains as per the amended plans.

We have copled in all authoritles and the residents with email addresses and would ask
them to conflrm as soon as possible that the representations are now withdrawn as they
have no relevance to the application so that the application can be granted by delegated
powers."

It is be noted that the letter purported to "amend" the application to vary,

The "amended-plans”, dated 12 September 2011, were headed "Revision A — Main entrance to
basement bar now positioned to front elevation”, They showed most of the external doors at the back
of the bullding (Including the Richmond Street doorway) marked, "Escape”; and the V2 doorway

hitp:/fwww.ballll.orgfew/cases/EWH ClAdmln1201213467ﬁra g e 191 10/01/2013




Taylor v Manchester City Council TCG Bars Ltd {2012] EWHC 3467 (Admin) (07 December 2012) Page 11 0f 10

84,

B5.

56.

57.

58.

marked, "Entrance to Basement Bar". However, there were no differences In the structure or layout
from the plan used for the original application. The doors In the basement at the foat of the /2 doorway
stairs, and the external doors of the Richmond Street doorway, were both still marked "FD"

The new proposal came to Mr Taylor's immediate notice, and he discussed it with three other residents

of 10 Canal Street on the evening of 12 September, before writing to TGC Bars' solicitors, with a copy
to the Council, the following day:

"Looking at your revised plans. On your ground floor plan there is a new second entrance
planned for named "Entrance to Basement Bar", This enfrance is new on this plan which
is currently a fire escape for the premises. This new proposed Entrancs is directly next to
the entrance door way to the 10 Canal Street flats. This Is of great concem as Via already
creates more than an acceptable amount of noise and | believe that this entrance will
create further noise and disturbance.

My oblection has been based around nolse...

... | believa most if not all premises in the area now include operating conditions in their
licences to assist with the management of noise and disturbance including having sound
limiters, closing doors and windows when regulated entertainments are taking place, and
the use and training of dispersal aids and policies with staff.

If the applicant can provide same conditions in their licence for this, | belisve | would be
happy to agree the application.”

Mrs Seymour, having first withdrawn her representation, reinstated It on 7 October, having been
contacted by Mr Taylor who polnted out the intention to use the V2 doorway as the sole means of
public access to the basement. Mr Welford, the same day (7 October) also objected to the ravision, oh
that same basis. The Environmental Health Department appears to have withdrawn its objection on the

basis that the hours were not to be extended and Richmond Street would not be usad for public
access.

The hearing before the Councll's Licensing Sub-Committes was held that day, 7 October 2011, Mr
Taylor was the only interested party to attend, and he pressed for a number of conditions, In the event,

the Sub-Committee granted the application, but included two further conditions on the licence, as
follows:

1. Exit from the premises onto Richmond Street is to be used as a fire exit only.

2. A barrier to ensure queue forms in front of Via Is to be operational from 20.00 daily.
The barriers to be remaoved at the same time as the barriers which define the smoking
area, '

The second additional condltion reflects paragraph CD1 of the Council's Staternant of Licensing Policy,
which requires the effective management of queues to prevent any nuisance or disordetly behaviour:
"... [Licensees are expected to demonstrate how they will manage quaues to the premises.”

That decislon was formally notified to Mr Taylor on 20 Octobar 2011. On 24 October, he ladged an
appeal with the Magistrates’ Court, under section 181 of the 2003 Act. It was in the context of that

appeal that the Deputy District Judge made his ruling in respect of the preliminary issue, which has in
turn been appealed to this court.

To complete the chronology, without prejudice to this appeal, the Council, TGC Bars and the interested
parties who had made representations {notably, Mr Taylor} have now agreed that further conditions
should be Imposed; the Council have imposed those further conditions; and the premises have been
operating as two discrete bar venues for some months on the basis of those conditions. No application
for any review of the licence has been made under section 51, and there is no evidence of any
difficulties in practice occurring as a result of the business operating under the licence with those
conditions. Mr Coopetr's apparently unchallenged evidence (paragraph 3 of the undated and unsigned
statement used before the Depuly District Judge) was to the effect that, since the opening of the
discrete basement bar in November 2011, there have been no issues with the Council's Environmental
Health Dapartment, the premises have been trading well, and he has maintalned good relations with

hilp:twww.ballil.orglew/cases/EWH ClAdmlnlzomirﬁa@@ 192 10/01/2013



Taylor v Manchester City Council TCG Bars Ltd [2012] EWHG 3467 {Admin) (07 December 2012) Page 12 of 19

59.

80,

61.

62.

é3.

€4,

65,

neighbours including those who live in 10 Canal Street.
The Parties’ Cantentions

Mr Phillips for the Appellant Mr Taylor stressed that the 2003 Act, Regulations and Guidance do not on
thelr face allow for any change to an application to vary a licence. Whilst he was prepared to accept
that de minimis changes to an application might be made, he submitted that no amendment could be
made that might reasonably be considered capable of having an adverse impact on the promotion of
the ficensing objectives. Where such a change is contemplated, an applicant is bound to start again by
resubmitting the application, with the consequent new obligations for advertisement and new rights for
responsible authorities and Interested parties to make representations. Such changes, he submitted,
shouiid not generally arise when an applicant has engaged in pre-application consultation with
responsible authorities and interested parties, as encouraged by paragraph PN3 of the Council's
Statement of Licensing Policy. However, to allow amendments greater than that after the application
had been made and advertised would fundamentally undermine the regulatory scheme's provisions for
representalions; encourage the undesirable practice of applicants lodging applications in a form
deslgned to attract a lesser degree of objection, with the intention of amending subsequently and
without notice to those who might be detrimentally affected; and be "transparently at odds" with local
residents' right to private life under Article 8 of the European Convention on Human Rights.

Applying those principles to this case, Mr Phillips submltted that the 12 September amendment, with its
change of route for public access to the basement floor, was clearly at least capable of having an effect
on the licensing objectives, notably the prevention of public nulsance. By advertising the initial proposal
to create a discrete basement venue with a new means of access on Richmond Street and then, after
the explry of the time for making representations and without public notice, amending the location of
that access to the V2 door onto Canal Street, responsible authorities and interested partles were
effectively deprived of the opportunity to make representations in relation to potential effects the
revised echeme might have upon the promotion of the licensed objectives. They would not necessarily
have become aware of the new means of access at all; but, even if they did, they could not have
become aware of them untll, at the earliest, 12 September 2011, when the revision was put forward. By
that date, they would have been debarred from making any repfesentations against the revised
scheme, as the time limit for representations is sirictly construed and had expired.

In the circumstances of this case, the legislative scheme requited responsible autharities and
interested pariies to be given an opporiunity to make representations in respect of that new proposal.
As they were denied that opportunity, the Sub-Committee acted unlawfully in proceeding on the basis
of the amended application.

Miss Clover far the Council submitted that, under the premises licence, the licence holder had always
been able lawfully to use the V2 doorway for public access to the premises. On 12 September 2011,
TGC Bars abandoned their application for extended hours and the refurbishment of the Richmond
Street stairway and entrance to enable them to be used for public access to the basement. The
application was thereafter restricted to the internal structural and Iayout changes, which did not include
any changes to the structure of the V2 doorway and stairs, nor any changes to which any relevant
representations had been made, The mere increase In intensity of use of that doorway for public

access that was likely as & result of the proposed change did not require any formal variation to the
licence. -

The Sub-Committee was therefore able, and indeed right, to deal with the application solely on the
basis.of that limited remaining proposed variation in structure and layoul. If, in the view of interested
parties such as local residents, the change of business operation in fact impacted upon the licensing
objectives, then the appropriate remedy lay inan application for review under section 51 (see
paragraphs 38-39 above).

Discussion

This appeal concems the principles and structure of the licensing scheme Implemented by the 2003
Act.

As | have described (paragraph 12 above), regulation of the retail sale of alcohol and prescribed
entertainment is effected by imposing a criminal sanction upon those who carry out such activities
other than in accordance with a licence granted by the relevant local authority. This means thata
licence holder is entitied o sell alcohol and provide entertainment In any manner he wishes, so long as

hitp:/iwww.bailil org/ew/cases/E WHC/AdmIN/201 2/3467ﬂrég e 193 10/01/2043




Taylor v Manchester City Council TCG Bars Ltd [2012) EWHC 3467 (Admin} (07 December 2012)

86.

67,

68.

69.

70.

71.

72.

73.

hitp:/fwww.balll.orglew/cases/EWHC/AdmIn/201 Zﬁdgglg 194

Page 13 of 19

the licence does not prohibit that manner of provision In some way, because (e.g.) It falls entirely
outside the scope of the licance or it breaches one of the ficence conditions. '

If those activities are carried out lawfully, within the scope of the premises licence and In accardance
with the licence conditions, but the manner in which they are carried out adversely Impacts on ang of
the licensing objectives (e.g. by in fact causing disorder or a public nuisance), then the remedy of any
person affected (whether a responsible authority or an interested party) is to apply for a review of the

licence under section 51, to which the licence holder, and responsible authorities and other interested
parties can respond.,

Where the holder of a licence intends to carry out activities in a way that he considers may not ba In
accordance with his licence, then he Is able to apply for a variation of the licence to extend the scope of
the licence to cover that manner of carrying out those actlvities or remove a condition in respect of
which he considers he would be in breach, using one of the three procedures set out above. If he does
not, and the activities do fall outslde the scope of the licence or breach the licance conditions, he Is
liable to prosecution, So the risk of not applying for a variation is his. That Is no doubt why the terms of
section 34(1) do not require an application for variation to be made in any circumstances, those terms
being merely permissive: “The holder of a premises licence may apply to the relevant licensing
authority for variation of the licence” (emphasls added).

On an application to vary, the Premises Regulations provide detailed rules for both advertlsemnent, and
as to how, when and by whom representafions can be made in respect of the application.
Representations can only be made on the public interest grounds set out in section 4, and must be
made within 28 days: although representations can be amplified once made, once the 28 day period
has expired the authority has no power to receive representations from those who have not previously
submitted any. If no representations at all are made on those grounds in that 28 day period, then the
licence holder is entitied to his variation as of right. If representations are made on those grounds, then

that triggers a process of decision making by the authority. The very purpose of the representations is,
initlally, to be that trigger.

Once the declslon making procsss is triggered, 1t is driven by the terms 'of the scheme, the discretion
given to the authority by the scheme, and the requirement that the authority acts fairly.

The scheme provides no mechanism for amending an application once made, and nelther the Act nor
the regulations, nor the Secretary of State's Guidance nor the Council's own Statement of Licensing
Policy, makes any mention of the posslbility of amendment. Clearly, a power to amend that would
defeat or undermine the object of the procedural provisions relating to advertisement and right of
responslble authorities and interested parties to make representations could not conceivably be
implied; and neither Mr Phillips nor Miss Clover suggested otherwise.

However, the scheme has no express power enabilng an applicant to amend an application to vary;
and, in my judgment, properly construad, the regulatory scheme does not as such allow or envisage
any amendment to an application to vary once It has been made,

it does not need to do so, because of the nature of the decision making process with which the
authority Is Involved. As stressed in the illuminative judgment of Toulson LJ in Hope and Glory Public
House (see paragraph 9 above), in respect of licensing, a licensing authority exercises an
administrative function glven to it by Parliament, Whilst the authority must no doubt take into account
the rights of those people who live and work In the vicinlty, those interested parties can only make
representations as to the "likely effect of grant of the application on the promotion of the licensing
objectives”, i.e. on the basis that the pubiic interest will be adversely affected. It is the potential Impact
upon that public interast, and that alone, which triggers any decision making process at all. In its
absence, the licence halder has a right to the variation il seeks.

Onge triggered, it requires the making of an evaluative judgment, involving (as Toulson LJ said in Hope
and Glory Public House) the weighing of a variety of competing public policy considerations, such as
the demand for licensed establishments, the economic benefit to the proprietor and to the locality by
drawing In visitors and stimulating the demand, the effect on law and order, and including the impact
generally on the lives of those who live and work in the vicinity. It inherently involves an evaluation of
what is to be regarded as reasonably acceptable in the particular location, and of what is necessary

and proportionate to the promotion of the statutory licensing objectives in terms of scope of the licence
and condltions in a local context.

10/01/2013



Taylor v Manchester City Councll TGG Bars Ltd [2012] EWHC 3467 (Admin) {07 December 2012) Page 14 of 19

74.

75.

78.

77.

78.

79,

80.

81.

82.

.

The scheme Is based on the premise that the relevant local authority is uniquely equipped and well-
placed to make such judgments. In such areas of quintessential policy, the State generally has a wide
margin of appreclation, or, in the more domestic terms used by the Divisional Court In Meads v

Bri Corporation [1968] 67 LGR 289 (a case concerning & gaming machine permit under the
Befting, Gaming and Lotteries Act 1963): "The discretion in the local authorlty is about as wide as it
could be". The court will be cautious before interfering with the exercise of such a discretion.

However, wide as a licensing authority's discretion might be In general, it Is limited by the specific terms
of the scheme: in the context of premises licence applications under the 2003 Act whether for new
ficences under section 17, or for variations under section 34, or for review under section 51 - &
licensing authority does not simply have a open discretion, even when its decision making function is
brought into play. '

The principle restrictions on an authority's discretion are, for the purposes of this appeal, two-fold.

First, an application to vary naver triggers a general review of the licence: the scope of the review of
the licence is limited. "Relevant representations”, which trigger the review, must be (1) confined to the
subject matter of the variation (paragraph 9.4 of the section 182 Guidance), and (i) "about the likely
effect of the grant of the application on the promotion of the licensing objectives”. That focus refiects
the fact that, where those representations are made, they trigger an enquiry by the authority into the
effect the proposed variation may have upon the promotion of the licensing objectives (and, to that
extent, | respectiully agree with the authors of Alcohol and Entertainment Licensing Law by
Manchester, Poppleston & Allen (2nd Edition) (2008), at paragraph 6.9.4, to that effect). An application
for a new licence or for a review s similarly limited, although the precise statutory restrictions are
different, tailored to the nature of the particular application.

Second, in the light of the conclusions of that enquiry, the authority must determing the application to
vary. However, the scheme again does not give the authority an open discretion to do whatever it likes.
Indeed, the provisions are prescriptive. Section 32(5) requires the authority to consider whether, for the
promotion of the licensing objectives, itis necessary to reject the application (in whole or in part) and/or
to modify the conditions of the licence to accommodate the yvarlation in the context of the licence as a
whole. There Is a discretion here, insofar as the authority only has to act if it considers such rejection or
modification is necessary: bul, if and insofar as it does consider that, then it has both a power and an
obligation to reject the application or modify the licence conditions accordingly. The authority can dono
more, and no less, Again, an application for a new licence or for a review has similar restrictions on the
authority's powers.

These provisions therefore effectively define and limit the extent of the authority's powers as o how a
licensing authority may respond an application to vary a licence. Its field of potential action is limited by
the scope of the extant licence and the application te vary that licence; and it is limited to rejecting the
application to vary (in whole or in part) and/or to modifying the conditions of the licence to
accommodate the variation in the context of the licence as a whole.

It is here that an applicant's changing wishes or intentions may come into play. Given the power of a
licensing autharity to reject part of an application for variation or modify the licence conditions, it Is open
to an applicant (e.g. in the face of relevant representations recelved) to indicate to both licensing
authorlty and responsible authorities/interested parties who have made relevant representations that (f)
he does not wish to pursue part of an application and/or (if) he is willing to agree to a medification 1o
the licence conditions to cater for the concerns expressed.

Whilst that may be expressed, as in this case, as an "amsndment” to the application to vary, in my view
it does not amount to a formal amendment to his application; but the licensing authority Is bound to
take those views of the licansee into account In exercising its discretion as to appropriate steps it might
take In declding the application In its orlginal form. An authority would not usually consider It necessary
to consider further any part of the application which the applicant no longer wishes to pursue -
although, on particular facts, it may do so If, for example, the part abandoned cannot be properly be
savered from other aspects of the licence. The authorlty would also wish to consider, with the
responsible authorities/interested parties, whether the conditions to which the applicant Is prepared to
submit address the concerns raised In their relevant representations as to the potential Impact of the
proposed variation on the promotion of the licensed objectives,

‘Given the administrative nature of the authority's function, it is perfectly appropriate for the authorlty

thus to liaise with the applicant licensee and the responsible authorities/interested parties to see

hltp'.llwww.bai\il.org!ewlcasesIEWHCIAdminIZM 2!3467biﬁg e 195 10/01/2013




Taylar v Manchester Clty Councll TCG Bars Lid {2012] EWHC 3467 (Admin) (07 December 2012)

83,

84.

85,

86.

87.

88,

89.

Page 150f 19

whether a compromise can be reached. Where, after relevant representations ara lodged, discussions
between the licensing authority, the applicant and responsible autherities/interested parties who have
made relevant representations lead to an agreement within the scope of the extant licence and original
application to vary as to the parts of the application to be granted and the conditions upon which that
grant will be made, then it is open to the authority to make a grant on those conditions: so long as it
censiders that the rejectlon of the parts agreed to be rejected and modification of the conditions agreed
to be modified are necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives. In those circumstances, the
responsible authorities/interested parties might withdraw their representations (regulation 10 of the
Hearing Regulations), or the parties may agree that a hearing is unnecessary and the authority may
dispense with a hearing If It agrees that it is unnecessary (section 35(3)(a), and regulation 9 of the
Hearing Ragulations)

For the reasons already explored, given the decision making power granted to it by Parliament, the
administrative nature of that power and the unigue position an authority is in to make the relevant
Judgments, subject to any restrictions expressly imposed by the terms of the statutory scheme itself,
the discretion of a licensing authorily is necessarily wide, and the exsrcise of such & discretion with
which this court should be cautious of Interfering, Whilst the pre-hearing procedure Is detailed and
prescriptive, and does not have the equivalent of regulation 21 of the Hearing Regulations (which
expressly gives the authority power over its own procedure), that discretion applies to the procedure
the licensing committee adopts pre-hearing, subject to the procedure adopted (i) complying with the

procedural requirements of the scheme, and (i) being “fair” and directed o promoting the licensing

objectives in section 4. That was illustrated in Corporation of the Hall of Aris and Sclences, in which, in
addltion to the mandated advertisement of the application to vary, the authority had a practice of
notifying directly businesses and residents in the immediate vicinity of the relevant premises. "Falr*
here has to be seen in the context that the authority is performing an administrative function; it is not
acting in a judicial or quasli-judicial capacity (see Hope and Glory Public House at [41] per Toulson LJ).
If the licensing committee stray outside that wide discretion, and adopt a procedure which is irrational
or otherwise unlawful, then the resulting decision may be open to challenge by way of appeal or judicial

review (see Hope and Glory Public House at [61)-[52] per Taulson LJ; and Corporation of the Hzll of
Arts and Sciences at [39] per Stanley Burnton LJd).

In conclusion, it is to that extent, but only to that extent, that an applicant may notify "amendments" to
the parts of the application he wishes to pursue, and the conditions he is prepared to accept to enable
the variation to be granted. However, the licensing authority in the form of the licensing committee or
sub-committee must eventually itself come to a judgment as to whether the promotion of the licensing
objectives requires the rejection of the whole or part of the original application as made, and, insofar as
It does not, whether it requires any modification fo the licence conditions. In making that Judgment, it
cannot however extend the scope of the licence.

If the variation Is granted In terms that are unacceptable to an interested party, then there are a number
of routes of challenge. First, of course, as in this case, an appeal can be made to the Magistrates
Court. Second, If the procedure adopted by the authorlty Is irrational or otherwise unlawful, then the
resulting declsion would be open to challenge by way of judicial review (see paragraph 83 above),
Third, if the variation results in unexpected adverse effects on the licensing objsectives, then an
Interested party can seek a review of the licence under saction 51.

Let me deal finally with two specific submissions made by Mr Phillips.

First, he submitted that, on an application to vary, no change to the licence could be made that might
reasonably be considered capable of having an adverse Impact on the promotion of the licensing
objectives, unless that change was made clear in the initial application as advertised; and, where such
a change to an application to vary is contemplated, an applicant is bound to start again by resubmitting

the application, with the consequent new obligations for advertiserment and new rights for responsible
authorities and interested parties to make representations.

| do not agree with that proposltion — or, at least, the full extent of it - which, with respect, does not
seem ta me to be in line with the nature of the scheme when looked at as a whole.,

The proposition might have more force if the function of the decision maker were Judicial, rather than
administrative. However, relevant representations trigger an administrative investigation by the
licensing authority into the effect the proposed changes will make to the promotion of the licensing
objectives: that declsion making process having been triggered, it is then for the authorlly to weigh the
varlous strands of public interest and determine whether the promotion of those objectives requires the

http‘.ﬂwww.bailiI.org/ewlcases/EWHCIAdminl2012/65@(@ 196 ' 10/01/2013



Taylor v Manchester City Council TCG Bars Ltd {2012] EWHGC 3467 (Admin) (07 December 2012) Page 16 of 19

gQ.

91.

92.

83.

94.

96.

86

htlpiwww.balll.orgfew/cases/EWHCIAdmIn/2012/3467 html

rejection of any part of the application or modification of the licence conditions.

Itis true that therinvestigation Is restricted to the matters raised in the representations, but the
important point is that the actlon the authority can take is restricted by the scheme to rejecting the
application in whole or part, or modifying the licence conditions.

In respect of the former, Insofar as the authority rejects the application to vary, that will have the effect
of leaving the licence, to that extent, unaltered: the authority cannot extend the scope of the licence
beyond that of the extant ticence and the varation proposed.

With regard to modification of the licence conditions, the stafutory scheme gives the authority full scope
to add, subtract or vary any condltions to accommadate the varfation in the context of the licence as a
whote. The scheme requires the authority to modify the conditions If and to the extent that it considers
modifications necessary to promote the licensing objectives. "Promoting the licensing objectives”, as |
have described, requires the balancing of various strands of public interest; and, in performing that
balance, it is possible, of not inevitable, that one of the objeclives may be demoted in order to benefit
another. Where that is so, the scheme simply does not require further consultation of local residents
and other Interested parties in the form of re-advertisement with a fresh opportunity to make new
relevant representations, it does not do so because: :

i) The authority is already charged with the task of balancing the strands of public interest involved, on
the basis of such evidence as it has collected. In many cases, it will consider that It is in a position to
make that decision without formally consulting interested parlies and local residents agaln. Ifit is not -
a.g. If It considers that the procadure will be unfair to local residents without such further consultation ~
then it is open to the authority to require the applicant to start again with a fresh application. However,
ahsent a proposed change extending the scope of the licence, that would be an exceptional case.

i) If the authority were required to start the process over again, simply because the exerclse of its
statutory powers might adversely affect one strand of the public interest involved, that would seriously
compromise the dialogue between the authorlty, applicant and responsible authorities/interested
parties who have made representations, which Is encouraged as an Inherent part of the scheme. .

Responsible autharities and interested parties can take considerable comfort from the fact that the
authority cannot extend the scope of the licence beyond that of the extant licence and variation
proposed. Furthermore, where such authoritles and parties have made relevant representations, they
are atle to play a full part in both the pre-hearing dialogue (designed to come to a rasult that is
satisfactory to the applicant and responsible authorities/interested partles) and the hearing itself If they
are dissatisfied with the result of the hearlng in practice, they are able to appeal or challenge the result
by way of judicial review or seek & review of the licance. If the manner in which the licensed business is
operaled causes (e.g.) a private nulsance, then they can bring a private law claim. But, in licensing
tarms, thelr rights and interests are not paramount: they are just one factor which the authority must
take Into account, when determining an application to vary. For the reasons | have given, in exercising
& licensing function, the focus Is on the public Interest. .

For those reasons, | do not accept Mr Phillips’ proposition.

Nor do | find Mr Philtips' reliance on Article 8 effective. Article 8 concems an individual's right to a
private life. For the reasons | have just given, there are considerable safsguards for that right in the
scheme, and in the private law. There is no arguable breach of Article 8 simply because the scheme
does not provide for re-advertisement of any proposed change of licence conditions which might
arguably affact either the licensing objectives or the private life of a specific individual. Far from being
“transparently at odds" with local residents' right to private life under Article 8, | do not conslder that
Arlicle 8 has any role to play in the Issue in this appeal.

it seems to me thal the principles that | have outfined are not only clear from the terms of the regulatory
scheme, but are also prectical in their application. Whilst | have been involved in an exercise in the
proper construction of the terms of the statutory scheme, that comes as some comfort — particularly as
It must have baen Parllament's intention 1o impose a regulatory scheme that is warkable. On the
evidence before me, they also appear to be the principles which, In practice, licensing authorities have
in substance generally applied since the advent of the new scheme in 2005. That may explain why the
ssue in this appeal has not until now ever come before the courts,

Appllcation of the Princlples to this Appeal

e 197 10/01/2013




Taylor v Manchester City Council TCG Bars Ltd [2012) EWHC 3467 (Admin} (07 December 2012) Page 17 of 19

07,

28,

99,

100.

101.

102,

103,

104.

105.

| now tum to apply those principles to the appeal before me.

The Appellant'e complaint is that the initial application to vary the licence did not indicate that the V2
doorway would be used as the only means of public access o and egress from the new self-contained
basement bar. In that application, the proposal was to refurbish the Richmond Street doorway and
stalrway to or from the basement, and use that to get the public to and from the basement. That
change to the application was not the subject of advertissment, and consequently the Appellant and
other local residents were denied the opportunity to make representations in respect of the use of the
V2 doorway for that purpose. That amendment, It was submitted, required the licence holder applicant
to start the varlation process again — at least so far as advertisement and period for representations are
concerned, It was that failure which rendered the decision of the authority unlawful,

For the reasons | have given above, the applicant could not formally amend his application, once it had
been submitted; but the Council, in determining whether it was appropriate to reject the whole or part of
the application, or madify the licence conditions to accommodate the proposal, was entitled to take into
account the applicant's changed wishes and Intentions, In the face of opposition to both the extension
of hours and the refurbishment of the Richmond Street doorway and stalrway to enable public access
to the basement bar by that route, the Councll was entitied to conclude that they could and should
properly reject those parts of the application.

The real issue, of coursa, is whether the Gouncil was entitled to grant the varlation, on the basis of the
original application, with the V2 doorway being the sole public means of access to the newly-discrate
basement bar, without requiring the applicant to submit a new application or at [sast requiring the new

proposal to be re-advertised with a frash perlod for responsible authorities and Interested parties to
lodge relevant representations.

As | have Indicated, the extent to which the V2 doorway was in fact used for public access to the
premises prior to the application to vary is controverslal. As | understand it, there was some svidence
that, for a short period, the V2 doorway had been used for public access to the basement; but the
evidence suggests that the doorway was not used a greal deal, and Mr Cooper (the premises licence's
designated premises supervisor: see paragraph 19 above) appears to tonfirm that the V2 door was
used as a fire door but not used as a (public) entrance, access to the basement being through the main
doors of Via and internal stairs (paragraph 2 of an unsigned and undated statement used at the

“hearing before the Deputy District Judge).

However, as the parties properly conceded before the Deputy District Judge, in respect of the
application to vary, what mattered was not the use to which the \/2 doorway had actually been put, but
the use of it that was lawful under the original licence, In my judgment, the licence as issued in 2005
undoubtedly allowed the V2 doorway to be used for public access to the premises.

Mr Phillips conceded before me that the 2005 licence enabled that doorway to be used for public
access to the basement, In the sense that the licence did not limit the use to which that entrance/exit
could be put and, thersfore, if that doorway were used for public access to the basement, a prosecution
under section 138 for breach would fail. He submitted that It would fail merely because of the high

burden of proof required in criminal proceedings; but, in my view, there was clearly no restriction on the
use of that entrance/exit to the premises in the 2005 licence.

| accept that, by virtue of regulation 23(3)(b) and (¢) (paragraph 21 above), a licence plan should
identify the location of points of access to and egress from the premises on the one hand, and, If
different, identify discretely the location of escape routes from the premises; but the marking "FD" in the
internal doars at the foot of the V2 stairs cannot indicate that the route from the basement to the V2
doorway was merely an escape route and no more. Many internal doors are marked on the plans with
"FD" and, whatever that means (and, of course, it might stand for "Fire Door": see also paragraph 2 of
Mr Coaper's statement), it does not appsar to identify mere escape routes, Even on the final plan, from
the face of which it is clear that the applicant proposed to use the V2 doorway and stairs as the on|
means of public access to the basement, the doors at the foot of the stairway are marked "FD",

In the 2005 licence, in my judgment, there were no restrictions on the use of doorways between the
premises and the streets, front and back, elther in the conditions or on the face of the plans that form
part of the licence. In those clrcumstances, any of the doorways {including the V2 doorway and the
Richmond Streel doorway) could be used for public access to and egress from the premises, If the
means of access through a particular door caused an adverse impact on the licensing objectives, it
would have been open to either a responsible authority of an interested party to have made an

hitp:fiwww.ballll.orglew/cases/EWHC/AdmIn/201 Wﬂb&é@é 198 10/01/2013



Taylor v Manchester Gity Council TCG Bars Ltd {2012] EWHC 3467 {Admin). (07 December 2012) Page 18 of 19

106.

107.

108.

108.

110.

111.

application for review under section 51,

Mr Phililps relied upon the well-known passage from the judgment of Scott-Baker LJ in Crawley
Borough Council v Stuart Attenborough [2008] EWHC 1278 (Admin) at [8]-[7], fo the effect that licence
conditions must be enforceable, and consequently sufficiently clear for that purpose; but, in my
judgment, the scope of the licence and conditions in this case, so far as the allowable use of the V2
entrance is concerned, were manifestly clear,

The ability of the licence holder lawfully to use the V2 doorway means of public access to and egrass
from the basement was not lost, even if the licence holder did not in fact use that doorway In that
manner either very much or at all or to the extent that he may use It in the future. Nor, in my view, was
it lost merely by the separation of the ground floor and basement bars into distinct units, That
separation, of course; had an inevitable effect on how the business would operate. The final proposal,
which involved the V2 doorway being used as the sole entrance/exit for the new discrete basement
bar, inevltably changed the degree of use of the V2 doorway by (i) reducing the number of people who
might use the V2 entrancelexlt, from 620 (the total capacity of the premises) o 240 {the capaclty of the
basement alone), whilst (ii) meaning that all of those who used the basement bar would have to use
the V2 entrancelexit. That was a change of business which resulted in a change of intensity of use of
the doorway — in effect, reducing the possible maximum usage of that doorway whilst substantially
increasing the likely use — but that did not require a variation to the licence at all,

That applied equally fo the door into Richmond Street at the north east corner of the premises: there
waere no restrictions on the use of that doorway elther, and, under the 2005 licence, the licence holder
could have used that doorway for public access — although It may have been likely that, had they done
so, there would have been an application for review by the Environmental Health Department, if not the
occupiers of residential accommodation that abutted Richmond Street. Howevsr:

i) The application to vary included an application to change the structure and layout of the building to
this extent, namely the "full refurbishment of the rear staircase... to provide improved and independent
public access to this basement area from the rear of the bullding...". That appears, not from the plan -
the plan was unaltered from that attached to the 2005 licence — but from the schedule of proposed
allerations (see paragraph 48 above). Insofar as that involved a change to the structure or lay out of
the premises, it may have required a variation to the licence (and/or approval under Condition €0 of the
licence conditions: see paragraph 42 above).

i) In any event, it was open to the applicant, in the light of opposition to the use of the Richmond Street
doorway, to indicate that it would not use that doorway for the public, but would use the V2 doarway.
No structural or layout changes were requested (or, as | understand it, required) for use of the V2 stairs
and doorway for the purposes of access to the basement. The only change marked on the final plans,
and the only change Intended, was substantially greater use of that route for public access to the
premises than had previously occurred. However, that was nol required to be put Into the plan, and that
use already fell within the boundaries of the extant licence, Increased use of a means of egress and
ingress In fact, where that use is already lawful in terms of the licence, does not require a variation of
the licence.

In those circumstances, TCG Bars did not need a variation In thelr ticence to enable them lawfully to
use the V2 doorway for public access to the basement. After 12 September 2011, the only variation
proposed by TCG Bars related to the internal structure and layout of the premises, in respect of which
no representations were made and of which nelther Mr Taylor nor any other person making relevant
representations made any complaint.

However, the TCG Bars nevertheless had to satisfy the Council that queues would be managed
effectively (paragraph CD1 of the Council's Statement of Licensing Policy: see paragraph 56 above), It
was open to the Councll, in the light of the likely future use In fact of the V2 doorway as a public
entrancefexit to modify the conditions of the licence, by imposing an additional condition relating to
queuing. It can properly be assurned that that condition was imposed because the Councl! considered
it necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives relating to the prevention of disorder and
public nuisance, '

For those reasons, in my judgment, Ihe Councll's Licensing Sub-Committee was lawfully entitled (i) to
proceed with the application to vary the licence; (ii) to take Into account the applicant's express wish
not to proceed with parts of the application, namely the extension of hours and refurbishment of the
Richmond Street entrance and stairway for use by the public; () to dstermine, in accordance with

http:/lew.baIIii.org/ewlcaseleWHClAdmInI2012/34678& g e 199 10/01/2013




Taylor v Manchester City Council TCG Bars Ltd [2012) EWHC 3467 {Admin) {07 December 2012) Page 19 of 19

those wishes, to reject those parts of the application as not being necessary for the promotion of the
licensing objectives; (iv) to determine that, If the remaining pars of the application were to proceed, a
new condition relating to queuing outside the V2 entrance was necessary for the promotion of those
objectives; and (v) to grant the variation on that basis. That Is the substance of the Sub-Committee's
decision In this application.

Conclusion.

112.  Forthose reasons, in my judgment, the judge was correct in ruling that it was lawful for the Council to
proceed to determine the application to vary in accordance with section 35 as it did, even thaugh the
applicant had notified the change of scheme whereby the public access to and egress from the
basement would be by way of the V2 doorway and not the Richmond Street doorway. The result was
not outwith the scope of the existing licence and application to vary as seen together.

113. 1 would consequently answer the question posed by the Deputy District Judge in the affirmative, and I
dismiss this appeal accordingly.

BAILN: Copyright Policy | Disclnimers | Privagy Pollcy | Feedback ] Donate ta BAILI
URL: hllpfdew.baf-‘if.orpfaWGGWEWHG’Admm:?OfWG?.MmI

hitp:Awww.bailil.orgfewicases/EWHC/Admin/201 zaﬁa@e 200 10/01/2013



APPENDIX B1

CITY OF WESTMINSTER MEMORANDUM
TO Licensing Officer

REFERENCE 14/07378/LIPV

FROM EH Consultation Team

REFERENCE

BEING DEALT WITH BY  lan Watson (iwatson@westminster.gov.uk)
TELEPHONE 020 7641 3183

DATE 29th September 2014

The Licensing Act 2003

Co-operative Food, 18-22 Park Road, NW1

| refer to the application for variation of the Premises Licence.

This representation is based on the operating schedule submitted.

The applicant is seeking the foliowing

1. To remove condition 26 that requires all deliveries and collections from the rear area
of the property.

2. To amend condition 28 removing the requirement for refuse to be picked up from the
rear area of the property.

3. To amend condition 30 with the following ‘Delivery vehicles will not be permitted to
leave their engines running whilst making deliveries’.

| wish to make the following representation

1. The removal and amendment of conditions (26, 28 and 30) regarding deliveries and

collections from the rear area will have the likely effect of causing an increase in
Public Nuisance within the area.

The applicant has not provided any supportive statement for the variation or how these
amendments will minimise public nuisance within the area.

Should you wish to discuss the matter further please do not hesitate to contact me.

lan Watson
Senior Practitioner Environmental Health (Licensing)

page 201



APPENDIX B2

Eaton, Sam

From: Russell, Sandy

Sent: 08 September 2014 11:25

To: richard.arnot@wardhadaway.com

Cc: idoxlicensing

Subject: 14/07378/LIPV Co-op 18-22 Park Road, NW1
Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Completed

Dear Mr Arnot,

Police do not object to the above licence variation application.

Best Wishes,

Sandy Russell

PC Sandy Russell 4167CW
Westminster Police Licensing Team
4th Floor, 64 Victoria Street,
LONDON, SW1E 6QP

Tel: 0207 641 3179

page 202



APPENDIX B3
Comments for Licensing Application 14/07378/LIPV

Application Summary

Application Number: 14/07378/LIPV
Address: 18-22 Park Road London NW1 4SH
Proposal: Premises Licence - Variation

Case Officer; Miss Samantha Eaton

Customer Details
Name:
Address:

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Local Group

Stance: Customer objects to the Licensing Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:5:47 PM on 09 Sep 2014 The St Marylebone Society objects to the removal of the
conditions attached to this licence. The conditions are entirely reasonable and their removal would
have a negative impact on local residents, in the matter of noise, fumes, and obstruction, and also
upon the streetscape, should refuse be allowed on the street.

WCC please note: the name and address details of the person commenting on behalf of the
society should NOT be released, only the name of the Society and its email address.

page 203



APPENDIX B4

Mrs G Jeffries ,._«—————’Am

_ S M
Flat 2, 24 Park Road | PREMIEES (G serVIcE \

London NW1 4SH
15 GEP 7201k \

Mr Steve Harrison
Licensing Service Premises Management

Westminster City Hall, 64 Victoria Street
London SW1E 6QFP Monday 22nd September 2014

STMINSTER |

ciTY OF WE

Dear Mr Harrison

Application for a Premises Licence - Variation Co-op Foods 18-22 Park Road
Application Reference: 14/07378/LIPV

Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority:
26. All deliveries and collections to take place at the rear of the property marked 'x’ on

the plan.
28. All refuse to be collected inside the premises and to be picked up from the area

marked 'x' on the plan.
30. Delivery vehicles will not be permitted to leave their engines running whilst

waiting to enter the delivery area.

The new Licence Variation is seeking to remove conditions 26 and 30 entirely, and to
amend condition 28 - removing mandatory use of the rear entrance to the property.

Condition 26: I object to this being changed as it will cause a Public Nuisance and issues of
Public Safety.

Condition 28: Delivery and collection must be through the rear exit and not across a public
pavement which is a Public Nuisance. Public Safety is at risk when deliveries and
collections may be made at a time school children are also being dropped off or collected

from school.

Condition 30 - Delivery lorries parked with their engines running cause nuisance and
distress to people whose sleep had been disturbed in the early hours of the morning. Noise
and fumes caused by these vehicles are both a health risk and a nuisance. The exhaust fumes

are a public health and safety issue causing harm to children and adults alike.

I object to all the Licence Variations Co-op Foods 18-22 Park Road -Application Reference:
14/07378/LIPV on grounds of Public Nuisance related to noise and rubbish removal from
Park Road. On grounds of Public Safety with the proposed deliveries and collections on a
public footpath and the Health and Protection of Children should vehicles be allowed to
leave their engines running before or during deliveries. Making deliveries on a red-route
will cause a Public Nuisance and is a threat to Public Safety.

Yours sincerely,

Gabby Jeffries w
“7T A

VAV

page 204



APPENDIX B5

Eaton, Sam

From: Jane El-khazen [janekhazen@hotmail.com]

Sent: 22 September 2014 09:33

To: Premises Licensing

Subject: Application Reference: 14/07378/LIPV

Attachments: Coop Objection 1892014.pages.zip; ATT00001.htm; Coop Objection 1892014.pdf;
ATTO00002.htm

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

Dear Mr. Harrison,

I attach my letter of objection to any Variation in the Coop Application Application Reference: 14/07378/LIPV.
Please acknowledge receipt of this letter

Yours sincerely,

Jane El-Khazen

page 205



Mrs J El-Khazen
Flat 8

24 Park Road
London NW1 4SH

Friday 18th September 2014

Mr Steve Harrison

Licensing Service Premises Management
Westminster City Hall

64 Victoria Street

London SW1E 6QP

Dear Mr Harrison

Application for a Premises Licence - Variation Co-op Foods 18-22 Park Road
Application Reference: 14/07378/LIPV

Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority:

26. All deliveries and collections to take place at the rear of the property marked x' on
the plan.

28. All refuse to be collected inside the premises and to be picked up from the area
marked 'x' on the plan.

30. Delivery vehicles will not be permitted to leave their engines running whilst
waiting to enter the delivery area.

The new Licence Variation is seeking to remove conditions 26 and 30 entirely, and to
amend condition 28 - removing mandatory use of the rear entrance to the property.

Permission was granted to the Co-op Food group to sell alcohol from the proposed retail
outlet in Park Road following the Licensing Sub-Committee meeting on the 3rd of July.
This permission came with 32 conditions designed to protect both residents and the general
public from the effects of crime and disorder through the misuse of alcohol and to prevent a
general public nuisance, Some specific ‘noise’ related items were included at the residents
request. As a resident I was unhappy that the Licence had been granted but was happy there
were some safeguards in place.

Condition 26: As part of the submission at the 3rd July meeting it was minuted that Co-op
Foods said they ‘would be making all their deliveries to the rear of the property and the
store would be purpose built to accept deliveries’. This then became a condition of the
Licence that all deliveries and collections were to be to the rear of the property.

Residents were led to believe that with deliveries being made to the rear of the property
there would be less public nuisance caused by noise from lorries delivering and parking on a
public red route road.

Condition 28: Park Road is a relatively clean road of residential properties. To have refuse
being collected from a public pavement area when there is the option for refuse to be

Page 1 of 2
page 206



collected from the private delivery area of the premises is unacceptable. Other supermarkets
I have observed, often wheel their bins of refuse outside the premises whilst waiting for
their lorries to collect, causing an unsightly mess for residents and visitors. This is also an
issue of public safety for people having to walk past them. To allow deliveries and
collections at the front when there is only one entrance to the premises for customers should
not be allowed. This was a specific condition attached to the original Licence. '

Condition 30 - Particular mention was made at the Licencing Meeting of delivery lorries
parked with their engines running causing nuisance and distress to people whose sleep had
been disturbed in the early hours of the morning. Regardless of the delivery destination the
noise and fumes caused by these vehicles waiting for a parking place to become available in
their chosen delivery areas are both a health risk and a nuisance. The exhaust fumes are a
public health and safety issue causing harm to children and adults alike.

I am also concerned that this business gives the impression that it can disregard the local
Council Conditions. The conditions were thoughtfully agreed at the meeting and the Licence
issued. The Co-op were the ones who originally stated that all deliveries would be at the
back. A lack of preparation on their part should not be paid for by the local residents having
to compromise. The delivery area and access to it have not changed since 3rd July meeting.

On 13th August 2014, after the Licence had been granted, the Co-op found they were unable
to comply with some of the conditions in the Licence designed to safeguard the residents.
The Co-op Foods Group had lately identified a problem with the size of their delivery
vehicles. Again this is a lack of preparation on behalf of the Co-op. What other major flaws
have they overlooked in their planning? Surely access and delivery are something that
should have been looked at before the Licence was applied for! I have been advised that
Waitrose Supermarket have had to reduce the size of their vehicles delivering to their
Marylebone High Street store because of the very tight corners giving accesss to their
loading bay. The answer for Waitrose Supermarket was not to block the pavement with
deliveries and rubbish collections but to adapt their operation to suit the site location. The
Co-op Foods Group should also adapt to the proposed store location and use much smaller
delivery vans suited to the location.

[ heartily object to the Licence Variation Co-op Foods 18-22 Park Road -Application
Reference: 14/07378/LIPV. I object on grounds of Prevention of Public Nuisance related to
noise and rubbish removal from Park Road. On grounds of Public Safety with the proposed
deliveries and collections on a public footpath using a shared access door to the shop, and
the health and protection of Children (and Adults with respiratory conditions) should
vehicles be allowed to leave their engines running before or during deliveries. Making
deliveries on a red-route will cause a Public Nuisance and is a threat to Public Safety.

Yours sincerely,
Jane El-Khazen

Page 2 of 2
page 207



APPENDIX B6

Eaton, Sam

From: victor [vkhazen@hotmail.com]

Sent: 22 September 2014 09:41

To: Premises Licensing

Subject: FW: 14/07378/LIPV - 18-22 paek road
Attachments: Coop Victor 18_9_2014.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Completed

From: victor [mailto:vkhazen@hotmail.com]
Sent: 22 September 2014 09:37

To: 'premiseslicensing@westminstere.gov.uk’
Subject: 14/07378/LIPV - 18-22 paek road

Dear Mr Harrison

Please find my letter of of objection to any variation to the coop licence in the attachment
Yours faithfully

Victor el Khazen

24 park road

page 208



Mr V F El-Khazen
Flat 9, 24 Park Road
London NW1 4SH

Friday 18th September 2014

Mr Steve Harrison

Licensing Service Premises Management
Westminster City Hall

64 Victoria Street, London SW1E 6QP

Dear Mr Harrison

Application for a Premises Licence - Variation Co-op Foods 18-22 Park Road
Application Reference: 14/07378/LIPV

The new Licence Variation is seeking to remove conditions 26 - All deliveries and
collections to take place at the rear of the property marked 'x' on the plan, and 30 -
Delivery vehicles will not be permitted to leave their engines running whilst waiting to enter
the delivery area, and to amend condition 28 - removing mandatory use of the rear
entrance to the property.

Condition 26: Deliveries being made to the rear of the property will cause less public
nuisance than those made to the front of the building when lorries would be parking on a
public red route road. This would cause Public Safety and a Public Nuisance to pedestrians
and road users alike.

Condition 28: To allow the removal of this condition would cause a Public Nuisance to
every resident and business on this part of Park Road and cause Safety issues for the Public.

Condition 30 - Regardless of the delivery destination the noise and fumes caused by
vehicles with their engines running, waiting for a parking place to become available are
both a health risk and a nuisance. The exhaust fumes are a public health and safety issue
causing harm to children and adults alike.

The Co-op Foods Group had lately identified a problem with the size of their delivery
vehicles. They will have to adapt their business to the local site.

I heartily object to the Licence Variation Co-op Foods 18-22 Park Road -Application
Reference: 14/07378/LIPV. I object on grounds of Prevention of Public Nuisance related to
noise and rubbish removal from Park Road. On grounds of Public Safety with the proposed
deliveries and collections on a public footpath using a shared access door to the shop, and
the health and protection of Children (and Adults with respiratory conditions) should
vehicles be allowed to leave their engines running before or during deliveries. Making
deliveries on a red-route will cause a Public Nuisance and is a threat to Public Safety.

Yours sincerely,
Victor El-Khazen

page 209



APPENDIX B7

Eaton, Sam

From: zafar siddiqi [zssamaa@hotmail.com]
Sent: 23 September 2014 21:40

To: Premises Licensing

Subject: Application reference 14/07378/LIPV
Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Completed

From Flat 7,24 Park road in relation to Co-op Foods 18-22 Park Road

To allow delivery lorries from Park road will only add to the traffic and noise levels in our flat.
We object to this .

Thanks and best regards

Zafar Siddiqi

page 210



APPENDIX B8
Comments for Licensing Application 14/07378/LIPV

Application Summary

Application Number: 14/07378/LIPV
Address: 18-22 Park Road London NW1 4SH
Proposal: Premises Licence - Variation

Case Officer: Miss Samantha Eaton

Customer Details
Name: Ms Roya Mahboubian
Address: 40 Clarence Terrace Regents Park London

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer made comments in support of the Licensing Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:8:05 PM on 29 Sep 2014 We were bewildered and horrified to learn of the decision by
the Licensing Sub-Committee allowing goods delivery to this commercial property to be diverted
from Park Road, an A41 secondary highway rd to Sussex Place South which is situated within a
gated, residential and highly regulated conservation area of Regent's Park! The argument put
forward for this decision was that some residents in a block of modern purpose built building
situated in Park Road complained that the presence and noise from these vehicles disturbed their
peace and it would be better for these lorries to deliver through a private residential road in
Regent's Park!

This request was made without the approval or knowledge of residents of Clarence Terrace or
Crown Estate.

Not only is Sussex Place South a private road, managed and monitored by the CEPC, but it is also
the road that leads to the Clarence Terrace main underground parking area, provides access to
the main door of a block of mews flats belonging to Clarence Terrace and is adjacent to historic
Nash grade Il listed block 5 of Clarence Terrace.

There are strict regulations imposed by CEPC: gates to Outer Circle shut at midnight and re-open
at 7:00 am. There are strict regulation as to the times commercial vehicles can service business
buildings (normally only between 8:00 am and 5:00 pm). There are plans to limit the flow of traffic
within the Outer Circle and restrict noise and pollution.

The representation made by Mr Brown and number of residents from Park Road on 3 July was at
best misplaced and | respectfully ask the licensing committee to review their decision and not
allow deliveries for commercial properties residing in major highways surrounding the park such as
Park Road to be diverted to peaceful and serene gated residential areas of the park.

page 211



e APPENDIX B9

37 Clarence Terrace

Regents Park
London NW1 4RD
Tel: 020 7723 1460
Premises Licensing 4™ Floor
Westminster City Hall
64 Victoria Street
London SWI1E 6QP
Dear Sirs,

" ; Reference: Notice of Application to VARY Premises Licence in respect of deliveries at
Co-op, 18-22 Park Road, London NW1 4SH

We refer to the above application by the Co-operative Group Food Ltd of 1 Angel Square, Manchester M60 0AG.

We would like to support this application to allow deliveries to the Co-op using the Westminster City designated Lorry Delivery
Bays outside their premises on Park Road.

We were horrified to learn of the decision by the Licensing Sub-Committee No.4 of the 3 July 2014 for deliveries to be accessed
via the Crown Estate Paving Commission’s private road : Sussex Place South, using the Outer Circle in Regents Park .

It seems unimaginable that the WCC Sub-Committee should have made a decision which rejects 2 retail establishment from using
an already designated delivery bay in Park Road. These were presumably designed by Westminster City Council for quick
deliveries with minimum polluting effects and minimum vehicular traffic implications. The substitution to delivering to the rear
will mean further traffic congestion and pollution by introducing more commercial traffic to Regents Park since these commetcial
vehicles would have to park on a double line area on the Outer Circle of Regents Park. Due to their inability to reverse through 90
degrees into a restricted private road and then another 90 degrees to get to the delivery area they would have to deliver by trolley
down an uneven surface in Sussex Place South with attendant noise disturbance for residents of Clarence Terrace.

That decision by the Licensing Sub-Committee was made without considering:-

e The chained entrance of Sussex Place South has car parking spaces by permission of the Crown Estate Paving
Commission and therefore it’s extreme narrowness would make it impossible for lorries to reverse into it from the Outer
Circle and then do a 90 degree turn into the narrow 4 metre wide entrance to what is basically a ‘refuse collection area’
for Clarence Terrace and Park Road premises.

e It was also made without reference to the owners of the private road Sussex Place South [The Crown Estate Paving
Commission eg. CEPC]. The CEPC have their rules on commercial traffic in Regents Park which clearly the Licensing

Committee did not appreciate or consider.

Sussex Place South is right outside our main bedroom window, as it is with 4-5 other flats in Clarence Terrace.
Furthermore it was implied in the Licensing Sub-Committee minutes of the 3 July that Mr Brown [Citizens Advice
Bureau] was communicating the wishes of local residents. This was not so and he had no right falsely to represent all
residents. He was representing just two named Park Road residents and none from Clarence Terrace.

We respectfully ask the Licensing Sub-Committee to review their decision and permit deliveries by the Co-op ONLY from the
WCC designated lorry delivery bay on Park Road which is right in front of 18-22 Park Road.

Yours faithfully

NI SN

Mr & Mrs Simon C. Davidson
simoncathlyn@hotmail.com

cc. Mr Max Jack, Director, Crown Estate Paving Commission, 12 Park Square East, Regents Park,
London NW1 4LH

page 212




Appendix C

Licence & Appeal History

Application Details of Application Date Decision
Determined

New Premises Application for a New Premises to 03.07.2014 Granted by Licensing

Licence permit the Sale of Alcohol off the Sub Committee.
premises.

14/03669/LIPN

Variation Application | Application to vary the licence to delete Pending Application
conditions 26 and vary condition 28 and

12/01735/LIPT 30.

There is no appeal history for this premises.

page 213




APPENDIX D

CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS PROPOSED
BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING

When determining an application for variation of premises licence under the provisions of the
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant the
licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule.

At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, or
add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers appropriate for the
promotion of the licensing objectives.

This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or proposed as
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority or an interested
party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing service but reflect the
positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and have not necessarily been
~ agreed

Conditions on Existing Licence

Annex 1 — Mandatory conditions

1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor
in respect of this licence.

2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor does
not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended.

3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who hold a
personal licence.

4. (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure that an
age verification policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of
alcohol.

(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under
18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on
request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of
birth and a holographic mark.

5. (i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or
off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

(i) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 5(i) above -

(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act
1979;

(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula -
P = D+(DxV)

Where -
page 214



(i) P is the permitted price,

(i) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the
duty were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if
the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of

the alcohol;
(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in
force a premises licence -
(i) the holder of the premises licence,
(i) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence,
or

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol
under such a licence;

(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on
the premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the
supply in question; and

(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value
Added Tax Act 1994.

(iii) Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 5(ii)(b) above would (apart from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph
shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the
nearest penny.

(iv) (1) Sub-paragraph 5(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by
Paragraph 5(ii)(b) above on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the
permitted price on the next day (“the second day”) as a result of a change to the
rate of duty or value added tax.

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days
beginning on the second day.

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule
None

Annex 3 — Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

6. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the minimum
requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit points will be
covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light condition. The
CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for licensable activities and
during all times when customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a
minimum period of 28 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made
available immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer throughout the
preceding 28 day period.

7. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system
shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff member must be
able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent CCTV images or data
with the absolute minimum of delay when requested.

page 215



10.

11.

12.

13,

14.

i55

16.

17.

18.

19.

All tills shall automatically prompt staff to ask for age verification identification when presented
with an alcohol sale.

The licence holder shall ensure that outside of the hours authorised for the sale of alcohol and
whilst the premises are open to the public, all alcohol within the trading area is to be secured
behind locked grills, locked screens or locked cabinet doors so as to prevent access to the
alcohol by both customers and staff.

No super-strength beer, lagers, ciders or spirit mixtures of 5.5% ABV (alcohol by volume) or
above shall be soid at the premises.

No single cans or bottles of beer or cider or spirit mixtures shall be sold at the premises.

No more than (15) % of the sales area shall be used at any one time for the sale, exposure for
sale, or display of alcohol.

There shall be no self service of spirits on the premises, save for spirit mixtures less than 5.5%
ABV.

Prominent signage indicating the permitted hours for the sale of alcohol shall be displayed so
as to be visible before entering the premises, where alcohol is on public display, and at the
point of sale.

Prior to any football match taking place at Wembley Stadium the premises licence holder shall
ensure that;

(i) Alcohol sales in respect of cans of beer or cider are limited to no more than 4 cans per
person for a minimum of four hours before the commencement of the relevant
designated sporting event;

(i) No sales of alcohol in bottles or glass containers are made in the period four hours
before the commencement of the designated sporting event

(iii) On any day where there is a relevant designated sporting event taking place, the
premises will not externally advertise as a result of a local store promotion the
availability of beer or cider in such a way as to be likely to be the sole inducement to
attract persons to the premises who are either attending the designated sporting event
or in the vicinity of the premises as a result of the designated sporting event;

(iv) All members of staff working at the premises are informed of this condition prior to
taking up employment;

(v) On the day of the relevant designated sporting event, upon the direction of a police
officer of the rank of Inspector or above, using the grounds of the prevention of crime
and disorder or public safety, the premises will immediately cease to sell aicohol until
further directed by the police or until the relevant designated sporting event has
finished.

There shall be "CCTV in Operation" signs prominently displayed at the premises.

An incident log (whether kept in a written or electronic form) shall be retained at the premises
and made available to an authorised Officer of the Police or the Local Authority.

The premises shall operate a proof of age scheme, such as a Challenge 25, whereby the only
forms of acceptable identification shall be either a photographic driving licence, a valid
passport, military identification or any other recognised form of photographic identification
incorporating the PASS logo, or any other form of identification from time to time approved by
the secretary of the state.

The premises will be fitted with a burglar alarm system.

page 216



20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

The premises will be fitted with a panic button system for staff to utilise in the case of an
emergency.

The premises licence holder shall ensure that the appropriate fire safety, and health and
safety regulations are applied at the premises.

A complaints procedure will be maintained, details of which will be made available in store and
upon request.

A refusals register (whether kept and written or electronic form) will be maintained at the
premises and will be made available for inspection upon request by an authorised Officer of
the Police or the Local Authority.

All relevant staff will receive training in their responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003 and
Challenge 25 (or any similar scheme). Refresher training will be given twice a year and
training records made available to the Police or an authorised officer of the Licensing
Authority.

Tills will be installed at the premises which prompt staff to request age verification from
customers who appear to be under the age of 25 (or any other age should Challenge 25 be
replaced by a similar scheme).

All deliveries and collections to take place at the rear of the property marked 'x' on the plan.
(Proposed for Deletion)

All deliveries and collections to take place between 08:00 and 23:00 hours.

All refuse to be collected inside the premises and to be picked up from the area marked 'x' on
the plan.

Proposed Amendment:

All refuse to be collected inside the premises.

No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of
the premises which gives rise to a nuisance.

Delivery vehicles will not be permitted to leave their engines running whilst waiting to enter the
delivery area.

Proposed Amendment:

Delivery vehicles will not be permitted to leave their engines running whilst making deliveries.
During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure sufficient
measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or accumulating from
customers in the area immediately outside the premises, and that this area shall be swept and

or washed, and litter and sweepings collected and stored in accordance with the approved
refuse storage arrangements by close of business.

page 217



APPENDIX E

¥10¢/0L/L0 ®ed

aseqejeq wuoyun :224nos eleq

266610001 Y1 JoquInu 80ua0l] "pantasal sybU [y

‘€102 }yBu aseqejep Jo/pue JybuAdod umoi) @ ‘2o Asuone)s SI8)9N D
s,A1salepy JoH J0 J9|[0U0D 3y} Jo uoissiuuad sy ym Asaing
@ouBUpIO WOl pasuaol etep Buiddew sepnioul 1onpoad siyL

%¢€8

sasq ||e jo
[enyuspisay
uoipodoid

6¢

sesn Jaylo

uolINIISUCD
lopun

6¢l

[enuspisay
pasodoid
/ lenuapisay

oLm £ , S
e a

LIPS
S -

AEO UUE(D

INSTTWISIN JO 411D
HS¥ LMN ‘uopuo-] ‘peoy yled zz-8i o




Premises within 75 metres of:

Co-operative Food, 18-22 Park Road,

L.ondon, NW1 4SH.

p/n Name of Premises Premises Address Opening Hours
-9093 Co-operative Food 18-22 Park Road London NW1 4SH Monday to Sunday 07:00 - 23:00
-18981 Rudolf Steiner Bookshop Ground Floor 35 Park Road London NW1 6XT Monday to Sunday 09:00 - 00:00
-3688 Mumitaz Restaurant

Ground Floor 4-10 Park Road London NW1 4SH

Monday to Saturday 10:00 - 00:30 Sunday 12:00 - 00:00

page 219



APPENDIX F










____UVO AV 7







Agenda Iltem 3

Licensing Sub-

P\

City of esinster Com m ittee Re pOI‘t

Item No:

Licensing Ref No: | | 14/07220/LIPN

Date: | (30 October 2014

Classification:
For General Release

Titieh Reperc. Basement And Ground Floor
39 Great Windmill Street
London
W1D 7LX
Report of:

Operational Director — Premises Management

Policy context: | [' ci¢y of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy

Financial summary:
None

Report Author: | | Miss Sam Eaton, Environmental Health Case Officer

Contact Details: | |Telephone: 020 7641 1868
E-mail: seaton1@westminster.gov.uk

page 225



1. APPLICATION DETAILS

Application New premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003.

Type:

Applicant: Maurice St. Aubyn Date 26 August 2014
Application
Received:

Premises Basement And Ground Floor

Name and 39 Great Windmill Street

Address: London

W1D 7LX

Ward Name: West End | Stress area | West End

Premises The premises wish to operate as a restaurant on the Basement and Ground Floors.

Description:

Preliminary The Licensing Service has been informed that a licence is held at 4 Brewer Street

Note: in the name of Mr Lior Schwietzer which will be transferred to this applicant (Mr

Maurice St Aubyn). As the Brewer Street area is being redeveloped the applicant
wishes to operate from 39 Great Windmill Street for approximately three years until
the works are completed and then they will return to the premises at 4 Brewer
Street. Please refer to Appendix A4 for further information. Please be advised
that the applicant has not applied for a time limited licence.

Note: Where the committee is minded to grant the licence it will be granted subject to the mandatory
conditions and conditions consistent with the operating schedule modified to such extent as the
authority considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives detailed in Appendix D to

this report.

Proposed Licensable Activities, Proposed Hours:

References / Notes

1 | Late Night Refreshment:

Monday to Saturday — 23:00 to 01:00
Sunday - 23:00 to 00:00

Relevant representations and policies applicable:

1A

1B

1C

The Environmental Health Service has made an adverse
representation against the application as the premises is located
in the West End Stress Area as defined by the City Council’s
Licensing Policy. The proposals are likely to increase Public
Nuisance and may impact on Public Safety. Please refer to
Appendix B1 for further information. Conditions have been
proposed and agreed and can be found in Appendix D.

The Metropolitan Police Service has made an adverse
representation against this application as it is their belief that is
granted the application would undermine the Licensing
Objectives. Please refer to Appendix B2 for further information.
Conditions have been proposed and agreed and can be found in
Appendix D. Subsequently, the Metropolitan Police Service have
withdrawn their representation.

A local resident have made adverse representations against this
application on the following grounds:

e Previously the residents had suffered noise nuisance from
nearby pubs and clubs but now most of them close before
00:00.

e Cars, drunken customers of nearby clubs cause
disturbance

Environmental
Health Service
Representation &
Conditions

Metropolitan Police
Service
Representation,
Conditions and
Withdrawal

Resident
Representations

page 226




1D

1E

1F

1G

1H

e Permitting the premises to provide Late Night Refreshment
may increase the level of noise and disturbances

e Children could be disturbed as could residents who have
to get up early for work.

Please refer to Appendix B3 for further information.

The following policies within the City of Westminster Statement of
Licensing Policy apply:

Prevention of crime and disorder (CD1)
Public Safety (PS1)

Prevention of public nuisance (PN1)
Protection children from harm (CH1)
Hours (HRS1)

Stress Area (STR1)

Restaurants within the Stress Area (RNT2)
Fast Food Premises (FFP2)

Policy HRS1 Applies:

() Applications for hours within the core hours set out below in
this policy will generally be granted, subject to not being
contrary to other policies in the Statement of Licensing
Policy.

(i) Applications for hours outside the core hours set out below in
this policy will be considered on their merits, subject to other
relevant policies.

Policy STR1 Applies:

() It is the Licensing Authority's policy to refuse
applications in the Stress Areas for: pubs and bars, fast food
premises, and premises offering facilities for music and
dancing; other than applications to vary hours within the
Core Hours under Policy HRS1.

(i)  Applications for other licensable activities in the Stress
Areas will be subject to other policies, and must
demonstrate that they will not add to cumulative impact in
the Stress Areas.

Policy RNT2 Applies:

Applications will be granted subject to other policies in this
Statement and subject to the relevant criteria in Policies
CD1, PS1, PN1 and CH1, provided it can be demonstrated
that they will not add to cumulative impact in the Stress
Areas.

Policy FFP2 Applies:
it is the Licensing Authority’s policy to refuse applications

in the Stress Areas, other than applications to vary hours
within the Core Hours under Policy HRS1.

Policies applicable

page 227




11

The Licensing Sub-committee may refuse, grant in full or grant in
part this proposal, having taken into account the representations
received and Westminster's Statement of Licensing Policy. The
decision taken should promote the licensing objectives of:

prevention of public nuisance,
prevention of crime & disorder,
public safety and

protection of children from harm

Summary

Opening Hours

Monday to Saturday — 11:00 to 01:00
Sunday — 11:00 to 00:00

(Note: Opening hours are not a licensable activity under the
Licensing Act 2003, however they can still be taken into
consideration when assessing the application’s effect on the

Environmental
Health Service &
Local Resident

licensing objectives.)

2A Please referto 1A to 1H above.

2B The Licensing Sub-committee may refuse, grant in full or grant in Summary
part this proposal, having taken into account the representations
received and Westminster's Statement of Licensing Policy. The
decision taken should promote the licensing objectives of:

prevention of public nuisance,
prevention of crime & disorder,
public safety and

protection of children from harm

Licensable Activities Provided at “Wok to Proposed Licensable Activities for this
Walk” 4 Brewer Street - 08/07630/LIPV application

Late Night Refreshment: Late Night Refreshment:
Monday to Saturday: 23:00 to 01:00 Same

Sunday: 23:00 to 00:00

Opening Hours:

Opening Hours:

Monday to Saturday: 11:00 to 01:00 Same
Sunday: 11:00 to 00:00
Proposed The following capacity has been proposed by the applicant:
Capacity:
The number of persons accommodated at any one time shall not exceed 15.
Current The premises are not currently licensed under the Licensing Act 2003.
Licensing
Position
Current Comments will be provided for the hearing.
Planning
Position
Residential 98 of the 211 units within a 100m radius of the premises are residential, proposed
Density: residential or under construction (46.5%), refer to Appendix E

page 228




List of A1 - Application Form

Appendices: A2 - Plans

A3 - Licence at “Wok to Walk” — 08/07630/LIPV

A4 - Information from applicant regarding 4 Brewer Street Premises
B1 — Environmental Health Representation

B2 - Metropolitan Police Service Representation, Conditions and withdrawal
B3 — Resident Representation

C — Licence History

D - Proposed Conditions

E - Residential Map and list of premises in the vicinity

F — Photograph of the premises

Relevant Environmental Health

Representations: 1 x Resident

2. APPLICANT SUBMISSIONS AND EVIDENCE

2.1 The evidence submitted by the applicant in support of the Licensing Objectives is provided in
Appendix A1

3. LICENSING ACT 2003 APPLICATIONS AND APPEAL HISTORY

3.1 Any chronology relating to appeals is set out in Appendix C.

Background Documents — Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972

e Licensing Act 2003

e City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy (7" January 2011)

e Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (June 2013)

page 229




— - APPENDIX A1
- U

' Waestminster City Council Licensing Service 020 7641 8549
4" Floor westminster.gov.uk
Westminster City Hall PREMIS NAGEMENT

Fe e eeas City fEWestiiYister

7 6 AUG 0%

CITY OF WESTMINSTER

Application for a premises licence to be granted
under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. If you are completing
this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that your answers are inside the
boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

e MLAURZ\CE T, AuU®Hn

(Insert name(s) of applicant)
apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in
Part 1 below (the premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the relevant licensing
authority in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003

Part 1 — Premises Details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

QV.OU\N.’D FLdo&
2q QRs&T Wod¥y ISST
Precadiryy

Post town Lo DoN Postcode M['D q-}__x

Telephone number at premises (if any) |

Non-domestic rateable value of premises £ 2 S . 5 oD

Part 2 - Applicant Details

Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence as
Please tick as appropriate

a) an individual or individuals * R}~ please complete section (A)
b) a person other than an individual *

i.  as alimited company please complete section (B)
ii.  as a partnership please complete section (B)

iii. as an unincorporated association or please complete section (B)

ooaono

iv.  other (for example a statutory corporation) please complete section (B)

page 230



d)
€)

g)

ga)

h)

* If you are applying as a person described in (a) or (b) please confirm:

a recognised club

a charity

the proprietor of an educational establishment
a health service body

a person who is registered under Part 2 of the Care
Standards Act 2000 (c14) in respect of an independent
hospital in Wales

a person who is registered under Chapter 2 of Part 1
of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 (within the
meaning of that Part) in an independent hospital in
England

the chief officer of police of a police force in England
and Wales

Please tick yes

O0oo0goOod

O

O

please complete section (B)
please complete section (B)
please complete section (B)
please complete section (B)

please complete section (B)

please complete section (B)

please complete section (B)

1 am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the use of the premises for M
licensable activities; or

I am making the application pursuant to a

statutory function or

a function discharged by virtue of Her Majesty’s prerogative

(A) INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS (fill in as applicable)

O
O

Mr R Mrs [ Miss [] Ms []

Other Title (for
example, Rev)

Surname

ST AUR\N)

First names

MAufLic =

I am 18 years old or over

A4 Piease tick yes

Current postal address if
different from premises
address

14~ QLPA HousE
203 STREATRAY HIGH Kond
STEATHANM

Post town Lo Varl

Postcode Quille 2N UV

Daytime contact telephone number

o800 A-L] L8

E-mail address
(optional)

MAS AU @ YA Hes.Co. UK

page 231




SECOND INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (if applicable)

. Other Title (for

Mr [ Mrs [] Miss [ Ms [ example, Rev)
Surname First names
1am 18 years old or over [0 Pleasetick yes
Current postal address if
different from premises
address
Post town Postcode

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

(B) OTHER APPLICANTS

Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full. Where appropriate please give any
registered number. In the case of a partnership or other joint venture (other than a body
corporate), please give the name and address of each party concerned.

Name

Address

Registered number (where applicable)

Description of applicant (for example, partnership, company, unincorporated association etc.)

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

page 232




Part 3 Operating Schedule

When do you want the premises licence to start?

If you wish the ticence to be valid only for a limited period, when do you
want it to end?

DD MM YYYY
SIEE AW

DD MM YYYY

LITTTTTT1]

ﬁlease give a general description of the premises (please read guidance note 1)

Qo) Flool USSTALLMNTT—A

Tor ST A SeonS /7S

ND CASEHSII ]

If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises at any one time,

please state the number expected to attend.

What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises?
'd

LN /A ]

(Please see sections 1 and 14 of the Licensing Act 2003 and Schedules | and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003)

Provision of regulated entertainment

a)

4
’

b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g

h)

plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A)

films (if ticking yes, fill in box B)

indoor s.porting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C)

boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)
live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E)

recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F)

performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G)

anything of a similar description to that falling within ), Hor(e
(if ticking yes, fill in box H)

page 233

Please tick any that
apply

O 0O0O0O00OOoaog



A
Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box I)
Supply of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box J) ]
In all cases complete boxes K, L and M
A
Will the performance of a play take place indoors

ard days and timings | or outdoors or both — please tick (please read Indoors O
(pleasdyead guidance note | guidance note 2)
6) Outdoors O
Day Start \{inish Both O
Mon \ Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)
Tue
Wed lays (please read guidance
Thur
Fri
Sat
Sun

page 234



B

ilms Will the exhibition of films take place indoors or
Stawdard days and timings | outdoors or both — please tick (please read guidance Indoors O
(pl ead guidance note | note 2)
6) Outdoors ]
N o
Day Start \E]nlsh Both [l
Mon \ Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)
N
Tue

Wed the exhibition of films (please read
Thur
Fri
left, please list (please read guidance note 5)
Sat
Sun

page 235




Please give further details (please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed

Fri

Sat

Sun

page 236



Will the boxing or wrestling entertainment take

place indoors or outdoors or both — please tick
(please read guidance note 2)

Indoors O
Outdoors O
Both O

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue
Wed State any seasonal va¥i
(please read gpidance not
s N/ A
Fri
column on the left, please list (please read guidanc
Sat
Sun

page 237




i Will the performance of live music take place
Stahgdard days and timings | indoors or outdoors or both — please tick (please Indoors t

ead guidance note | read guidance note 2)

Outdoors ]
N
Day Start “|Ninish Both O
Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)
Tue
Wed riormance of live music (please
read guidance note 4)
Thur
Fri
on the left, please list (p]ease read guidance note
Sat
Sun

page 238



ecorded music Will the playing of recorded music take place

d days and timings | indoors or outdoors or both — please tick (please Indoors O
(pleas&ead guidance note | read guidance note 2)
6) Outdoors [l
Day | Start \NEinish Both O
Mon \ Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

N
Tue
Wed State any season
read guidance note 4)
Thur
Fr
on the left, please list (please read guidance note 5

Sat
Sun

page 239



G
rformances of dance Will the performance of dance take place indoors
Stangdard days and timings | or outdoors or both — please tick (please read Indoors |
(pleasdyead guidance note | guidance note 2)
6) Outdoors O
N
Day Start  [\Ejnish Both O
Mon \ Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)
Tue

Wed State any seasonal
guidance note 4)
Thur
Fri
the left, please list (please read guidance note 5)
Sat
Sun

page 240




Please give a description of the type of entertainment you will be providing

Day Start Fm Will this entertainment take place indoors or Indoors O
] outdoors or both — please tick (please read guidance
Mon ote 2) Outdoors O
\ Both O
Tue ¢ further details here (please read guidance note 3)
Wed
Thur
Fri
Sat
(please read guidance note 5)
Sun

page 241




I

Late night refreshment Will the provision of late night refreshment take

Standard days and timings | place indoors or outdoors or both — please tick Indoors V

(please read guidance note | (please read guidance note 2)

6) Outdoors O

Day | Start | Finish Both O

Mon (2%, 40le(. o0 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue 2;0 o» e ola 2 4

Wed B . o! State any seasonal variations for the provision of late night refreshment
2 X @2 | (please read guidance note 4)

Thur Z‘; ‘oe|Of. am

Fri 22.colof © Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the

rovision of late night refreshment at different times, to those listed in
the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 5)
Sal zs an(0/, v
Sun

page 242




pply of alcohol Will the supply of alcohol be for consumption — On the
Stangard days and timings | please tick (please read guidance note 7) premises O
(pleas d guidance note
6) Off the

premises O]
Day | Start *&x{sh Both 0
Mon \ State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol (please read
idance note 4)
Tue
- N / A
Thur
left. please list (please read guidance note

Fri
Sat
Sun

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as designated

premises supervisor:

[

Address

N /A

Postcode l

Personal licence number (if known) \

Issuing licensing authority (if known) \

page 243



highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or matters
the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children (please read

guidance note

N /4

L

Hours premises are open | State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 4)

to the public

Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note
6)

Day Start Finish
Mon

’l- Oow O,-QQ

Tue ’/- eo |0/ 0w

Wed ll.oe |©/. 0o

Non standard timings. Where you intend the premises to be open to the
public at different times from those listed jn the column on the left,
Thur [ [. oo |0/ 6| please list (please read guidance note 5)

Fri I,'°° °Io°°

Sat {-/.p'o O(‘oo

Sun l/.m° 00.00

page 244



M Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:

a) General ~ all four licensing objectives (b, ¢, d and e) (please read guidance note 9)

UTTLI 96 AL EXISTING (LLcaENSING, CoriditioN
OF THE® [(cE€NaE PaSllouslLy HEWY AT
4 NEUET. TS 1, LerDuN W]

o8[oaczo /L1 PV

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

UTTLISATioN oF ContdD({TioWls 9 ad) \o OF WI\ImLaL_\,
tema LicenaE AT 4, CRBWSR STIEET LorHon
!

o8 foxzo /L Pv

¢) Public safety

UTILISATIoN OF GudToNg R Awd) (o o‘F‘l&f\ouS'L.\(
Hey Lesnes AT 4,?&5@’?7&5-5/ LorDoN bl

08(‘54—5?(:/!,-\(\/

d) The prevention of public nuisance

;ﬂTI_IBKTTaN\ OF cordione 3 4-S,L, 3 mp Il OF
ISViou Ly HEWD Lie@naeE AT 42 1eWIER
SRS (e ok

¢ Yo\l

_08(03((539 {L\Q\/

¢) The protection of children from harm

page 245




Checklist:
Please tick to indicate agreement
¢ I have made or enclosed payment of the fee. (v
® I have enclosed the plan of the premises. g
e 1have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and others where D/
applicable.

® ] have enclosed the consent form completed by the individual I wish to be designated premises ]
supervisor, if applicable.

® * I understand that I must now advertise my application. (9 g
®  Iunderstand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will be 1P
rejected.

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE NOT EXCEEDING
LEVEL 5 ON THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003,
TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION.

Part 4 — Signatures (please read guidance note 10)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see guidance note 11).
If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity.

Signature Q’L @_ %

Date 28" AnqusT Ly

Capacity 1Wf <

For joint applications, signature of 2™ applicant or 2™ applicant’s solicitor or other authorised
agent (please read guidance note 12). If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what
capacity.

Signature

Date

Capacity

page 246



Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence associated with this
application (please read guidance note 13)

Post town { [ Postcode [

Telephone number (if any) [

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail, your e-mail address (optional)

Notes for Guidance

1.

10.
1.

12.

13t

Describe the premises, for example the type of premises, its general situation and layout and any
other information which could be relevant to the licensing objectives. Where your application
includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place for consumption of these off-
supplies, you must include a description of where the place will be and its proximity to the
premises.

Where taking place in a building or other structure please tick as appropriate (indoors may include
a tent), )

For example the type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further
details, for example (but not exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.
For example (but not exclusively), where the activity will occur on additional days during the
summer months.

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day
e.g. Christmas Eve.

Please give timings in 24 hour clock (e.g. 16:00) and only give details for the days of the week
when you intend the premises to be used for the activity. _

If you wish peopie to be able to consume alcohol on the premises, please tick ‘on the premises’. If
you wish people to be able to purchase alcohol to consume away from the premises, please tick
‘off the premises’. If you wish people to be able to do both, please tick ‘both’.

Please give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of
the premises which may give rise to concern in respect of children, regardless of whether you
intend children to have access to the premises, for example (but not exclusively) nudity or semi-
nudity, films for restricted age groups or the presence of gaming machines.

Please list here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.

The application form must be signed.

An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided that they
have actual authority to do so.

Where there is more than one applicant, each of the applicant or their respective agent must sign
the application form.

This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

page 247




APPENDIX A2
1Y 8 ’ | 25-
: éi‘ §5 b g';‘ g ]
| EC En gl 9 -
! i 22 E 110
| ¥y * 1a {
C is |2 nE
Gg [ ] S!-
;; L 33 ﬂ o ll‘ ' g j
L ‘u':"?- g & | (B ||}l2| st
: I
-.
!['l!l-%ﬂ
l,l_..f_;i{‘

page 248



] 20 oy
g awg
oL,

Jooj4 punoig Bupsixg g

X4 dIM uopuoT
18848 [IWPUIM 188D §C ey

AUv0 SININONSINY

shyvs 1% 3314 - SHd
wmsmboix3 323 - 3d
- hay|

page 249

I <E.tim—




L4 Pwog 0
s rl R R

ualos " g
S L0 SUCISUSLP |IE VLD TUMEIP B YO 9% 10u o0

¥ 0 B

Y LORBART
X4 QLM uopuoT e
19948 [[IWPUIAL 18819 6  aus IlllllllHlllllIﬂF|| ———

-)

LO

V|

()]

llllllll s S

rrrrrrrrrrrrr ||-||||1|1|| ]

---|‘|l-|--ltlfa5gxsﬂgm§ ............ .y




3 wog Mg — | - 1
T T G
iy Uy g -
wwost | | ow |EEEAEEESSRTE S
@S - 3L - ans NS S
3 9 3
uopoeg Bupsixg g B Ueheg
X2 LM Uopuot
1964 (JWPUIM 181D 6E ey

Fivd BININCNGWY

page 251




Ir [
w %E‘

® § i

£ a | ]
2 £F 13 H
g8 |t L B
2= 15 :

5 |2 I

£ 33 (o] e § . i |

| e B |E [lEa]2E
£ I' 'IH ’

| l'l '] I‘l =1
| 4 :! ) ®
: l‘i'F"‘ iiliil'i
Bh| izl

}’!}i; il

; sl

page 252




APPENDIX A3

Schedule 12 WARD: West End
Part A UPRN: 999000136580
City of Westminster o Regulation 33, 34
64 Victoria Street, London, SW1E 6QP Premises licence
Premises licence number: 08/07630/LIPV
Original Reference: 05/07330/LIPCV

Part 1 — Premises details

Postal address of premises:

Wok To Walk
Ground Floor

4 Brewer Street
London

W1F 0SB

Telephone Number: 020 7266 0001

Where the licence is time limited, the dates:

Not applicable

Licensable activities authorised by the licence:

Late Night Refreshment

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities:

Late Night Refreshment

Monday to Saturday: 23:00 to 01:00
Sunday: 23:00 to 00:00
Non-standard Timings: N/A

The opening hours of the premises:

Monday to Saturday: 11:00 to 01:00
Sunday: 11:00 to 00:00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol, whether these are on and/or off
supplies:

Not applicable

page 253



Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of
premises licence:

Lior Schwietzer

28 Clifton Road

London

W9 1GT

Electronic Mail : lior@mzozveg.com
Telephone Number : 07970 682 394

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where
applicable)

02072660001

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the
premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol:

Not applicable

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated
premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol:

Not applicable

Date: 29 October 2008

Signed: pp
Director of Community Protection

page 254




Annex 1

Conditions relating to the provision of late night refreshment

1. This licence is subject to all the former regulations made by Westminster City Council
prescribing standard conditions for annual night café licences, effective from 1 October 2001.

2. The premises may be kept open only for the purposes of this licence from 12 midnight on
each of the days Monday to Saturday to 1am on the day following.

3. No amplified music shall be played within the premises after 23:00.

4. The sliding fagade of the premises shall be closed when the premises are in use under this
licence.

5. The pavement from the building line to the kerb edge, and to include the gutter/channel
immediately outside the premises and to a distance of 10 metres on either side is swept whilst
the premises are open for business and litter and sweepings coliected, stored and disposed
of in accordance with the approved refuse storage arrangements.

6. Atthe close of business each day the premises are open for business, the pavement from
the building line to the kerb edge, and to include the gutter/channel immediately outside the
premises and to a distance of 10 metres on either side is swept whilst the premises are open
for business and litter and sweepings collected, stored and disposed of in accordance with
the approved refuse storage arrangements.

7. All refuse must be paid, properly presented, and can only be placed on street 30 minutes
before the scheduled collection time.

8. The number of persons accommodated at any one time shall not exceed 15.

page 255



Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule
9. All licensable activities shall be restricted to the ground floor of the premises.

10. The venue shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the minimum
requirements of a Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Officer. All entry and exit points will
be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light condition. The
CCTV system shall continually record whilst the venue is open for licensable activities and
during all times when customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a
minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Recordings shall be made available
immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer throughout the preceding 31 day
period".

page 256



Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

11. To allow the consumption of food on the premises after 23:00 provided that the doors to
the premises remain closed.

12. The premises is allowed to have the provision of incidental background recorded music
until 23:00.

page 257



Annex 4 - Plans

Attached

page 258



NVId LNIWNISVE

H #r
;
(R

1!

.*

HOLYH W VAGOVY 84VO5E ANIHISVE OUHL HOLLZFS

wz 1 FReok ST A D ¥ A
e o RIS RSt am SRATIVE A S IS 000 RS T
UMY 5504 IO 48 TREARN

s 45 PO
s nase Buatem.: o M Ko (42T

1 -y

S

e Py

ey w—

7 uBHAR P LS

WIS 12] SN

_ 1%
| (e @ co)

a2

T R
| i - ans

T g Ay
_ ¥

RN
| AIVM QL ROM

_ *|
el 7
i o > WA R

PRADEN AL
pullemeti 23

L ———— tomSomis

_,.......,...\.J
A
-
ot W . Q

RNE SRl d e e
i
i sty R o |
et Gl
e
s e oo o
i g e Rt i
B T Nk e v
et e e e |
ponsL

[ L 11
rtap 0 NGB -
AR |

-

PRI -~ |

u.
e n 8 b e
— ._l__

avwr
premse i e Tl

e vy e SO NS

e
BaEen g _.




P TR v N L

NYld LNIW3SYE v 5 NY1d

.u \.\ s o ———
Aw,... .. N ‘v 4 % o = i-ﬁ.‘p-.rﬂmwmo




Premises within 75 metres of: Co-operative Food, 18-22 Park Road,

London, NW1 4SH.

p/n Name of Premises Premises Address Opening Hours

-8093 Co-operative Food 18-22 Park Road London NW1{ 4SH Monday to Sunday 07:00 - 23:00

-18981 Rudolf Steiner Bookshop Ground Floor 35 Park Road London NW1 6XT Monday to Sunday 09:00 - 00:00

-3688 Mumtaz Restaurant Ground Floor 4-10 Park Road London NW1 4SH | Monday to Saturday 10:00 - 00:30 Sunday 12:00 - 00:00

page 261



Schedule 12 WARD: West End
Part B UPRN: 999000136580

Clty of Westminster Premises licence Regulation 33, 34
64 Victoria Street, London, SW1E 6QP summary
Premises licence number: 08/07630/LIPV

Part 1 — Premises details

Postal address of premises:

Wok To Walk
Ground Floor

4 Brewer Street
London

W1F 0SB

Telephone Number: 020 7266 0001

Where the licence is time limited, the dates:

Not applicable

Licensable activities authorised by the licence:

Late Night Refreshment

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities:

Late Night Refreshment
Monday to Saturday: 23:00 to 01:00
Sunday: 23:00 to 00:00

Non-standard Timings: N/A

The opening hours of the premises:

Monday to Saturday: 11:00 to 01:00
Sunday: 11:00 to 00:00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol, whether these are on and/or off

supplies:

Not applicable

page 262




Name and (registered) address of holder of premises licence:

Lior Schwietzer
28 Clifton Road
London

W9 1GT

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where
applicable)

02072660001

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for
the supply of alcohol:

Not applicable

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited:

N/A

Date: 29 October 2008

Signed: PP
Director of Community Protection

page 263




APPENDIX A4

Eaton, Sam

From: Maurice [mastaubyn@yahoo.co.uk]

Sent: 17 October 2014 09:55

To: Eaton, Sam

Cc: Dror Woktowalk

Subject: Re: 39 Great Windmill Street, London - 14/07220/LIPN
Dear Mr Eaton,

I apologise for taking so long to get back to you but I have been away on a short family break and I will be
away again on Sunday the 19th October,2014 until Monday 27th October , 2014 .

You pointed out a few concerns in regards to my position at no.4 Brewer Street licence number
(ref:08/07630/LIPV) and you wanted to know whether we will be surrendering the license at no. 4 Brewer
Street should our application be granted for no. 39 Great Windmill Street, application reference no.
(14/07220/LIPN).

This is our position, the license at no.4 Brewer Street is currently in the name of our managing Director Mr
Lior Schwietzer, we will be applying for a change of name to mine Mr Maurice St. Aubyn. Because of
building changes to the area we have signed an agreement with the frecholders Soho estates to move from
our current location at no.4 Brewer Street to our present location at no. 39 Great Windmill street.

The agreement is for approximately three years for building works to be completed we will then be moving
back to no.4 Brewer Street while building works will be taking place at no. 39 great Windmill Street for
approximately another 3 years.we will be retaining our current license so that when we move back to no.4
Brewer Street we will have no issues , as for my position I am the new member of staff that has been
brought in with the responsibility for all licenses and premises matters.

I hope that this short email clarifies your concerns, should you wish for any further details please feel free to
contact my office.

Yours sincerely

Maurice St. Aubyn

Mr Maurice St Aubyn

Property Planning & Licensing Consultant
St Aubyn Properties

Contact: mastaubyn@yahoo.co.uk
Mobile: +44(0)7980043938

On 10 Oct 2014, at 14:19, Eaton, Sam <seatonl@westminster.gov.uk> wrote:

page 264



APPENDIX B1

CITY OF WESTMINSTER MEMORANDUM
TO Licensing Officer

REFERENCE 14/07220/LIPN

FROM EH Consultation Team, 4" Floor (West) City Hall
REFERENCE 14/037172/EHCT

BEING DEALT WITH BY  David Nevitt

TELEPHONE 3188

DATE 23.9.2014

LICENSING ACT 2003
APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE
GROUND FLOOR & BASEMENT, 39 GREAT WINDMILL STREET, W1

| refer to the above application which seeks a Premises Licence to include the following
Licensable activities:

Late Night Refreshment ‘Indoors’ until 0100hrs Monday to Saturday and until 0000hrs
on Sunday;

The applicant has proposed conditions which are under consideration.
| wish to make Representations on the foliowing grounds:

Representation is made in relation to the application, as the proposals are likely to
increase Public Nuisance and may impact upon Public Safety.

The premises is located in the West End Stress Area as defined by the City
Council’s Licensing Policy.

Should you wish to discuss the matter further please do not hesitate to contact me.

David Nevitt
Environmental Health Officer

page 265



CITY OF WESTMINSTER MEMORANDUM

TO Licensing Officer

REFERENCE 14/07220/LIPN

FROM EH Consultation Team

REFERENCE

BEING DEALT WITH BY lan Watson (iwatson@westminster.gov.uk)
TELEPHONE 020 7641 3183

DATE 22nd October 2014

The Licensing Act 2003

39 Great Windmill St, W1

| refer to the application for a New Premises Licence.

The premises are located within the West End Stress Area as stated in the City of
Westminster’s Statement of Licensing Policy.

The fo

llowing conditions are proposed by Environmental Health to support the licensing

objectives if the application is granted.

. There shall be no take-away of hot food or hot drink after 23.00 hours daily.

The consumption of food shall only be by customers seated inside the premises.
A waiter/waitress service shall be provided.

The maximum number of customers that may be inside the premises at any one
time shall not exceed 15 persons. (or such lower number on final clearance).

No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through
the structure of the premises which gives rise to a nuisance.

Notices shall be prominently displayed at exits requesting patrons to respect the
needs of local residents and businesses and leave the area quietly.

All waste shall be properly presented and placed out for collection no earlier than
30 minutes before the scheduled collection times.

During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure
sufficient measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or
accumulating from customers in the area immediately outside the premises, and
that this area shall be swept and or washed, and litter and sweepings collected
and stored in accordance with the approved refuse storage arrangements by
close of business.

page 266



9. No waste or recyclable materials, including bottles, shall be moved, removed from
or placed in outside areas between 23.00 hours and 08.00 hours on the following

day.

Should you wish to discuss the matter further please do not hesitate to contact me.

lan Watson
Senior Practitioner Environmental Health (Licensing)

page 267



APPENDIX B2

Eaton, Sam

From: Deweltz, Adam

Sent: 22 September 2014 11:59

To: Maurice

Cc: idoxlicensing

Subject: RE: Ground Floor, 39 Great Windmill Street, Picccadilly, W1 - 14/07220/LIPN
Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Completed

Dear Maurice,

Thank you for agreeing to the conditions. The Metropolitan Police as a reasonable authority, withdraw their
representation.

Many thanks

Adam,

PC Adam Deweltz

Westminster Police Licensing Unit
Westminster City Hall

4th Floor

64 Victoria Street

London

SW1E 6QP

From: Maurice [mailto:mastaubyn@yahoo.co.uk]

Sent: 19 September 2014 20:46

To: Deweltz, Adam

Subject: Re: Ground Floor, 39 Great Windmill Street, Picccadilly, W1 - 14/07220/LIPN

Dear Officer Deweltz

Thank you for your prompt response in regards to this application. As you know, there is already a similar system in
place, at Number 4 Brewer Street, however, we are currently installing a new up to date system at 39 Great
Windmill Street. We unreservedly accept all of your conditions and will be implementing them before opening and it
can be inspected at your convenience. Sorry for my delayed response.

Mr Maurice St Aubyn

Property Planning

& Licensing consultant
Contact:mastaubyn@yahoo.co.uk
Mobile: +44(0)7980043938

On 19 Sep 2014, at 10:22, "Deweltz, Adam" <adeweltz@westminster.gov.uk> wrote:

Dear Maurice

Ground Floor, 39 Great Windmill Street, Piccadilly, W1 - 14/07220/LIPN

page 268



With reference to the above, | am writing to inform you that the Metropolitan Police, as a
Responsible Authority, make a representation against the above application, as it is our
belief that if granted the application would undermine the Licensing Objectives.

The venue is situated in the West End Stress Area, a locality where there is traditionally high
crime and disorder. We have concerns that this application will cause further policing
problems in an already demanding area.

In order for the licence to be granted, the Police would like the following conditions added:

1) The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the
minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit
points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any
light condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises is open
for licensable activities and during all times when customers remain on the

. premises. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date
and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately upon
the request of Police or authorised officer throughout the preceding 31 day period.

2) A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the
CCTV system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. This
staff member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of
recent CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested.

3) An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an
authorised officer of the City Council or the Police, which will record the following:

(a) all crimes reported to the venue

(b) all ejections of patrons

(c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder

(d) any incidents of disorder

(e) any faults in the CCTV system or searching equipment or scanning equipment
(f) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.

| know there is already an existing CCTV licence condition on the Premises licence for 4
Brewer street. The one | have asked for is a new updated one. If you are happy to agree to
the above conditions, | will withdraw our representation.

| look forward to your prompt response.
Many thanks

Adam.

PC Adam Deweltz
Westminster Police Licensing Unit
Westminster City Hall
4th Floor
64 Victoria Street
London
SW1E 6QP
page 269



APPENDIX B3
Comments for Licensing Application 14/07220/LIPN

Application Summary

Application Number: 14/07220/LIPN

Address: Basement And Ground Floor 39 Great Windmill Street London W1D 70LX
Proposal: Premises Licence - New

Case Officer: Miss Samantha Eaton

Customer Details
Name: Mrs Kitieng Matsunaga
Address: Flat 1 40 Great Windmill Street London

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Licensing Application
Comment Reasons:

Comment:7:49 PM on 22 Sep 2014 39 Great Windmill Street
Application of late night refreshments

Dear Sir / Madam,
We are the residents of 40 Great Windmill street and are seriously concerned and worried about
the above application.

in the past, we have suffered from the noise of the nearby pubs and clubs. However, Westminster
City council have provided great assistance as now most of them will close before 12am. As we
are just next door to the applied premises, any delayed trading hours will seriously affect our life. It
is already difficult getting some rest due to cars honking regularly outside as well as the drunken
customers of the nearby clubs vandalising our doorbell, allowing 39 Great Windmill Street to
provide late night refreshments will only increase the level of noise and disturbances.

Please also kindly consider our children who are still in school, as well as us residents, as we all
have to wake up early in the morning for work, and implore you to object to this application.

Many thanks
Mr. & Mrs. Matsunaga

page 270



APPENDIX C
Licence & Appeal History

The Premises are not currently licensed under the Licensing Act 2003.

There is no appeal history for the premises.

page 271



APPENDIX D

CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS PROPOSED
BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING

Basement & Ground Floor, 39 Great Windmill Street, London

When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the Licensing Act
2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant the licence subject
to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule.

At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, or
add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers necessary for the promotion
of the licensing objectives.

This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or proposed as
necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority or an interested
party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing service but reflect the
positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and have not necessarily been
agreed.

Conditions:

Mandatory:

None

Conditions Proposed by the Applicant:

1. This licence is subject to all the former regulations made by Westminster City Council
prescribing standard conditions for annual night café licences, effective from 1 October 2001.

2. The premises may be kept open only for the purposes of thié licence from 12 midnight on each
of the days Monday to Saturday to 1am on the day following.

3. No amplified music shall be played within the premises after 23:00.

4. The sliding fagade of the premises shall be closed when the premises are in use under this
licence.

5. The pavement from the building line to the kerb edge, and to include the gutter/channel

immediately outside the premises and to a distance of 10 metres on either side is swept whilst
the premises are open for business and litter and sweepings collected, stored and disposed of
in accordance with the approved refuse storage arrangements.

6. At the close of business each day the premises are open for business, the pavement from the
building line to the kerb edge, and to include the gutter/channel immediately outside the
premises and to a distance of 10 metres on either side is swept whilst the premises are open
for business and litter and sweepings collected, stored and disposed of in accordance with the
approved refuse storage arrangements.

7. All refuse must be paid, properly presented, and can only be placed on street 30 minutes
before the scheduled collection time.

page 272



10.

11.

The number of persons accommodated at any one time shall not exceed 15.
All licensable activities shall be restricted to the ground floor of the premises.

To allow the consumption of food on the premises after 23:00 provided that the doors to the
premises remain closed.

The premises is allowed to have the provision of incidental background recorded music until
23:00.

Proposed by the Metropolitan Police Service and agreed with the Applicant:

12.

=L

14.

The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the minimum
requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit points will be
covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light condition. The
CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for licensable activities and
during all times when customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a
minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made
available immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer throughout the
preceding 31 day period.

A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system
shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff member must be
able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent CCTV images or data
with the absolute minimum of delay when requested.

An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an authorised
officer of the City Council or the Police, which will record the following:

(a) all crimes reported to the venue

(b) all ejections of patrons

(c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder

(d) any incidents of disorder

(e) any faults in the CCTV system or searching equipment or scanning equipment
1) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.

Conditions Proposed by the Environmental Health Service:

15.

16.

17.

18.

19,

20.

21.

There shall be no take-away of hot food or hot drink after 23.00 hours daily.
The consumption of food shall only be by customers seated inside the premises.
A waiter/waitress service shall be provided.

The maximum number of customers that may be inside the premises at any one time shall not
exceed 15 persons. (or such lower number on final clearance).

No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of
the premises which gives rise to a nuisance.

Notices shall be prominently displayed at exits requesting patrons to respect the needs of local
residents and businesses and leave the area quietly.

All waste shall be properly presented and placed out for collection no earlier than 30 minutes
before the scheduled collection times.

page 273



22.

23.

During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure sufficient
measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or accumulating from
customers in the area immediately outside the premises, and that this area shall be swept and
or washed, and litter and sweepings collected and stored in accordance with the approved

refuse storage arrangements by close of business.

No waste or recyclable materials, including bottles, shall be moved, removed from or placed in
outside areas between 23.00 hours and 08.00 hours on the following day.

page 274



APPENDIX E

¥102/01/20 9180 | €10z 14Bu os6qerep 10/puE 14BLIAoS UMOID © -SOWO AISUONEIS SIS} [
s Asalepy JaH Jo Jsjjonuos ayj jo uoissiuuad ay) yum Aaaing
segele(] ulojiun :82inog ejed 82ueupIO Woyj pasusdl ejep Buiddew sapnjoul yonpoud siyg Ol
= b o\ b >~ | _
) E:.m,nu - szol- | | A =~ = e
sesn fie jo | 137 w . a  ozzstessie :
|enuapisay | e & B < o
wgoy | uomodoid e~ N = & bisLe
L1282 8k
_ 9eee rronL = R B I
z . ompeooy = L e
cuBuID . e ) B %
@ % vY ouiles &W
€l [ sesniewo T NVWNIO emw
: : " W%
s M, - 702Zbg61- %
= =
uonon)suo) rmmm . w_,mn_w”wmwum. Qe
0 lepun —.I e
i g ez
B L e
‘9 ;w..vﬁ . 7&# “
leguapisay | " osize D SN e
pasodoid [~ ‘ovie 4 o O e
g6 | /1ENUSPISAY poszz  sevil- ..ma.u D e # S w% ,&w
12792 B, 7 Ys6iil-beogt & 2 O 2
B soeze® % & - > <@ T 1 o
o8 _ < 2 W, T & kb £
s It -
= zoop gnm.ﬁ.mo.ﬂ. Lo S, &y
o 5 4 |
_ 9z \ o S :
868-58504- os_om. &2 +69€6-92601 aﬂw
& P o %
& A R e
¢ 8r8L S — © : p oL A :
2 . pbE1o Lvi g |5 oLty © Pz 3 o v, n
% serzly P W SETHEE ¥ ouz8
& L F e \ o~t, ﬁ. ) &
SR Za By o SE S W e N B -
& C- Xy _ u._ﬁ_l.._. sigzd 20 & 2 e
By Q 5z zzsLe- I Y - : 3. ¢
oy . ¥0ano sieieim &2 oseold i 2}
_ % S M - sere; & 1~ BNy >
2 \ ’ <
: .uw.-. 3 N@l.._‘wl : ALY . . & e g o W < _
. I3)SUTIISIA, JO AN
[ 1
X1Z LM ‘UopuoT 4881l [[IWPUIA 38249 6€ ‘(Jueinejsay) %




Premises within 75 metres of: (Restaurant), 39 Great Windmill Street

t, London, W1D 7LX

p/n Name of Premises Premises Address Licensed Hours
22363 Grace 42 - 44 Great Windmill Street London W1D 7LU Monday 1o Saturday 09:00 - 01:30 Sunday 09:00 - 23:00
Friday to Saturday 10:00 - 00:00
26951 Soju Restaurant 32 Great Windmill Streel London W1D 7LR Monday to Thursday 10:00 - 23:30
Sunday 12:00 - 22:30
. Avenue House 25-27 Shaftesbury Avenue § .
-31669 Lyric Theatre London W1D 7EG Monday to Sunday 09:00 - 00:00
-30197 Shoryu Soho 2-3 Denman Street London W1D 7HA Monday to Saturday 10:00 - 00:30 Sunday 12:00 - 00:00
-29336 The Dog House 23B Shaftesbury Avenue London W1D 7EF Monday to Saturday 10:00 - 05:00 Sunday 12:00 - 05:00
Friday to Saturday 10:00 - 00:00
-20802 The Lyric Public House 37 Great Windmill Street London W1D 7LT Monday to Thursday 10:00 - 23:30
Sunday 12:00 - 22:30
Sundays before Bank Holidays 09:00 - 00:00
18773 Archer Street Basement A"“gﬂ‘;”::ﬂ;’gr; :’;4 IATEREHSHEE! Monday to Saturday 09:00 - 01:30
Sunday 09:00 - 23:00
-13036 Kim's Mart 24-25 Denman Street London W1D 7HS Monday to Sunday 09:00 - 22:00
. N Friday to Saturday 10:00 - 00:00 Sunday 10:00 - 22:50
-8340 Be At One 20 Great Windmill Street London W1D 7LA Monday to Thursday 10:00 - 23:30
Friday to Saturday 10:00 - 00:00
- Monday to Thursday 10:00 - 23:30
-6289 The Diner 19 Shaftesbury Avenue London W1D 7ED Sundays bafore Bank Holidays 12:00 - 00:00
Sunday 12:00 - 23:00
864 Duke Of Argyll Public House 37 Brewer Street London W1F ORY Monday to Saturday 10:00 - 23:30 Sunday 12:00 - 23:00
Friday to Saturday 10:00 - 00:00
, . . . Monday to Thursday 10:00 - 23:30
2642 St James' Tavern Public House 45 Great Windmill Street London W1D 7NE Sundays before Bank Holidays 12:00 - 00:00
Sunday 12:00 - 22:30
10667 Ham Yard Hote! Ham Yard Hote! 1 Ham Yard London W1D 7DT Monday to Sunday 00:00 - 00:00
Ground Floor Middle Avenue House
12845 Shaftesbury Food And Wine 25 - 27 Shaftesbury Avenue Monday to Sunday 07:00 - 01:00
London WD 7EQ
15183 Jacob's Ladder 25 Great Windmill Street London W1D 7LH Monday to Saturday 10:00 - 23:30 Sunday 12:00 - 22:30
22283 The Windmili 17-19 Great Windmill Strest London W1D 7LQ Sunday 09:00 - 03:00 Monday to Saturday 09:00 - 05:30

page 276



23050 Melati Restaurant 21 Great Windmill Street London W1D 7LB Monday to Saturday 10:00 - 00:30 Sunday 12:00 - 00:00
28285 Rainforest Cafe 20-24 Shaftesbury Avenue London W1D 7EU Sunday 09:00 - 03:00 Monday to Saturday 09:00 - 03:30
-32255 Piccadilly Restaurant 31 Great Windmill Street London W1D 7LP Monday to Saturday 10:00 - 00:30 Sunday 12:00 - 00:00
-25812 Chilli Shaker Indian Cuisine 4 Denman Street London W1D 7HD Monday to Saturday 10:00 - 00:30 Sunday 12:00 - 00:00'
Ground Floor Right And Basement Avenue House Monday to Thursday 05:00 - 00:00
-21895 McDonald's 25 - 27 Shaftesbury Avenue Friday to Saturday 05:00 - 01:00
London W1D 7EQ Sunday 05:00 - 23:00
-19474 Japan Centre 19 Shaftesbury Avenue London W1D 7ED Monday to Saturday 08:00 - 23:30 Sunday 12:00 - 23:00
-8622 Golden Nugget Casino 22-32 Shaftesbury Avenue London W1D 7EU Monday to Saturday 10:00 - 06:30 Sunday 12:00 - 06:30
.
Apollo Theatre 31-33 Shaftesbury Avenue ’ .,
-6456 Apollo Theatre London W1D 7EA Monday to Sunday 09:00 - 00:00
Tuesday to Saturday 11:00 - 01:00
-2522 Gelupo 7 Archer Street London W1D 7AP Sunday to Wednesday 11:00 - 23:00
3464 Bocea Di Lupe Ground Floor 12 Archer Strest London W1D 7BB | Monday to Saturday 07:30 - 00:00 Sunday 11:00 - 23:30
Friday to Saturday 10:00 - 00:00
7878 The Lyric Public House 37 Great Windmill Straet London WAD 7LT MondayioyIhiirsaayhi 0.0015120 30

Sundays before Bank Holidays 12:00 - 00:00
Sunday 12:00 - 22:30

page 277




APPENDIX F ¢




b~
(o |

-
oo
-
-
4







]

A i Mol

£6.90
Takeout Box
%2360

1 %a MSE
Ko Cholesterol No MSG
v T

Dusfity Unfimised Szt
5 Y . —







Agenda Item 4

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	1 Black's, Basement to First Floor, 67 Dean Street, W1
	2 Co-Operative Food, 18-22 Park Road, NW1
	3 Basement And Ground Floor, 39 Great Windmill Street, W1
	4 Initial consideration for any interim measures pending full review - Madame JoJo's, 8-10 Brewer Street, W1
	5 initial consideration for any interim measures pending full review - Escape Nightclub, 10A Brewer Street, W1

